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Corporate Profile
T EREN

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson” or “Hopson
Development” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group” or “We”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) since 1998 (Stock code: 00754). Hopson Development
is a major property group that specialises in the development of medium-
to-high-end large-scale residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is
one of the largest property developers in The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs, customer services and facilities; and to
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
models. Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand
recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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Corporate and Listing Information

Corporate Information

Board of Directors (the “Board”)
Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

(resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director with effect from 10th
January 2020)

(Deputy Chairman)
(appointed as the Chairman of the Board

with effect from 10th January 2020)

CHU Kut Yung

XI Ronggui (Chief Executive Officer)
AU Wai Kin

XIE Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
BAO Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

(Chairman)

Nomination Committee

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

(ceased to be the chairman and a member
of the Nomination Committee since his
resignation as an executive Director with
effect from 10th January 2020)

(became the chairman of the Nomination

Committee with effect from 10th January

2020)

CHU Kut Yung

LEE Tsung Hei, David
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

Company Secretary
MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorised Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIE Bao Xin

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

TtERETER @

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law
MinterEllison LLP

Level 32, Wu Chung House
213 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Chong Hing Bank

Hang Seng Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)

Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou — 16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing —  Hopson Office Building
23A West Dawang Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai —  19th Floor, Block 3
No. 695 Lingshi Road
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin — No. 1 Zhujiang South Road

Jingjin New Town
Baodi District, Tianjin
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

Shareholders’ Calendar

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register
For Annual General Meeting:
9th June 2020 to 12th June 2020 (both days inclusive)

For Final Dividend:
18th June 2020 to 22nd June 2020 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

12th June 2020

Dividend (Per Share)

Proposed final dividend HK30 cents
Payable on 3rd July 2020

Listing Information

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00754

Commercial Mortgage-backed Securities Listing

The Company’s 6.50% and 5.70% commercial mortgage-backed

securities listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange

(trading restricted among certain qualified institutional members)

Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 7.50% Senior Notes listed on The Singapore Exchange

Securities Trading Limited

TERETER @)

BRER B

% R & ft

TERERAFPERTFE

RERBEFRE -

ZEZFTFRA+TZ E( EEREMA)
j{H;ﬁH“

_7— E'E/\H—'—/\E:I:
ZETFRNAZTZA(BEEREMA)
BRREAFKS

—7— E'E/\ﬂ—f— El

KRE (BR)

2% R HAR 8. 307811l
R-ZE-FF+F=ZHKHN

LtHEHR
R LS
AR ARG R
EABARSHARAAER LT

IR A7 1K 8%
00754

BMREAREREZ LT

RAFGE0ERSTOEHEBFBERIZISFRN L
BEERSHE™
(REARBHEEREBERES)

BEEHE LN

ARBTOEBAZBERHNKELRRZHA
[RAR LT

SAREEERLAR ZE—ALFFH

05



Corporate Structure
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Corporate Structure (continued)
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Financial Highlights

%=

2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-RHF —E-REF —E—tF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Revenues &= 12,845,184 16,255,697 13,823,946 13,293,532
Profit before taxation B B AT F 2,839,305 5,628,305 8,745,804 8,994,322
Taxation | (1,257,267) (1,785,631) (2,933,984) (3,171,723)
Profit for the year FEHEF 1,682,038 3,842,674 5,811,820 5,822,599
Non-controlling interests JEPR I MR 2 (63,904) (25,759) 15,435 47,182
Profit attributable to equity holders [ S5 RPN gl 1,645,942 3,868,433 5,796,385 5,775,467
Profit attributable to equity holders RAERF B A B R F
(excluding the effect of revaluation (Rt EFE
and other non-recurring income) R H A IEE T RA) 700,738 2,039,664 1,996,502 2,302,814

Earnings per share
— Basic
— Diluted
Dividends per share
Net assets value per share

FRARN
—&K
— e
SEREE
BRAEFE

HK74 cents 71l
HK74 cents 71l
HK10 cents 71l

HK$25.30 77T

HK174 cents {1l
HK174 cents 1l
HK10 cents 71l
HK$25.34 % 7T

HK260 cents 1l
HK260 cents j#1lll
HK20 cents 1l
HK$29.76 # 7T

HK260 cents 1l
HK260 cents 1l
HK40 cents 71l
HK$30.45 # 7T

2019
—E-hF

HK$’000
FEx

18,600,580
14,761,975
(5,111,585)
9,650,390
164,390
9,486,000

3,230,484

HK426 cents 5l
HK426 cents &4l
HK40 cents 7l
HK$33.71 /&7t

Revenues
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

<

In 2019, the central government introduced a regional policy for developing the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region, the Yangtze River Delta and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area at full steam,
while reiterating the national housing policies of “properties are for accommodation, not for speculation”
and “implementing different policies according to specific situation of different cities and giving category-
based guidance” in pursuit of stabilising the real estate market. In light of such situation, the Group
timely increased its land bank in these regions during the year, and strived to develop and boost the sales
of residential products targeting improvement demand and rigid demand, thus accelerating the cash
inflow of the Group. The Group also further increased the area under management and various online
and offline value-added services of its property management services. The Group also established a global
lifestyle brand, “MAHA China”, to take advantage of the increasing demand for tertiary services in the
domestic market, and further release the added value of its prime projects, thus pushing forward its

strategy on the balanced development of light and heavy assets.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE @

Overview of the Economic Environment

In 2019, facing the complex situation with notably more domestic
and overseas risks and challenges, authorities in different regions
fully implemented the decisions and arrangements made by the
CPC Central Committee and the State Council. By adhering to the
general working guideline of making progress while maintaining
stability, and the new development concept, and focusing on the
supply-side structural reform, they actively promoted high quality
development, and intensified their efforts to stabilise employment,
finance, foreign trade, foreign investment, domestic investment and
market expectation. Key progress was achieved in the three tough
battles. The national economy was generally stable, the
development quality steadily improved, and the primary targets
were satisfactorily achieved, which laid a solid foundation for a
moderately prosperous society. The gross domestic product (“GDP”)
for the year amounted to RMB99,086.5 billion, which grew by 6.1%
over last year in comparable prices. The disposable income per
capita of residents nationwide for the year amounted to
RMB30,733, representing nominal growth of 8.9%, which was 0.2
percentage points higher than that of last year, and real growth of
5.8% when excluding the effect of price changes, which was
generally in line with economic growth and per capita GDP growth,
over last year. In terms of usual residence, the disposable income
per capita of urban households was RMB42,359, representing
nominal growth of 7.9%, and real growth of 5.0% when excluding
the effect of price changes over last year.

Overview of Real Estate Market

In 2019, the investment in real estate development nationwide
amounted to RMB13,219.4 billion, which increased by 9.9% over
last year, and the paid-in investment of real estate developers was
RMB17,860.9 billion, which increased by 7.6% over last year. The
sales area of commercial residential buildings sold nationwide
reached 1,715.58 million sg.m., which decreased by 0.1% over last
year, and the sales of commercial residential buildings nationwide
amounted to RMB15,972.5 billion, which grew by 6.5%. The area
of land purchased by real estate developers was 258.22 million
sg.m., which decreased by 11.4% over last year.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Overview of Real Estate Market (Continued)

I. Eastern China

In 2019, Shanghai’s economy made steady progress with GDP of
the city amounting to RMB3,815.5 billion, which grew by 6.0% in
comparable prices. The disposable income per capita of urban
usual residents amounted to RMB73,615, representing nominal
growth of 8.2% over last year, and real growth of 5.6% when
excluding the effect of price changes. The disposable income per
capita of rural usual residents amounted to RMB33,195,
representing nominal growth of 9.3%, and real growth of 6.6%
when excluding the effect of price changes. In 2019, centring on
the prime projects within core urban areas in Shanghai, the Group
actively developed projects in surrounding areas, proactively
adjusted product positioning and continuously boosted the sales.
The Town of Hangzhou Bay in Cixi and Kunshan Hopson
International Garden delivered outstanding contracted sales in
2019. In 2019, 44% of contracted sales and 25% of revenue of the
Group were attributable to Eastern China.

Il. Northern China

In 2019, Beijing’s economy developed steadily with GDP amounting
to RMB3,537.1 billion, representing an increase of 6.1% in
comparable prices. The disposable income per capita of urban
households achieved real growth of 6.3% over last year. In 2019,
the sales of our top luxury residential project, namely Hopson No. 8
Royal Park in Beijing, continued to receive good response from
market, representing approximately 34% of contracted sales in
Northern China. Meanwhile, the Group’s Hopson Regal Park
(Caofeidian) in Tangshan, Hopson International City in Taiyuan and
Hopson Regal Seashore in Dalian also continued to record good
sales. In 2019, 17% of contracted sales and 28% of revenue of the
Group were attributable to Northern China.

lll. Southern China

In 2019, GDP of Guangzhou amounted to RMB2,362.8 billion,
representing an increase of 6.8% in comparable price over last
year. The disposable income per capita of urban and rural usual
residents increased by 8.5% to RMB65,052 and 10.9% to
RMB28,868 respectively, in line with the growth of the economy. In
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, one of the
most open and economically vibrant regions in China, the overall
market development trend was positive. Within the Greater Bay
Area, the Group continued to deepen our development in
Guangzhou and Huizhou, our two major value sectors. The Group
also leveraged our advanced investment management strategy to
participate in quality urban renewal projects within the region. In
2019, the Group’s projects including Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa in
Zengcheng, Hopson Xijing Garden in Zhongshan, Hopson
Belvedere Bay in Foshan, Hopson International New City in Huizhou
and Hopson Xiaogui Bay in Huizhou continued to record improving
contracted sales. In 2019, 39% of contracted sales and 47% of
revenue of the Group were attributable to Southern China.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE @

3. Business Review 3.

Looking back at 2019, the Group continued to proceed with the
strategic layout of business diversification. For the property
development segment, the Group accelerated the sales of
residential products targeting improvement demand and rigid
demand, and also focused on enhancing the quality of high-end
residential products. For the commercial properties investment
segment, the Group continued to optimise the tenant portfolio of
the investment properties, and at the same time also strove to
expand our brand management business, so as to promote the
Group’s strategy on the balanced development of light and heavy
assets. For the infrastructure segment, Hopson's completed
construction area grew steadily, and positive progress was made in
standardised design system construction and research and
development. For the property management, smart community
transformation was carried out, smart living service business
experienced notable growth and the comprehensive service quality
was upgraded.

E 3 AE

NE_Z-NF SEFEEEEXS
Eftﬁ']@éﬁikﬁﬁﬁ RYEERRRFE
SEMRAEZDNENFETEZERNE
B NhEIRASKAGTEESNEE -
REEWERERR IR SETERE
BLREMMENHFLES  RRITE SN
MhERGEEREY UHESERELE
I 5 2 R A B o EA%@T&%FE'/E}E
E’JWEIEF%LH*E RETRECBRE
BRMERGESER -MEEEL@E -
REEERMENE TEEERBED
iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ ﬁ?ﬁﬂ'ﬁ&ﬁ&uu,\°

I.  Operating revenue of each segment . BREz2EEWR
Turnover by geographical location: ZEEIA
2018

Region ith & —E-hEF — N\

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

BEER tt Bl (%) BEET Lt 131 (%)

Southern China E 5 @ 15 8,777 47% 5,005 38%
Northern China AL S 15 5,239 28% 4,137 31%
Eastern China R R I 4,585 25% 4,152 31%
Total &5t 18,601 100% 13,294 100%
During the reporting period, the Group continued to have our base WEHRRN SE%Z % I a J‘H’\Iﬂi =ARD
in the three core economic zones in the Pearl River Delta, BCRZAZKEER  A#HZOM™ -
Huanbohai and the Yangtze River Delta, made in-depth ZREEE W™ EE F‘i & i~ FE4E R

development in core cities, and explored surrounding potential
cities. Southern China, Northern China and Eastern China
contributed revenue of HK$8,777 million, HK$5,239 milion and
HK$4,585 million respectively.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Business Review (Continued)

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

3.

I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)

Turnover by business segment:

FERE @

¥ EE @

. BRWz2EERDS @
REBHBED 2 EEWA :

2019 2018
Business Segment EXK D —E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEET £ 651l (%) aBEET Lt 511 (%)
Revenue from property YRR WS
development 12,848 69% 8,640 65%
Revenue from commercial EEMERE N
properties investment 3,155 17% 2,435 18%
Property management income %) 3 & 32 It A 1,183 6% 1,136 9%
Infrastructure income 2l A 1,415 8% 1,083 8%
Total A&t 18,601 100% 13,294 100%

During the reporting period, the Group’s strategy to optimise the
income structure and diversify various sources of income proved to
be successful to a certain extent. In 2019, revenue from property
development was HK$12,848 million, revenue from commercial
properties investment was HK$3,155 million, property management
income was HK$1,183 milion and infrastructure income was
HK$1,415 million.

i. Revenue from property development

As of 31st December 2019, the Group’s revenue from property
development was HK$12,848 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 49%.

A new record high was attained in contracted sales performance.
In 2019, contracted sales amount for the year was approximately
RMB21,258 million, which increased by 42% vyear-on-year;
contracted sales area for the year was approximately 1,652,428
sg.m., which increased by 27% year-on-year; the average selling
price of contracted sales for the year was approximately
RMB12,865 per sg.m., which increased by 11% year-on-year,
realising an increase in sales amount, area and average sales
amount.

WEHRN SEECKRAGZRE ENsE
WARBEHRESE —F8BR —F—
NEWEHERWE12848B BT - B
EREWZIILESTT WMEEERRA
11.83 BB TR EREWA1415EB T ©

i MERBBRWA

BE-_ZT-NAF+t-RA=1—H &EHN
MEHRKE BB 12848 AL L
TH49% °

GREEEENBEN e G2
FHAENHEHESBN A ARK21258(E
7T Bl EA4I2%  2FHNENEEER
4951,652,428 F 5K - At EF27% 0 &
FHAPNHEEFLHHESEERDODAA
R¥12865F 5K Rt EFA11%  BEH
HESRE T FHEESENRA-

SHEAREBEERAT —E-NEFH
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE @

3. Business Review (Continued)

I. Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)
i. Revenue from property development (Continued)

The Group focused on the three core economic development
regions in China and made in-depth development and active
expansion in the market with signature projects playing a leading
role in the respective regions. For the contracted sales in 2019, The
Town of Hangzhou Bay in Cixi took the lead with an outstanding
contracted sales of approximately RMB4,767 million; Hopson
Hushan Guoji Villa in Zengcheng achieved another remarkable
contracted sales of over RMB2,445 million; Hopson No. 8 Royal
Park in Beijing continued its exceptional sales record of luxury
apartments with contracted sales of approximately RMB1,189
million; Kunshan Hopson International Garden, Hopson International
New City in Huizhou, Nanhai Hopson Belvedere Bay and Hopson
Xijing Garden in Zhongshan also stood out with contracted sales of
over RMB1,000 million each.

Adhering to the brand philosophy of “enjoying high-quality lifestyle”,
the Group introduced world-class living concepts into China and
launched the global lifestyle brand “MAHA China”, which created a
new pattern in the high-end real estate sector. Making it a mission
to enhance urban lifestyle and quality of living environment and
striving to become a creator of perfect life, the Group provided
property owners with full-scenario living experience through our
endeavour to develop quality products, services and supporting
operations. The brand philosophy released the Group’s scarce
quality land as well as the additional values of projects, thus
strengthening the market competitiveness of the Group’s high-end
products and quality service.

During the year, the Group acquired ten new secondary land
development projects with a consolidated value of over RMB34.7
billion. The acquired projects provided support for the Group’s
medium to long-term development strategies. Leveraging our
industrial platform, we integrated all-round resource linkages in
commercial, technological, educational, industrial and other areas,
and reached an intention on strategic cooperation with various local
governments. Meanwhile, the Group realised whole-process
standardised management and control of urban redevelopment via
“Three Old Platform”, improved conversion efficiency of urban
redevelopment projects and completed step-by-step the
conversion of key urban redevelopment projects in Xinji Village,
Yuangang Village, Fenghe Village.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (Continued)

I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued) I
i. Revenue from property development (Continued) i.

A.  Revenue from property development by major project: A.

3. ¥¥EE@m

FERE @

BRI 2 & E U (|\)
VIR WA ()
REITEAES ZYERR NS

2019 2018
Project EHE —E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEET L 651l (%) BEET Lt 511 (%)
Hospon No. 8 Royal Park EHETEESIH 1,993 16% 1,126 13%
Hopson Hushan Guaiji Villa & A4 L B 1,572 12% 11 0%
Hopson Xijing Garden AEEETEE 1,335 10% 151 2%
Huizhou Hopson International  E M & 4 Bl B 37 4

New City 1,069 8% 276 3%
Nanhai Hopson Belvedere Bay F/84& 4 & 8 & 913 7% 264 3%
The Town of Hangzhou Bay B AN B R T 777 6% 867 10%
Hopson Asset Seascape BEMEEE AR

Residence 641 5% 724 8%
Hopson Guangfuhui EEEEE 634 5% 197 2%
Guangzhou Hopson Regal EMAEEHKITS

Riviera 625 5% 640 8%
Hopson Dongjiao Villa B E RS RIE 503 4% 583 7%
Others H 2,786 22% 3,801 44%

12,848 100% 8,640 100%
B. Contracted sales by major project: B. RIEHEEE D 2AHNE:
2019 2018
Contracted sales Contracted sales
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Project 1HH ERHEE BRHE
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEEBT L 651l (%) aEET Lt 151 (%)
The Town of Hangzhou Bay A TN B BRIk 5,380 22% 4,940 28%
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa B EMILBERER 2,759 12% 1,046 6%
Kunshan Hopson International £ 1L & 4 B B2 7E &

Garden 1,713 7% 1,020 6%
Hopson International New City 25 M & 4= B8 B2 274 1,626 7% 1,049 6%
Nanhai Hopson Belvedere Bay F/84& 4 & = & 1,438 6% 784 4%
Hospon No. 8 Royal Park EETEKSH 1,342 6% 1,335 8%
Hopson Xijing Garden EHEESTE 1,322 6% 998 6%
Taiyuan Hopson International K J& & 4 B BR 4

City 1,043 4% 694 4%
Hopson Xiaogui Bay BENEE 1,003 4% 361 2%
Hopson Guangfuhui EEESE 889 3% 565 3%
Others H1h 5,478 23% 4,701 27%

23,993 100% 17,493 100%

SHEAREBEERAT —E-NEFH
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FEHRE @
3. Business Review (Continued) 3. ¥XKEE®m
I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued) . Bz & EWE @
i.  Revenue from property development (Continued) i YIEBERWA @)
C. Project Completion Volume C. IRRIE
a.  Completed area in 2019: a Z—ZZE-NFATZTIEHE:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\#F
Area Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
Region & [iETR L 45l (%) & Lt 51 (%)
(sg-m.) (sg.m.)
(A K) (A %)
Southern China 2 g [ 15 560,664 30% 243,687 31%
Northern China AL & i 1,219,318 66% 225,514 28%
Eastern China E B R 1 73,546 4% 332,676 41%
Total A&t 1,853,528 100% 801,877 100%

= £ F" |
i
“1 »
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE @

3. ¥%EEEm@m

3. Business Review (Continued)

BRI 2 & E U (|\)
VIR WA ()

I. Operating revenue of each segment (Continued) I

i. Revenue from property development (Continued) i.

C. Project Completion Volume (Continued) C. IRRIE(HE)

b.  Property development completed area (projected): b. YEREFETIEE(EL):
2020 2021 2022 2023 and after
—EEf —ECZ-§ —2-C —E=ERUNE
Completed Area Completed Area  Completed Area Completed Area
Project Name HHEH TIEE TIEE TIEE TIEE
(sqm.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FAK) (FHK) (F7K) (F7K)
Beijing Hopson Regal Riviera TRAEKITS — — — 248,843
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park BHETEHRST 53,835 - 161,959 362,202
Hopson Dreams World B EH R 152,769 - - 3,883
Yuhe Project ESERELE - - - 10,000
Hopson Regal Park BEAEITS - - 49,717 -
Beijing Miyun Project tRBEIER — — — 12,327
Makeyan Project SRAIEEB 194,481 - - 181,461
Hopson Regal BETE - 87,596 - 27,980
Bazhou Guajiazhuang Project GMNEFEEE - 164,805 - -
Hongchang Project FEEH - - - 180,844
Jingjin New Town TORFT - 200,973 67,740 3,301,894
Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay RKEREERE - 33,736 - -
Tianjin Hopson International Tower REGEBBRE - - - 70,002
Tianjin Hopson Intemational Mansion ~ KEALBEEBAE — — — 111,206
Dongli Lake Project REMEE - - - 1,130,000
Hopson Regal Seashore BETILGS - - - 131,883
Taiyuan Hopson International City KERE E BB — 92,390 - 164,876
Hopson Seasky Villa BEXREN - - - 1,213,884
Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) BEERTR(ERE) - 211,707 - 216,164
Hopson Town B B - - - 727
Shanghai Tea Factory Project FEEERIER - - - 37,366
Hopson International Garden BEBRRIE 32,565 222,423 149,368 5,099
The Town of Hangzhou Bay BEMME BRI 109,161 480,995 1,150,948 639,854
Hopson Sea Block A4HE - 175,958 99,389 -
Hopson Crystal Garden BEREILR - - - 89,917
Hopson Gallopade Park BB — — 90,548 230,555
Hopson Pleasant View Garden LHBRERE 1,906 — - 156,734
Hopson Huanan New City AHEEFIH — — - 130,190
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EMNEERI®S - - - 533,290
Hopson Regal Villa BERRILE - - - 319,455
Hopson Xijing Banshan BEESFI - - - 410,010
Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park )T &R 81 & — — - 193,513
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa BHERILBE 121,388 37,845 441,866 210,472
Qianjin Road Project A I8 B — — - 208,863
Hopson TIT International Industrial Park & 4 TITEI X & % - - - 375,334
TIT Project (International Park) TTEE (RER) — — — 788,425
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan AHEEER — - - 1,318,989
Hopson Joy Mansion EEWRDE — - - 45,029
Hopson Yujing Bay BERMRE - 170,775 238,089 1,134,272
Hopson Regal Bay EETRE — — - 113,070
Hopson International New City A4 B HH — 209,021 — 257,221
Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park 35T # 7 E ¥ 8l = — - — 1,383,667
Shidai City Project B (3508 B - 281,700 107,999 1,131,062
Hopson Xiaogui Bay BENEE - 337,105 112,520 1,316,759
Hopson Yushan Garden BEBLTE - 69,764 - 22,910
Xin Yu Village Project FENEE — - — 471,119
Hopson Xijing Garden BEERL - - 151,695 46,299
Zhongshan Rainbow Project FILFIMIEE - - - 426,136
Hopson Yunshan Regal BEENFE - - - 207,735
Yangshuo Phoenix Shanshui Shangjing 5 1 Bl /& LI 7K 1% §% 90,527 - 115,791 146,430
Total Bt 756,632 2,776,793 2,937,629 19,717,951
EHAREEERAR —Z—NEFH
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE @

3. Business Review (Continued)

I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)
i. Revenue from property development (Continued)
D. Land Bank

The Group has adequate land banks of excellent quality and at
lower costs in first-tier cities, such as Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou. This is also one of the Group’s core competitive
strengths to sustain persistent corporate growth. During the year,
the Group balanced the need of long-term and current
development and acquired new lands with an area of 1,347,392
sq.m. The land bank of the Group of 31.11 million sg.m. as at 31st
December 2019 is sufficient for the future development of the
Group.

a. Usage and Location

¥ EE @)

. BRWz2EERDS @
. MEBREKRAGE

D. tHhfE®E

SEEER L8 ENEF—SBETHER
AEFEARNAREBEMN LHEHR S
THBEERBERRENARZLOBFEZ 2
—o TR EETEHEREFREZINERE
M E Fig T miE1,347,302F 5 K o
HEZZ-—NAF+ZA=1T—80 K&5H
BEETHEESINBTEAI R BHRE
SERREEMT °

a HAERHME

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)

ATHEEAR(BEF AT XK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total

& M =M bI7p- b= tis 2R #Et

Residential F= 4.67 5.60 3.63 5.55 2.64 — 22.09
Shopping arcade k] 0.79 0.25 0.41 0.05 0.27 0.02 1.79
Office WNE 0.91 0.25 0.34 0.15 0.20 - 1.85
Car parks FEI5 1.46 1.41 0.78 0.09 0.88 - 4.62
Hotels B IE 0.21 0.11 0.16 0.18 0.10 — 0.76
Total st 8.04 7.62 5.32 6.02 4.09 0.02 31.11

b.  Development Status and Location

b.  BEERMILIME

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER(BEETFHXK)
Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total

Guangzhou Huizhou

& M =M = RiE & R wEr

Completed properties B 3% X 1) % 1.26 0.26 1.34 1.10 0.89 0.02 4.87
Properties under BRPYE

development 0.80 1.55 1.75 1.17 2.78 — 8.05
Properties to be TERME

developed 5.98 5.81 2.23 3.75 0.42 — 18.19

Total 5T 8.04 7.62 5.32 6.02 4.09 0.02 31.11

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019



Chairman’s Statement (continued)

3. Business Review (Continued)

I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)
i. Revenue from property development (Continued)
D. Land Bank (Continued)

c.  Development Status and Usage

FERE @

3. ¥¥EE@m

BRI 2 & E W= (@)
EX L ONE)

+ it 4 ()
BRI R i

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEERR(BEFLXK)

Shopping
Residential Arcade Office  Car Parks Hotels Total
e & AR BEG BIE F
Completed properties BIEK I E 2.16 0.84 0.50 1.03 0.34 4.87
Properties under development 2% & ) 6.28 0.24 0.17 1.28 0.08 8.05
Properties to be developed 73 E ) 2 13.65 0.71 1.18 2.31 0.34 18.19
Total @t 22.09 1.79 1.85 4,62 0.76 31.11

d. Title Status and Location

d. BRI RME

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

THEEER(BEFLXK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing  Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo  Total
B M =M bl RE L& Big At
Land use rights certificates BEEELiER 3.68 2.63 3.20 1.84 3.17 0.02 14.54
and construction works HAERER
planning permits obtained Ti2MREFFA &
Land use rights certificates EEE L A 3.17 3.61 1.46 1.80 0.92 - 10.96
obtained but without BARIIGEH
construction works TiR# 2
planning permits 5T A 2
Construction land use planning = B 15 i 5% - - 0.10 - - — 0.0
permits obtained but without 38 21 &F 7] 2&
land use rights certificates RERG T
2 A &
Grant of major approvalsand ~ BEF T EH# X & 1.19 1.38 0.56 2.38 — — 5.51
certificates pending FEL
Total HBET 8.04 7.62 5.32 6.02 4.09 0.02  31.11

AEAREEBERATR —S—NEFH 19
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FEHRE @

3. Business Review (Continued) 3. ¥XKEE®m
I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued) . BRI 2EE RS @)
i. Revenue from Commercial Properties Investment i. BHEMEREWRS

As of 31st December 2019, revenue from commercial properties
investment was approximately HK$3,155 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 30%. There were 44 projects under
management with total area in operation of 4.14 million sg.m. The
investment in the five major product lines, namely commercial,
office, industrial, hotel and elderly care, was effectively made. The
influence of our brand increased year by year. During the year, we
won 30 domestic and overseas industry awards and became a
highly recognised and trusted service operator in the industry. As at
31st December 2019, the Group managed 15 investment property
projects, with area in operation under management of over 670,000
sg.m.

HE_Z—NWF+A=+—8 @i
ERBEWTHABBE,EI1E5E T ALK
B30% - /£ B 18 B 441 - BB L HETE414
EFHA BE - BAEEXE -BE B
ERARERBEEEL REFXENETF
R FRERI0ERHAINTERIE K
BIUXEIRUNEENRGELRN - &
= F+-_A=+—0 £EEE
5EZKEYMHXIEE EREZHEHEBA
67ETF K-

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEET ke 51 (%) BEATT b 151 (%)
Property investment MEKE 2,766 88% 2,003 82%
Hotel operation B JE 8 389 12% 432 18%
Total A& BAIE5 100% 2,435 100%

Our commercial management segment also revolved around the HERMTEEEBRREEHLE  1T&5

Group’s asset-light strategy to build a smart commercial platform.
The development service established a full commercial chain smart
ecosystem of asset management, investment and operation,
customer consumption, supplier support, and internal collaboration
in terms of five common platforms of asset owners, merchants,
customers, suppliers and operating teams, thus gradually building
up Hopson Commercial as an enterprise which provided asset
service, platform and technology.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Business Review (Continued)

I. Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)
iii. Property Management Income

As of 31st December 2019, property management income was
approximately HK$1,183 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 4%. As one of the leading property management
service providers in China, Esteem Property Management (&
#E18) under the property management segment was ranked top
20 in property management in China. Esteem Property offered
quality and high standard property services for its customers
through its star rating services. At the same time, in addition to
provision of traditional property management services, Esteem
Property offered various value-added services, including living
services, property agency and asset management, aiming to
enhance customer satisfaction at different aspects. As at 31st
December 2019, the gross floor area under management of
Esteem Property Management increased by 10% to 31,400,000
sg.m. from 28,590,000 sg.m. as at the end of last year.

Unit
Results Figures REER B
Property management WMEER HK$ million
BEAET
Total gross floor area under TEREEAME million sg.m.
management BEFIK

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FERE @
¥ EE @
. BRWz2EERDS @
i. MEEBWA

HE_Z-hFEt+-_A=+—8 Y%
EBRAL AEE11.831E L R LR R
4% MEEERWTHEESDEEER
PRELNDEETERGREEE 2 —
Uy 2EAYEEE _+R -ESWEBB
PRELRY  BEFREESEZRSK
ENMERE  ANREEHRDESTER
WIS ERERS  BEEERE
MERE BEEEES ZHURSEF
MmEE BHIE—T—NEF+-_A=+—
B REEVXEERMERREEEREF
[RA28.59H &F 5K EFA10%=E31.408H
BFHK-

2019 2018 Year-on-Year
ol S PR — T — )\ F E)=4

1,183 1,136 4%

31.40 28.59 10%

The Group’s property services were user-oriented all the
time, implementing smart community transformation and
comprehensively improving the service quality. The satisfaction of
160,000 homeowners from over 140 service projects nationwide
increased from 40 in 2018 to 67 in 2019, representing a significant
increase of 67.5%. In addition, the number of users of the Hooplife
mobile app in the property management segment was about
500,000. The smart living service business also grew significantly.
In 2019, nearly 200,000 orders were placed throughout the year,
and the total turnover reached RMB1,100 million.

EENMERGEHUFERELALR  EE
BEfrRRE 2EARARERE 2
EiBB140ERGEEICEFELTNRE
B -—Z—N\FHORSH -_Z—NF
H167 © AMBIRFH67.5% Lo EE IR
RBEANEGEETFREREARR,E
Bis08  SEAERBESEERAR
ZE-NFEFRIEHR0ER BERX
BHiEAREAIET -

SEAREEARATE ZES-NAFFHR
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE @

3. Business Review (Continued)

3. ¥XEE@m

I.  Operating revenue of each segment (Continued)
iv. Infrastructure Income

At present, the construction companies and construction design
companies under the Group is primarily engaged in undertaking the
construction works and construction design of self-owned projects
of the Group, as well as external contracted works. The
development in infrastructure investment segment always strives to
the principle of maintaining balance between progress and quality,
targeting on improving efficiency and making progress at a steady
pace. We have enhanced our construction schedule planning
management and construction progress management, and
implemented strict inspection procedures so as to ensure quality
construction works and timely delivery. We have also strengthened
the level of safety construction, which will be beneficial to the
general image of the Group. The development speed and quality of
the infrastructure group are of equal importance with “quality in
stability, steady progress” as its motto. The total annual output in
2019 was approximately HK$6,407 million, with area under
construction of approximately 10.72 million sg.m. and completed
area of approximately 1.85 million sq.m. Steady growth was seen
in the infrastructure performance, providing strong support for the
production and operation of the Group.

. BRWz2EERDS @
iv. HEUWA

SETENIREERBLARIMBERLRS
BARBREZTEAEZEEEBEEEENT
EERMTREZET - FR I I
o AEEFEARMNERER T ARG M
EEWEMRI - IRREH - BEATT-
METIRERFHEERE N LRAREE
B EMBKE REEGKE RIZEAR
b2 2XHEELT BRARRAEE
BERFR HFEEXERTHREY
B [ERskE BRI - ZE-NF
FERBREBANAEBB6A7TRT £E®T
MHAB1028F K T HEHBELN R85
BEFK XEBIPHER AEELEE
EIREEM -

Unit 2019 2018 Year-on-Year
Results Figures rReEEE B b EeIE:l — T — )\ F 54
Income from infrastructure EEEERA HKS$ million
investment BEBT 6,407 4,333 48%
Intra/inter-segment D EA R =S HK$ million
BEET 4,992 3,250 54%
Area under construction during 4 2 5% s T HE & million sg.m.
the year BEFAK 10.72 7.44 44%

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019



Disclosable Transactions

On 29th August 2019, (i) Shanghai Hopson Property Development
Company Limited* (L8&4£FEHEREERAT) (“Shanghai
Hopson”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (i)
Hangzhou Future Land Dinghong Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd." (IMEF R EEMERZE AR AF) (‘Hangzhou Future”), (i)
Hangzhou Yisheng Property Consultancy Co., Ltd.* (/{565 5 i
B AR AT (“Hangzhou Yisheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hangzhou Future, (iv) Hangzhou Dingrui Real Estate Consultancy
Co., Ltd.* (MM BEFHERABR QA (‘Hangzhou Dingrui’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hangzhou Future, and (v) Hangzhou
Xincheng Yuehong Real Estate Property Development Company
Limited* (fAM sl ZEEREFR A F]) (the “Project
Company”), a PRC company owned by Hangzhou Yisheng as to
51% and Hangzhou Dingrui as to 49% and having a principal asset
of land with a site area of approximately 48,953 sg.m. situated at
Genbei New District, Jianggan District, Hangzhou, the PRC,
entered into the sale and purchase agreement whereby Hangzhou
Future agreed to sell and Shanghai Hopson agreed to purchase (A)
100% equity interest in Hangzhou Yisheng and 100% equity
interest in Hangzhou Dingrui (collectively called “Sale Equities”) and (B)
the loan of RMB619,397,091 due and owed by Hangzhou Yisheng
to Hangzhou Future and the loan of RMB164,641,790 due and
owed by Hangzhou Dingrui to Hangzhou Future, at a total
consideration of RMB1,364,038,881 (the “Acquisition”). Completion
of the Acquisition shall be the date of the completion of the change
of industrial and commercial registration procedures at the relevant
government authorities of the PRC for the transfer of the Sale
Equities to Shanghai Hopson and the issuance of the new business
registrations for Hangzhou Yisheng and Hangzhou Dingrui and took
place on 30th August 2019. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
each of Hangzhou Yisheng, Hangzhou Dingrui and the Project
Company became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The transaction contemplated by the agreement
described above constituted a disclosable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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4. Disclosable Transactions (Continued)

On 3rd December 2019, Lex 47th Property-Owner LLC (“Lex
47th”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and K-Land Lex
47th LLC (“K-Land”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement
(“SPA”) whereby K-Land agreed to sell and Lex 47th agreed to
purchase the piece of land located at 131-141 East 47th Street,
New York together with the development rights in relation thereto (the
“Property”) at the cash consideration of US$113,500,000 (the
“Purchase Price”) subject to customary real estate adjustments and
to possible reduction up to a maximum amount of US$1,500,000
depending on whether the fund investment would occur, and, if
occurs, the amount of the fund investment as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 3rd December 2019.
Closing of the SPA is subject to the fulflment (or waiver, if
applicable) of the conditions precedent provided under the SPA
and took place on 12th December 2019. The Property is expected
to be developed into a new building to be sold which is expected
to comprise two floors underground (for amenity and storage) and
34 floors above ground (one floor as residence lobby and retail and
the remaining floors as residence comprising 200 residential units)
with an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 183,310
square feet. The investment costs of the development project of
the Property are approximately US$225,000,000, comprising
principally the Purchase Price and construction costs. The
transaction contemplated by the SPA described above constituted
a disclosable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of
16th December 2019, the Company had disposed of Lex 47th prior
to the completion of the purchase of the Property, hence the
Company did not have ownership in the Property as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

For identification purposes only
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Risk Management

The risks faced by the PRC real estate market in 2019 were mainly
brought by the policy of “properties are for accommodation, not for
speculation” of the State, which stopped the central government
from using the real estate industry as short-term economic
stimulus. The targeted supervision of funds in the real estate
industry remained tight throughout the year, and the land market in
China also experienced a trend of high to low. Given the tight
macroeconomic and policy environment, real estate companies
were generally under great pressure and had to actively boost sales
and accelerate their cash inflow. The increase in the price of new
residential buildings for the hundred cities further narrowed after
2018. The cumulative increase in prices in first-tier cities was
slightly higher due to improvement in supply and demand and a
lower base, while the cumulative increase in prices in second-tier
and third-tier cities continued to fall. These risks, which may have
particular impact on particular segments of the real estate market in
particular geographical locations, may or may not have an overall
material impact on the Group’s business operations and financial
condition given that the Group is engaging in diversified property
development projects with principal focus spanning across the
Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai and the Yangtze River Delta economic
zones. The Group will continue to implement prudent operational
and financial policies in seeking to address the impacts of these
uncertainties.

In response to the housing policy of “properties are for
accommodation, not for speculation” and “implementing different
policies according to specific situation of different cities and giving
category-based guidance” reiterated by the State in 2019 to
maintain a stable real estate market, the Group continued to
optimise the product structure of the residential segment and
increased the proportion of supply of residential products targeting
rigid demand and improvement demand in the overall residential
segment so as to explore more sources of client satisfying
purchase requirements under regulatory measures, and accelerate
the cash inflow of the Group. Faced with the problem of narrowing
of financing channels in China, the Group actively promoted the
issuance of various financing instruments onshore and offshore
during the year, and successfully issued 5.70% onshore
commercial mortgage-backed securities totaling RMB2,000 million
and 7.50% offshore senior notes of US$500 million during the year,
thereby broadening the Group’s channels for obtaining low-cost
funds in both domestic and overseas markets and continuously
maintaining the Group’s advantages of lower financing cost as
compared with other housing enterprises. The Group believes that,
with our land reserves in the first-tier cities of up to 17,460,000
sg.m., it is more resistant to the current changes and risks in the
real estate market compared to common real estate companies.

For details of further risk management measures of the Group,
please refer to the “Risk Management and Internal Control” section
on page 116 to 118 of the “Corporate Governance Report”.
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6.

Prospects and Arrangements

I. Prospects of China’s Real Estate Sector

As stated at China’s Central Economic Work Conference, 2020
marks the closing year for building a moderately prosperous society
in all aspects and the 13th Five Year Plan. In order to achieve the
first centenary goal and create a solid foundation for the
development of the 14th Five Year Plan and the achievement of the
second centenary goal, maintaining healthy economic development
is very crucial. The meeting provided guidance for all levels of
economic work. For the real estate market, it points out that it is
necessary to put greater efforts in works on urban housing security
for citizens facing difficulties, enhance urban upgrade and
renovation of housing in stock, renovate old communities in cities
and towns, and develop housing for lease. Consistent with the
philosophy of “properties are for accommodation, not for
speculation”, the long-term effective management system
implements different policies according to specific situation of
different cities to stabilise land premium, housing price and
expectation, thus facilitating steady and healthy development in the
real estate market. The Group is of the view that reiterating of
“properties are not for speculation” and “implementing different
policies according to specific situation of different cities and giving
category-based guidance” by the central government in 2019 has
greatly facilitated the steady and healthy development of the real
estate market, and expects that the overall development of the
PRC real estate market in 2020 will remain stable, which will be a
good opportunity to promote the diversified development in the real
estate market.
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Prospects and Arrangements (Continued)

Il. Future Prospects of the Group

Responding to the reiterated housing policies of “properties are for
accommodation, not for speculation” and “implementing different
policies according to specific situation of different cities and giving
category-based guidance” aiming to stabilising real estate market
and the actively promulgated national policy of coordinated regional
development in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River
Delta and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in
2019, the Group will, making best use of the circumstances,
actively facilitate the development and destocking of residential
properties targeting at rigid demand and improvement demand in
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Delta and the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area in 2020, thereby
speeding up cash inflow. Meanwhile, the Group will, as usual,
adhere to the strategic planning on industry diversification. Apart
from focusing on enhancing quality of high-end residential products
to maintain high margin, the Group will also continue to optimise
the tenant portfolio of the investment properties in order to increase
potential rental income. In the meantime, the Group will also
increase our investment in infrastructure, improve product quality,
and enhance customer loyalty. Leveraging the opportunities arising
from the increasing demand on tertiary services in the domestic
market, the Group will also continue to increase area under
management of our property management service and value-added
services, and strive to expand our brand management business
including global lifestyle brand “MAHA”, so as to promote the
Group’s strategy on the balanced development of light and heavy
assets.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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6.

Prospects and Arrangements (Continued)

lll. Operating Arrangements for 2020

i. Facilitating Iteration Upgrade on Optimisation of
Platform Commercial Model

On the basis of systemisation of commercial model and business
standards, the Group will promote the strategic development on
technology and intellectualisation featuring technology innovation
and light asset output. In respect of real estate projects, investment
development, commercial light asset output management, Hopson
Technology property development, motor financing and supply
chain information platform, the Group will focus on technology,
platform development as well as management output. Adhering to
the value of “benefiting both yourself and others”, the Group will
establish a “platform + individual” ecosystem, benefiting partners,
shareholders, customers and employees. Through the platform, the
Group will be able to achieve corporate visions on offering fair
opportunities, providing transparent information, maintaining
honesty and faithful operation, as well as implementing the principle
of more pay for more work. In respect of implementation and
building up of competitive strengths, customers, products and
service providers will all be connected through information
technology, internet and other technologies by means of
disintermediation, decentralisation and simplified approval, thereby
increasing transaction chances and lowering operating costs. At
the same time, the Group will also strive to nurture new businesses
so as to offer support for its strategic development. In 2020, under
the guidance of the Board, the Group will strive to achieve better
results on establishing capitalisation platform, community
technology service platform, as well as one-stop infrastructure and
design platform.

i. Focusing on Enhancing Corporate Capital
Management

There will be opportunities amid potential downturn of the
macroeconomic situation and the real estate market. The Group
now sees challenges to its ability to manage capital and returns. In
order to realise comprehensive platform and light asset operation,
the Group has to revitalise assets and improve capital utilisation,
and then attract injection of external capital to the Group, thus
exploiting the value of capital management platform and improving
returns of self-owned funds. In accordance with the requests of the
Board, the Group will continue to introduce strategic partners for
project cooperation, such as financial institutions including
insurance companies, wealth management companies or asset
management companies, as well as large national companies. The
Group is of the view that good corporate image and long-term
partnership can increase capital viscosity within the platform, lower
costs while enhancing efficiency, as well as mitigate the impacts
from external environment on our capital platform structure and
development.
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Prospects and Arrangements (Continued)

lll. Operating Arrangements for 2020 (Continued)

ii. Improving Efficiency Management and Enhancing
Internal Control Standards

Leveraging the reasonable and effective budget management, the
Group will implement practical and nodal management in different
aspects including cost, development and investment. The Group
will adhere to rigid management principle and strictly obey the cost
and expense rules. In respect of operation, the Group will strive to
implement our corporate management system and standardised
systems. Based on the defined working directions and annual
targets, different business teams will, through our management
system and effective informatisation procedures, implement full-
chain business management, thereby enhancing operation
management efficiency. In respect of mechanism and authorisation,
the Group will fully adjust the mobility of basic and intermediate
operations, enhance operating settlement and provide adequate
authorisation. Settlement will be conducted on monthly basis, while
appraisal will be conducted on quarterly basis. This will improve the
back office management and supportive services of the Group.
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Hopson Regal Riviera s 84 K IF S
23A, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
b R ARG & Fa K 2B & 23 5% R (#E B 100% # 25 )

T K R H’Hf
-l l-h
BEL Construction completed 72,794
z‘H 73‘" LA TRHEZTI Construction to be completed
- =FRIE in 2023 and after 248,843
—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiFEE 31st December 2019 321,637

Hopson Citta Eterna s 84 EF = E
107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
3b AR5 [ 3R R5 4L #5107 5% (B 100% 42 2 )

750K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 49,184
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLHHEE 31st December 2019 49,184

Hopson International Garden * &4 Bt E
31, Guanggumenwai Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
L REARG & B R PIINKET31 5% (HE B 100% 4 541 )

7oK
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 3,024
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBHztikEE 31st December 2019 3,024

Hopson No. 8 Royal Park ® &4 EE K85k
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (82.5% owned)

It REBBGEE EHKR (HE82.5%E )

7oK
Sqg.m.
2wl Construction completed 69,142
& 73’\ LA T W e T Construction to be completed
- —EBE-TF in 2020 53,835
- —E_ = in 2022 161,959
—:i:EE&L‘A % in 2023 and after 362,202
RZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HzZLHHE 31st December 2019 647,138
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Beijing Hopson Desheng Building » {t R &4 &R XE
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
1t 7 78 5 [ 128 B P AN K A 11 5% (B 100% 1 25)

HHHl

IR
Sg.m.
BERXET Construction completed 55,656
“ | = R-_ZE—AE+=A Land bank as at
‘ ! ‘ | =t+t—BztiEE 31st December 2019 55,656
Hopson Kylin Zone o & 4 BB+t
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West Avenue and Wangjing Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
TR HGEEREBARNENE R ERER (HH100% # %)
Sg.m.
Bl Construction completed 47,113
RZE—-—NE+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HBzLiREE 31st December 2019 47,113

Hopson Dreams World ¢ & 4 it &4

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River South, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

Jb 3@ M [ 78 5 TR OKOR 55 B0 48 2R S B A% 1 9545 B9 500K (#E B 100% 4 %1 )

75K
Sag.m.
BERET Construction completed 102,577
VN Construction to be completed
- ZE_TF in 2020 152,769
_ZE-=ERE in 2023 and after 3,883
A_ZE-NF+=A Land bank as at
=t—HBztiEE 31st December 2019 259,229
Yuhe Project ® £ B
Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
3b RS R A SR 80 9 R R 11 8RR (JE B 100% #E 2s)
IR
Sqg.m.
AN S Construction to be completed
- ZE_=FRUE in 2023 and after 10,000
—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—B2zLiEE 31st December 2019 10,000
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Hopson World Garden ¢ & 4ttt 5t & &

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugjiao, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

3t BN I 75 5 55 B S 1 55 48 F 500K (B 100% #E %)

Sqg.m.
Eloas Construction completed 23,741
R=ZZFE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+— Bzt E 31st December 2019 23,741

Hopson Regal Park e 84 & I% %

Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
b 7 N [ ok JIE SEAR L A (BE A 100% 25 )

75K
Sqg.m.
Elan Construction completed 40,724
R A TEET T Construction to be completed
- —E==-= in 2022 49,717
RZT—NE+=A Land bank as at
= + Azt 31st December 2019 90,441

Hopson Regal Court e S4BT S

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)

I RHBEEAREE215RHTREEE R (HEHF100%E %)

N
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 366,289
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at ' 1 - 2
=+—Az ks 31st December 2019 366,289 ] o r=s i -

Beijing Miyun Project » t R E1E B
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County (100% owned)
B E SN Z L K E R ] (BB 100% 7 2= )

N
Sqg.m.
BRI BB T Construction to be completed
—ZEBE-=EN% in 2023 and after 12,327
R-ZZE—NE+=-A Land bank as at
=+—BztFEE 31st December 2019 12,327
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Makeyan Project » SR8 B

Plot A (Southern Region) and Plot D (Southern Region) of Scientific Research
Site of National Environmental Protection Industrial Park, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

3 5 e B SRR AR B SR B [ LA AR St A SR R [ DR (R
(HAH100% K %5)

750K
Sqg.m.
B Construction completed 311,553
H%B(\L/{ THREZI Construction to be completed
$:$¢ in 2020 194,481
fg::i)&w& in 2023 and after 181,461
R=ZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+ —Hz:FEE 31st December 2019 687,495
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza s 84 ESHEES
Building 223, No. 28 Guangqu Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
1t R AR5 [ [ 2R 75 2855 223 5% 12 (A 100% HE 25)
Sg.m.
B 5L Construction completed 23,864
R-ZZT—NAF+=A Land bank as at
= t—HzLtifFEE 31st December 2019 23,864
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Hopson Regal e 84 %5
East of Wenquan East Road, north of National Highway 102,
Dachang Hui Autonomous County, Langfang City,
Hebei Province (90.91% owned)
A b A BB B T KRR (2] bk B 06§42 102 B3 & 4t AR SR 3R B SR A (¥ 5 90.91% # )

7K
Sq m.
LN Construction to be completed
-—IEB - in 2021 87,596
- T -=FERBE in 2023 and after 27,980
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2019 115,576
Bazhou Guajiazhuang Project ¢ 2 M# 318 B
500 metres east of Bazhou Government, east to Xlnghua Road,
west to Yunrui Yujing Community, south to Wenquan South Road,
and north to Yingbin Road (75% owned)
FINTATRBIS000K - REFER - FAEEIHE S/ -
AERREE HENEB(RA75%ER)
Sqg.m.
B AT B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
-:2:—¢ in 2021 164,805
=MEF= Land bank as at
= + A Ziﬂ’m}ﬁ{% 31st December 2019 164,805

Hongchang Project » Z &8 H

South of Fujia Road, north of Fukang Road, west of Longpan Road and east of
Yundan Road in Langfang City, Hebei Province (90% owned)

LA RS T = P UARE - ERE AL - AR DATE EREUR
(BB 90% %)

SR
Sg.m.
BRUATEMTEL Construction to be completed
_:g::i&u % in 2023 and after 180,844
R-ZE—NFE+_-A Land bank as at
=+ —Hz i E 31st December 2019 180,844
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Tianjin
RiE

V

18. Jingjin New Town

TR
Beijing
19. Hopson Belvedere Bay b=
EEERE

20. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

REALEBRBRANE

21. Tianjin Hopson International
Mansion
REAEBBRELS

22. Dongli Lake Project
REHIER

Baodi District
BRE
2

Tianjin
K2

Heping District
2 T

/ Nankai District /

Jingjin New Town o ZUEHTH

No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)

KEBEREBARFHEKTEE 5K (HEH2.3%#E %)

SR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 828,960
AN S Construction to be completed
- T —F in 2021 200,973
——F in 2022 67,740
B =F KA in 2023 and after 3,301,894
RZZT—-NAF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t— Bzt E 31st December 2019 4,399,567
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Hopson Belvedere Bay * &4 & S

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (100% owned)

REFLFERME BRI EERZO(EH100%E )

75K
Sqg.m.
25T Construction completed 10,313
R AT RET T Construction to be completed
- T —%F in 2021 33,736
RZZE-—NAF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BztikEE 31st December 2019 44,049

Tianjin Hopson International Tower » X2 &£ BB KE

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)

RKEMFEELAFHRBALERIAO QL LEHR) (H98.9%# i)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 65,427
R TERMTT Construction to be completed
- ZE_=FRIE in 2023 and after 70,002
R=ZZFE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—RHzLIHFHE 31st December 2019 135,429

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion ¢ X3Z2& 4B A E

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

RZRE R EEEREKEK FIEE R O (HH 100% # %)

75K
Sqg.m.
R TRMTIT Construction to be completed
- E - =FRLAE in 2023 and after 111,206
RZZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzIHHE 31st December 2019 111,206

Dongli Lake Project » RE#1E H

West of Dongli Lake, north of Dongli Avenue, East Chitu of Chitu Town,
Dongli District, Tianjin (100% owned)

RERBRARTERLINE  REKRBLAL - REHIATE (FEH100%E5)

5K
Sqg.m.
PR LA TR fE =T Construction to be completed
T -=ERE in 2023 and after 1,130,000
RZZ—NE+=H Land bank as at
=+t—BzLMfFEE 31st December 2019 1,130,000

BEAREEARAH

ZE-AFFER
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Dalian
KiE

23. Hopson Regal Seashore
AETILES

_/ Dalian City Centre
REMHE

_____

Nt
_

Huang Hai

=5

Hopson Regal Seashore e §47LILFES
808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lvshunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
N i JIE O [ 811 8B B Jb B 808 5% (HE A 100% 4 )

40

750K
Sg.m.
S Construction completed 110,671
BRATEBET Construction to be completed
—ZE-_=F K% in 2023 and after 131,883
R-_TE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzZz L E 31st December 2019 242 554
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Tailyuan
KR

o
§' Provincial Government §'
B unicipal B ’ . 2 z 24. Hopson International City
§ umcn%aﬁ Ro?vernmen c§ o A A BRI
& = =
3 o
z s
= » i
o [o] 3
= g .
®© =
& *H
] =
3 &
. 5
\{g — Yingpan Street
= ot s
=® %
o
g
Changfeng Street & & 1§
Shanxi University
)
Xuefu Street 2 fF #4 WEAER

Hopson International City » & 4 B F& 35

West of Bingzhou Road, east of Tiyu Road and north of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

PR R ITIMNEECATE - BB BRIAR - — & BT AL (FEA 100% # 25)

K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 41,310
TR A TR T Construction to be completed
- T —F in 2021 92,390
_CE-=ERE in 2023 and after 164,876
RZZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HBzLMFEE 31st December 2019 298,576

AERAREBERLARA —ZE—AEEHE 4



Qinhuangdao
ZEE

25. Hopson Seasky Villa
G ERE

42

Hopson Seasky Villa ® &4 X &1

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, northwestern coast of
Liaodong Bay (51% owned)

FEREALE EEWERXIAE HEBS1%ER)

5K
Sg.m.
(S Construction Completed 57,950
BRATERBTI Construction to be completed
- ZE_=FRE in 2023 and after 1,213,884
R-_TE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzZtHEE 31st December 2019 1,271,834
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Tangshan
B

26. Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian)
A W8 BE Az 2 ( ﬁ;‘ﬁ /—‘>
< Caofeidian campus of REBERBR (LS
%; North China University of
D, Science and Technology
2 EBT RS
2 ELARE
_ Boha Avgnue
% pisAB
w
S
N
=3
M-
g %
l‘m =
S % »;:%
[} S 2
Q
. R xngangAvene
> s KB

Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) e &4 B E% = (BELH)

Caofeidian New City, east of Xiaging Road, and south of Bohai Avenue
(100% owned)

BB EIFRIAR 98 RB AR (FEHE100%# &)

R
Sg.m.

BEL Construction completed 4,420
BRUATEMTET Construction to be completed
-—ET-—F in 2021 211,707
- —E-_=FERKN%E in 2023 and after 216,164
RZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLIHFHE 31st December 2019 432,291

SHEAREBEERAT —E-NEFH
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27.
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30.

31.

32.

38.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Hopson Town

B EM IR

Hopson Golf Mansion
EESBRRRE

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
SERIURERE

Hopson Lantern Villa
HERAER

Hopson International Garden
SHEBERIER

Hopson Dongjiao Villa
G HERRIE

Hopson Yuting Garden
SHEEER

Hopson International Plaza
SHEERES

Hopson Fortune Plaza
SHEMEES

Hopson Guangfuhui
EHEERE

Hopson Times Garden
SRS

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence
SHEMEBRAE

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
FBRERIER




Hopson Town e & 4 3 334
518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBRTE L EK5185% (A 100% #E o5)

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 23,369
1R A TR 5 T Construction to be completed
—ZEBE_=FERUE in 2023 and after 727
RZE—NF+=HA Land bank as at
=t+—HzZIHFE 31st December 2019 24,096

Hopson Golf Mansion « 84 SH AR E
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£S5 H R T H B 109555 (B 100% 1 25)

7oK
Sqg.m.
ElEan Construction completed 855
RZZE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HZ:HHE 31st December 2019 855

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan ® &4 RIUREE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
B AL B SR R 0 T MR [ OB B 1189 5% (4B B 100% #E 25)

N
Sqg.m.
B 5E T Construction completed 77,116
R=ZZFE—NFE+=A Land bank as at
=+—Bz LG 31st December 2019 77,116

Hopson Lantern Villa ¢ &4 B E

199 Nong, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)

FBE RS FIR ALK 1997 (HH 100% 1 %)

Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 4,150
RZZE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HAzIHFHE 31st December 2019 4,150

Hopson International Garden ¢ & £ BB 1
1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)
BRI & R K BB K 1290 5% (B 94% 7 )

7K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 5,858
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Bz LG 31st December 2019 5,858

ERIREBERAR

R E 8 E A

Ao aa 4 Ny ¥y
ERLS PRI o §

&

L

—E-NFEER

45



Hopson Dongjiao Villa ® &4 R X8 31| £F
7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
AR R R A0 6997 7 5% (5 100% #E )

5K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 20,973
RZZF—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiifEE 31st December 2019 20,973

Hopson Yuting Garden o & £ £ E
99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
FBSHEESHESE K (B 100% &)

750K
Sag.m.
B e L Construction completed 6,375
R=ZTE—NLFE+=A Land bank as at
=t—HztiFEE 31st December 2019 6,375
Hopson International Plaza » &4 Bl E15
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
L% EE2924 5 (# B 100% 1 &)
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 367,224
RZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2019 367,224
Hopson Fortune Plaza » &4 8 E &5
488, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BB 4T O [ FR AT 8 48357 (B 100% 7 2%
TRAK
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 53,357
R=ZTE—NLFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzITHHE 31st December 2019 58,357

Hopson Guangfuhui * &4 EEE
Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBMIREEME2E55 (HHF100%#E 5)

TR
Sg.m.
S Construction completed 94,567
N-—ZB—hE+—-A8 Land bank as at
=+ —Bz i 31st December 2019 94,567
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Hopson Times Garden * &4 Al # — 55

Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Town, Sanlin Town, Pudong New District,
Shanghai (100% owned)

AR R = M= MEHEA14-1 (BB 100% 1 2)

7K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 6,575
RZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BztiFEE 31st December 2019 6,575

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence * 848 &85 A 6
Lot E25, New District, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan,

Shanghai (100% owned)
B8 & 1L B B R A7 MV K 8 8 [ E25 (B 100% 1 #1)

I 75 0K
Sqg.m.
Eioas Construction completed 65,144
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HAzZLIHFHE 31st December 2019 65,144

Shanghai Tea Factory Project ¢ L33 E 18 H
No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EETISEREE T 18005% (% A 100% 42 25 )

7oK
Sqg.m.
HERIA T BT T Construction to be completed
—ZEBE-=FERE in 2023 and after 37,366
R-ZBE—AE+=HA Lank bank as at
=t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2019 37,366

BEAREEARAH
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g

40. Hopson World Trade Centre
MM ERE D

Hopson World Trade Centre ¢ #i & 4 Bl & 0

No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
T P84 [ K B LU B8 327 5% (B 95% %)

Sg.m.
BExL Construction completed 87,456
RZZE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzITHHE 31st December 2019 87,456
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Kunshan
£

41. Hopson International Garden
& EBRIER

Hopson International Garden » &4 BB EE

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan City

(100% owned)
B2 L T J&) T R 50 B B A 55 BT 9B R DA A (HE B 100% R %)
7K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 6,658
TR A TR e T Construction to be completed
-—ETF in 2020 32,565
- T —%F in 2021 222,423
—m—— in 2022 149,368
_—E-=ERLE in 2023 and after 5,099
RZT—NFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HZLHHE 31st December 2019 416,113

BEAREEARAH
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Hopson International City ® & 4= B B
No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
% $R8 A 58 B B8 155 (B 100% 1 75 )

75K

Sg.m.

T Construction completed 23,006
RZZE-NF+=A Land bank as at

=t+t—HztH#E 31st December 2019 23,006




Cixi

43. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
AERMN BB

The Town of Hangzhou Bay ¢ & 4 471N /& B B2 #7380

Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (95% owned)
ZEORAU N 2 3 [ 7 b 36 (5 95% i 7)

7K
Sqg.m.
25T Construction completed 64,838
BHRATEMTEL Construction to be completed
-—E_TF in 2020 109,161
— = ==t in 2021 480,995
—E - in 2022 1,150,948
L E-=ERE in 2023 and after 639,854
R-ZE-AE+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HztHfFEE 31st December 2019 2,445,796
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Taicang
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44, Hopson Sea Block ¢ ?9,\3
ABEME /,% ‘ﬁf’ 5,
7%, A
N
45. Hopson Crystal Garden & °'><,G
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QQ
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3
Liujiagang Town
Bl EHE

Hopson Sea Block ® & 4 £
No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)
K72 Be)L % 56885% (%A 100% #E &)

AR
Sg.m.
R TRMTI Construction to be completed
- T —%F in 2021 175,958
el in 2022 99,389
R=ZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BztiREE 31st December 2019 275,347
Hopson Crystal Garden ® &4 R Z1E55
No. 27, Qiushui Road, Fugiao Town, Taicang City, Jiangsu Province
(100% owned)
TLERA KR T F R EIOKET 27 5% (B 100% # %)
Sqg.m.
VN Construction to be completed
- T =FRAE in 2023 and after 89,917
RZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztimFEE 31st December 2019 89,917
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AEBIEE ¥
4
55. Hopson Regal Villa X
AETmRILG .
54
56. Hopson Belvedere Bay
= i E % i .i.'~. 3 q 5 Guangzhou
= = . - -~~..§ ’: {:'i”{;,,, Tlanhei R;g!)v{v;yy?tatlon Science City
57. Hopson Plaza Ba'Y;"EDg‘"“ ‘\{;f‘ ‘-Q RNBRH
N = 48 = = "'k:—'i::-:;.:;-w
& EES {/4/’ . \ Tig 1‘e District R =
= ST S
58. Hopson Xijing Banshan P AN R i S
AaEESF¥IL Yuexiu District N 5 7 'ZV.Z‘Z'.—:-:;;,,,
BBE \ “ T -
59. Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park AN % Metro Line No.5 46 ]
f}k 51 %4 Tﬁ I/iE.\‘J % Dongshan District \s‘ ‘. HHE AR
HWE -
60. Hopson Regal International m‘-l N
AEFRER : N
X Pearl River ZfST
61. Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa %
s = )
B EHL BB 64)
5 "
62. Qianjin Road Project X
)‘Em 5& E% I8 B Haizhu District N
BHE '
63. Hopson TIT International Industrial X Guangzhou
Park i =2 3 M
EHETITEIRR & % x
Metro Line No.3 : G‘uang-zholf
O TR G e e S
= T H IR X
¥
. Panyu District | 48 65
65. Hopson Yijing Mingyuan EBE o &= o
EEBERERD
= R R
66. Hopson Joy Mansion
CEEN

N

Hopson Gallopade Park « &4 %S E

No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)

J& M 2R AT [ A 1L K 38 190557 (HE 5 95% #E 25 )

750K
Sqg.m.
ExT Construction completed 1,184
HRATEMTEL Construction to be completed
-—F-— in 2022 90,548
- B -=ERE in 2023 and after 230,555
RZZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HAzZIHFE 31st December 2019 322,287
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Hopson Pleasant View Garden » &4 2 S 2E

No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (94.98% owned)

&N/ R & M K 38 R 1028 5% (#E5 94.98% 4 2 )

T AR
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 9,121
HﬂﬁALA T BT T Construction to be completed
-ZTTF in 2020 1,906
——E=FRLAE in 2023 and after 156,734
—T-NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—B2Z LB 31st December 2019 167,761
Hopson Huanan New City &4 2/
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
[ N 25 8 [ B g K 4B (HE B 100% #E 55 )
Sqg.m.
BERET Construction completed 151,032
R A TR T Construction to be completed
B -=FRKLAE in 2023 and after 130,190
RZFE—-—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+ —HziEE 31st December 2019 281,222

Hopson Gallopade Park — South Court e &4 B S/E%
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)

J& M R 18 A L A8 190 5% (HE B 95% #E 25 )

E- Sqg.m.
:
:", B 5L Construction completed 40,481
R-ZE—NE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiifFEE 31st December 2019 40,481
Hopson Regal Riviera * 84 E5IF S
No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
BN 8 IR I 2 M B8R = 51 5% (BB 99.5% 1 25 )
Sag.m.
BERET Construction completed 104,574
5 5 LA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
- E - =F R in 2023 and after 533,290
—ZEZ—-hE+=-H Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2019 637,864

Hopson Regal Palace » &4 % S #%
Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
&N 78 TR [ 7R e M K8 (S 100% R %)

: 7K
= Sqg.m.
E <L Construction completed 4,556
E R=ZFE—NLE+=A Land bank as at

- =+—BztiiEs 31st December 2019 4,556
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Hopson Yijing Huayuan ¢ § 4B S E 5
Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JE M58 TR 1 BR 2 7 B (BB 100% #E &%)

Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 20,338
RZZE—NFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HAzZIHFE 31st December 2019 20,338

Hopson Zhujiang International Tower o & 4 Bk T B B2 KB

No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned) :

BN S R B EEFE 114 11655 (BB 100% 1 71) 2 E :
oK Fisract B
Sqg.m. S -

BExRT Construction completed 95,746 A SHHE

R=F—NF+=A Land bank as at =

=+t— Az LA 31st December 2019 95,746 - -

Hopson Yunshan Xijing e 84 ZEILES
Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
BINEEEEMAREIL (HEE70% )

Sqg.m.
B Construction completed 8,435
RZT-—NE+=A Land bank as at
=+—Hz i E 31st December 2019 8,435

Hopson Regal Villa e &4 F S 1L
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
& N KA [ R 48 BK (HE B 100% 4 43 )

7K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 14,842
1A TS B R 5 T Construction to be completed
- —E_=FERN%E in 2023 and after 319,455
—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+t —BzLHMfFEE 31st December 2019 334,297

Hopson Belvedere Bay * &4 & S #&

Huangai Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)

BN IL RS R RE = LA KE (B 100% # 25)

T 75K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 208,524
RZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz i E 31st December 2019 208,524
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Hopson Plaza « 84 &%

Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to
the governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou
(100% owned)

BB IREEMAErREEREER 8RR BT E) (¥EHF100%#E 2)

IR
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 187,095
RZZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHEE 31st December 2019 187,095
Hopson Xijing Banshan « §4£ES¥ U
Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)
J& ) E P [ 140 48 SR AL A el /K JEB (B 5 95.5% HE %1 )
AR
Sg.m.
BRUATEMTEL Construction to be completed
_CE-=ERPE in 2023 and after 410,010
RZZE-—NAF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBzZ LB 31st December 2019 410,010

Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park * BT R B EE
Machao Industry Estate, Jiufo Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)
&M LB 3E S B T3 AT (M B 55% 5 )

Sqg.m.
N S Construction to be completed
- TE-_=FEFE in 2023 and after 193,513
RZZT-NAF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBzxiFEE 31st December 2019 193,513

Hopson Regal International » &4 % 5 BB
No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
&8 Bk 1= 2 = P 3K 18855 (A 100% 1 73 )

BEF P R

750K
Sag.m.
BT Construction completed 23,908
R=ZT—NFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiEE 31st December 2019 23,908
Hopson Hushan Guoiji Villa » & 4 34 1L Bl B
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
Ik TR T E SRR E KB (HEB 100% 4 ) sk
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 84,432
5 7 LA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
- B _THF in 2020 121,388
- T —F in 2021 37,845
- —=E - in 2022 441,866
- —E_=F P& in 2023 and after 210,472
R-ZZE—hE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztmFEE 31st December 2019 896,003
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Qianjin Road Project » A IE B
South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
&N 8 TR [ Al 3 B LA FE (75 100% 4 25

7R
Sqg.m.
R A TR T Construction to be completed
- B _=FKIAE in 2023 and after 208,863
RZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2019 208,863

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park « &4 TITEIRREXE
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
BN A B [ 7 28 A 8B KR AT (M A 65% 4 71 )

K
Sqg.m.
B TEMTEL Construction to be completed
_CE-CZERE in 20283 and after 375,334
RZZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiREE 31st December 2019 375,334

TIT Project (International Park)  TITIE B (§l E &)
No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
JB& W T8 R [ 3778 HR BR 480 5% (¥ A 65% 1 7 )

AR
Sqg.m.
R TEMTETL Construction to be completed
- T -_=F KM% in 2023 and after 788,425
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HBzZLtHFEE 31st December 2019 788,425

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan « & £ £ % %

Adjacent to the Family Healthcare Hospital of the Province, Xingnan Avenue,
Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BMESEEE NBEGEDNER S (HH100%#E50m)

75K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 15,218
P LA T 52 T Construction to be completed
——E_=F KRB in 2023 and after 1,318,989
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Bz LG 31st December 2019 1,334,207

Hopson Joy Mansion ¢ §4 % A8
No. 5, Boai East Road, Dali Town, Nanhai District, Foshan City (16.97% owned)
#8111 TH B 8 R X $E 1 B R BR 5 5% (HEH 16.97% )

75K
Sqg.m.
R TERST Construction to be completed
——EBE-=FRIAE in 2023 and after 45,029
R=ZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLHHEE 31st December 2019 45,029

SEAREEERDA
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Huizhou
=W

67. Hopson Yujing Bay
CEINEY

68. Hopson Regal Bay

AN == AN
SHETRE

69. Hopson International New City

& EEBE M

70. Zhujiang New Industry
Innovation Park
WIFBHEXEEER

71. Shidai City Project
IR B

72. Hopson Xiaogui Bay

&ENER

73. Hopson Seaside Garden
SHBET

74. Hopson Yushan Garden

BEMEILTE
) ?@06% 75. Xin Yu Village Project
X, Dongijiang S HEMIER
" Industrial e
% NS
9
Zengcheng  Huizhou Municipal
1 45 Government
M T BT

Huizhou

% =M
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Hopson Yujing Bay » &4 S &
No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
N T K E BB AN R BE 1 5% (¥ B 100% i 25)

750K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 60,375
VN Construction to be completed
— el s in 2021 170,775
— == in 2022 238,089
- TEBE-=FERE in 20283 and after 1,134,272
AZT—NFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzZLIHFE 31st December 2019 1,603,511
Hopson Regal Bay * 84 % 5%
No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
BT R & — 258 (BEA 100% 4 %)
75K
Sqg.m.
B 5E T Construction completed 62,083
R A TR T Construction to be completed
- TEBE-_=FERE in 20283 and after 113,070
RZZB-—NAFE+ZA Land bank as at
:-1— Az i #FE 31st December 2019 175,153

Hopson International New City * & 4 Bl BR 73
The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
FMKOAFRLE=IRFES (FEH100%#E %)

7oK
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 10,279
HERIA T BT T Construction to be completed
T —F in 2021 209,021
- ZE_=FRE in 2023 and after 257,221
Z—-NF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BztiFEE 31st December 2019 476,521

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park « BIH R EEAIZ
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)

SR T % B K F A K (BB 100% 4 25)

75K
Sqg.m.
A TR T T Construction to be completed
_ZE_=FRE in 2023 and after 1,383,667
—NWE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBztMEE 31st December 2019 1,383,667
Shidai City Project B 1518 B
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
N 35 8 7 [ 22 KR R b R (HE 5 100% 4 %5 )
750K
Sqg.m.
R A TR fE T T Construction to be completed
- T —%F in 2021 281,700
-—E - in 2022 107,999
—:%:—i&»ﬂé in 2023 and after 1,131,062
RZZE—-hAE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHFE 31st December 2019 1,520,761

ERIREBERAR
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Hopson Xiaogui Bay &4 /N &
The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
AT ERE % B AN E R AR E 7 A (%8 100% # 55)

Sqg.m.
Bxl Construction completed 122,525
RATERBTET Construction to be completed
e in 2021 337,105
B F in 2022 112,520
- —E-=—FRKPE in 2023 and after 1,316,759
R-—ZZT—hFE+=-A1 LLand bank as at
=t+t—HzLTHHE 31st December 2019 1,888,909

Hopson Seaside Garden » &4 8 & iEE

Land located at Changkeng, Yapojiao, Chuan’ao Village, Renshan Town,
Huizhou City (92.19% owned)

BN EMBEN Z R ZEARIUIME (FEH92.19% E 2)

75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 9,722
RZE—NF+=A Land bank as at
=+ —BzLiEE 31st December 2019 9,722
Hopson Yushan Garden « &4 fHILTEE
East of Luofu Avenue, Changning Town, Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province (100% owned)
BREMEEREHEZNBRA (BB 100%#Em)
75K
Sqg.m.
BRUATEMTT Construction to be completed
-—E - —F in 2021 69,764
——E-=F KA in 2023 and after 22,910
R=ZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHEE 31st December 2019 92,674
Xin Yu Village Project » $T& 18 B
Emerging Industrial Park, West District, Huizhou City
(Northern Lot of Shangyi Village) (59.4% owned)
B MNP R EERE (- AN ER) (HF59.4% )
75K
Sg.m.
R TRBTI Construction to be completed
- —E-=FRIAE in 2023 and after 471,119
NR-_TE—AFE+=A Land bank as at
=t—BztifEE 31st December 2019 471,119




Zhongshan
31

b
76. Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court 5
AERITBRR @Q}%\
37
77. Hopson Xijing Garden . . &=
A R IE R e %
FAL A N
- N
78. Zhongshan Rainbow Project .Y');;E ::Ha/EPark 3 %
LR A8 B - o %,
(_:,0‘l Q\p
\ S
R Ly %,
[ )
[
ZhongshanPark
A
Zhongshan
Al

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court e 4/ L F &%
Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)

FR L T KA A B [ B e 12 (B 100% 1 23 )

750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 76,563
RZZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Bztif#EE 31st December 2019 76,563
Hopson Xijing Garden « S84 ES £ E
Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (84.7% owned)
LT R RS (84 7% )
750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 63,372
LA T 58 T Construction to be completed
- T _-_F in 2022 151,695
- =F KM% in 2023 and after 46,299
RZT—-—NE+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BzLthfFEE 31st December 2019 261,366
Zhongshan Rainbow Project » #1141 18 B
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
R R R AT AR B R (R G 95% 1 5 )
75K
Sqg.m.
R TERETT Construction to be completed
- —E_=FKLE in 2023 and after 426,136
R-ZZTE—-hE+=-A Land bank as at
=t+—HZzIHFE 31st December 2019 426,136
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Shenzhen
3l

79. Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park
YR ETEE

Pingxi Road'
wEg |
|‘ Longcheng Avenue
RREAE
\
\
\

\
:
Yanlong Avenue
A I
I
I
I
Shenzhen 1
R | V
[} ~
I
[}
|
]
I
/ Longgang Interchange
/ RV
7
td

»
#  Shuanglong
# £

Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park ¢ i#3IIB% T #£E
No. 53 Xiantian Road, Xin Sheng Village, Longgang Road Office, Longgang

District, Shenzhen (100% owned)
A3 T BE e I B AT B I BT AE A L B BE 53 5% (S 100% #E 7% )
oK
Sqg.m.
B Construction completed 59,998
RZT—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BZLHhFEE 31st December 2019 59,998
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Jiangmen
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80. Hopson Yunshan Regal

AETUFR

Jiangmen
P

BT

enuany uswbuelr

7

)

2 /\\
\—

09~
@%@a

Duruap g,
outh R
& ﬁ @ Oad

Hopson Yunshan Regal e &4 Z L% 5

West to Haojing Park, northeast to the intersection of Qunhua Road and
Duruan North First Road, Duruan Town, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen City
(100% owned)

TP 0T 2 i B sE R =R B 78 A - R¥EE IR B A frdt — B8 A2 X A R AL A
(¥ H100% #E 2= )

AR
Sqg.m.
N Construction to be completed
- =FRIAE in 2023 and after 207,735
RZZE—NAF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHEHE 31st December 2019 207,735
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81. Phoenix Shanshui Shangjing
[l JEL L 7K i 3%

Li River
BT

Phoenix Shanshui Shangjing * BlELLL 7k 1% &

The intersection of Shanshui Avenue and Lansheng Road, Xiucheng District,
Yangshuo (42.76% owned)

5 A 8 930 [ L) 7K K38 N B8 s B AR BB B (M5 42.76% HE )

75K
Sqg.m.
NS Construction to be completed
_—E-EF in 2020 90,527
- FE - in 2022 115,791
CEC=ERE in 2023 and after 146,430
RZF—NF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2019 352,748




Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December - & —
T

2019 are as follows:

Investment Property Factsheet

RE

AE+=A=+—8

S E—-—BER

SEREME

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location 8= EEAThER B Al & BHEEER
(sq.rr:n.)
(3 5 K)
Beijing Hopson Desheng Building R B K R AL B 100% Office/ 57,074
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street o4 [ retail and carparking
Xicheng District EBRISMRE 115 WA
Beijing, Mainland China ERE EREBEAE TEREES
Hopson Kylin Xintiandi A K B b R 100% Commercial/ 48,694
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West sik5 @ shop and carparking
Avenue and Wangjing Street EREBREmAHE EEY
Chaoyang District LRERER R e
Beijing, Mainland China & E BB R
Makeyan Project =GN R ) 100% Commercial/ 624,296
Plot A (Southern Region) and B[R office and carparking
Plot D (Southern Region) of RIRIRE ¥ B 2 BHf S Y
Scientific Research Site of A $h A 58 7 [ 2 ]
National Environmental Protection D 38 /@ & 7
Industrial Park SEIER
Tongzhou District
Beijing, Mainland China
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza A B K R L IR 100% Commercial/ 23,864
Building 223 A office and retail
No. 28 Guangau Road & 22 5% 28 5k 223 5 1% CEY4
Chaoyang District EETEUERES PAZTpEE
Beijing, Mainland China s
Hopson One Shopping Mall 7 E K AL 100% Commercial/retail/ 308,490
No. 21 Dawang Road West R office and carparking
Chaoyang District FEARE 2158 CHEEE
Beijing, Mainland China A EERE Y D WRAERIEEL
Hopson International Plaza ol fE £& 100% Commercial/office/ 313,161
292 Jiefang 1508 & retail and carparking
Yangpu District 2921 45 EEYE TS
Shanghai, Mainland China AEBEBES TERE ﬁiﬁ
Hopson Fortune Plaza AR K BE 100% Commercial/office/ 53,614
483, Feihong Road 8T A & retail and carparking
Hongkou District FE 4T BK 483 5% NS
Shanghai, Mainland China AEEMERES " ¥/§1 $g
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre B K B T T & 95% Commercial/office/ 92,418
No. 327, Tianmushan Road M retail and carparking
Xihu District Fispi = YN
Hangzhou X B 1543275 ﬁg%%/ g ﬁé
Zhejiang Province, Mainland China MME LR E D
Hopson Zhujiang International Tower REAEERE 100% Commercial/office/ 95,378
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road BN retail and carparking
Yuexiu District WA= = My N
Guangzhou BMEEI114Z2 11657 ﬁ;ég?é%é
Guangdong Province, Mainland China AEHIEEREAE
Hopson Plaza REAEERA 100% Commercial/ 163,362
Guangzhou Avenue South BEM retail and carparking
Haizhu District BIRE SEYE
Guangzhou BN AER TEREEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China AEES
Hopson Regal International FEAEERE 100% Commercial/ 22,805
No. 188 Changgang Mid Road E M retail and carparking
Haizhu District BRE P
Guangzhou 2 P B% 188 5% = EE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China EEFTREAR
Hopson Gallopade Plaza PR AREERA 95% Commercial/ 25,739
No. 1138 West of Zhongshan Avenue E M retail and carparking
Tianhe District KA & EEYA
Guangzhou LR AE P 1138 5% TER(EEE
Guangdong Province, Mainland China EHEBRES
Shenzhen Wilcon Industrial Park o [ K B R | 100% _ Office 59,998
No. 53 Xiantian Road HE [ [@ HRE
Xin Sheng Village BE [ i I
Longgang Road Office AN
Longgang District lli FB P& 535%
Shenzhen, Mainland China AYBR TXEE
Tianjin Hopson International Tower AR K B KRR T 98.94% Commercial/ 97,816
Interchange of Fuan Main Street MEE QL RBE) office and carparking
and Xingan Road RBEAFHEERZERO n B
Heping District RESHBEBRKE MREREES
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge), Mainland China
Hai Zhu Zhi Hui Ke Ji Yuan B A e N T 0%" Commermql{ofﬂce 70,583
South Area and North Area g N ¥ /PAE
Ruibao Yishe Industrial Zone and Bt I¥ERE
Ruibao Yishe Ruixing Industrial Zone FE - JdbE A
Haizhu District hE —HHE TR
Guangzhou, Mainland China 8 IR BE B E
* Under lease arrangement *RIBEHEELTH
EERAREBERAA —NEFH
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Directors’ Profile

EEEN

Executive Directors

),

/-

17T

ESE

CHU Mang Yee (resigned as the Chairman of the Board and as an executive Director with effective from 10th
January 2020), aged 59, has been a director of the Company since 1997. He is the Chairman of the Company
and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty years’ experience in trading, construction,
property investment and development. He is also an Honoured Citizen of Meizhou of Guangdong Province and
the Vice Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the
sole director of Sounda Properties Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the father of Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and
Deputy Chairman of the Board.

KRERBA_Z-_ZF-ATAEHEESSIRRATES) 95 B WA ELFHEARAES-
BRARAEFEAREMER —(IBIMA - REEEES ZE DMERERFRIAEFA_TF
BR-FNREREEMNTRETRIBERCERERRABEARCASR - REERTEBXERLAAZ
M—EE RESSFMARKIEXNVE HEEXERDAR/ARBTAZIBERER -RIE/ARBIREER
BEIR ALAERWTEFREF SR IFABBRLL 2R -

CHU Kut Yung (appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 10th January 2020), aged 32, graduated
from the Renmin University of China, majoring in Finance. She joined the Company in 2008 and held the position
as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. Ms. Chu was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
November 2011 and was appointed the Executive Vice President of the Company in March 2012. Ms. Chu had
been the Deputy Chairman of the Company since 11 July 2013. Ms. Chu has solid experience in investment and
management.

SEREA_ZF_ZF-ATHREZTRELGIR) 25 FERNTHEARABERBHEE KL
TRZZEZNFENARRA RIBBNFE_T —FEFEHYPE R —F+ - AEZER
ARBRTEE R _T-—_FZARZERARATFKELE KRLLtB T =ZFtA+—HEE
ZERARFBERE KRTABERENREREBLER -

X1 Ronggui, aged 48, received his bachelor’s degree in economics at Hunan College of Finance and Economics
and his master’s degree in management at South China University of Technology. Mr. Xi has over 18 years of
management experience in the banking industry in the PRC, focusing on operations, risk and business
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xi had worked at China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCBC”) for
23 years. He had served as general manager of the business department, the Guangdong branch of CCBC from
2009 to 2014, and his last held position was vice president of the same branch of CCBC. Mr. Xi has been
appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1st September 2018.
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Directors’ Profile (continued)
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AU Wai Kin, aged 63, has been an executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Au graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou and
has over twenty years’ experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real estate investment and property
development.
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XIE Bao Xin, aged 39, joined the Group in July 2002 and was the General Manager of Finance and Investment
Management Centre of the Group and the members of the Group established in the Guangzhou District. He
graduated from the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan (University) College and obtained a Bachelor degree in
Economics. He has over ten years of experience in real estate and finance management. Mr. Xie has been
appointed as executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 11th July 2013. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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BAO Wenge, aged 42, is a Vice President of the Group and Chairman of business investment department. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Tianjin University of Commerce and
obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. Mr. Bao joined the Group in 2000. He has worked in the real estate
industry for over 20 years and successfully carried out several large-scale real estates projects. He is familiar with
the operation of commercial properties, office buildings, residential projects, and hotel and property management.
He has over 20 years of experience in real estate operation and management, marketing and operation
management. Mr. Bao has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company since 18th November 2014.
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[)Hectors’ProfHe(conﬂnued)

ZEEENa

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFATES

LEE Tsung Hei David, Chris, BBS, JP, aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director. David C Lee is the Chairman
and Managing Director of DH Group Investment Ltd, DH Capital (HK) Ltd, DS Capital Group Co Ltd, DS Transport
Interchange Development Ltd and Guangzhou DHC Investment Advisory Ltd. He was qualified as a Chartered Valuation
Surveyor in 1973 and was registered as an Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the
Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a
former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong
Kong Housing Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former director
of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a former member of the Land and Building Advisory Committee, and the Steering Committee on review of the Urban
Renewal Strategy. He is currently a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property
Advisory Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of the Board since 1998. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee; and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
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TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr.
Tan currently serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm and is also an independent non-executive
director of a local bank. Prior to this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the Hong Kong investment
banking business of Barclays Capital. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from City University in the United States of
America. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in
the banking industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior positions in several major and
international financial institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a wide breadth of
experience in corporate and investment banking as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee of the Company.
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CHING Yu Lung, aged 50, has been an independent non-executive Director since 1st July 2015. Mr. Ching currently
serves as the chief financial officer of a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ching also serves as the
independent non-executive director of each of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (stock code: 737), Ngai Hing
Hong Company Limited (stock code: 1047) and Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93), all
of them are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He obtained a bachelor's degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an executive master degree in business administration
from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 20086, respectively. Mr. Ching is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 27 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.
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Senior Management's Profile
SREEEBGEN

ZHENG Yaoqin, aged 58, is a Vice President of the Group and Chairman of Guangdong Hechuang Construction Company
Limited. Mr. Zheng graduated from Guangdong University of Technology. He is a national first-class registered architect and
senior engineer. He served as the General Manager of Guangdong Hanjian Construction Company Limited (& 58 §% & T 12 484
BAMR A7) and the General Manager of Guangdong Zhujiang Engineering Construction Limited (E R kT T2 42:%& 8 A R A 7).
He joined our Group as Deputy General Manager of Northern China regional office of the Group and the General Manager of
Guangdong Hechuang Construction Company Limited in 2015. Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in real estate development,
engineering management and cost control.
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HE Hui, aged 39, is an Assistant President of the Group. Ms. He graduated from University of International Business and
Economics with a Bachelor degree. She joined our group in 2004 and has served as Financing Manager, Vice General Manager
and then General Manager of Investment and Financial Management Centre. Ms. He has wide exposure in financial
management.
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Cai Zhonghui, aged 40, is an Assistant President of the Group and the Executive Vice President of the Business Management
Sector. Mr. Cai graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with a master degree. He joined the Group in 2007. He has engaged in
marketing, residential and commercial operations, investment and other work in the Group. He took lead in the management of
a number of residential real estate and commercial complex projects, and has extensive investment and management
experience.
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Financial Review
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Turnover

(i)

Recognised Sales

The Group recognised a turnover of HK$18,601 million in 2019, up
40% comparing to HK$13,294 million of 2018. The overall GFA
delivered by the Group in 2019 was 730,282 square metres (2018:
466,623 square metres), which mainly included Hopson No. 8
Royal Park in Beijing, The Town of Hangzhou Bay, Hopson
International New City in Huizhou, Hopson Asset Seascape
Residence in Shanghai and Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa in
Guangzhou.

The overall average selling price in respect of delivered and
completed properties was RMB15,362 (2018: RMB15,431) per
square metre, which decreased by 0.5% as compared with 2018.

Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group recorded a total of RMB21,258 million
contracted sales (2018: RMB14,975 million), up 42% year on year.
As affected by market factors and the structure of product sales,
the average contracted selling price increased 11% to RMB12,865
per square metre (2018: RMB11,547 per square metre).

Fourteen property projects were on sale in Guangzhou and the
contracted sales were RMB5,698 million in 2019, representing 27%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. The major projects
included Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa, Hopson Belvedere Bay,
Hopson Xijing Garden and Hopson Regal Riviera.

The contracted sales in Beijing and Tianjin were RMB3,687 million,
representing 17% of the total contracted sales of the Group in
2019. Twelve projects were on sale in Beijing and Tianjin, of which
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park and Taiyuan Hopson International City
were the major sales contributors.

There were nine property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising The Town of Hangzhou Bay and Hopson International
Garden. The contracted sales in Shanghai amounted to RMB9,389
million, representing 44% of the total contracted sales of the Group.

There were six property projects on sale in Huizhou mainly
comprising Hopson International New City and Hopson Xiaogui
Bay. The contracted sales in amounted to RMB2,484 million,
representing 12% of the total contracted sales of the Group.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, and capitalised interest. There was an increase in
recognised sales this year as compared with the previous year and
accordingly, which resulted in an increase of cost of sales by 37% to
HK$9,237 million (2018: HK$6,766 million) and a decrease of proportion
to turnover by 1% to 50% (2018: 51%).

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin increased from 49% in 2018 to 50% in 2019, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in the proportion of the delivery of
projects with relatively higher gross profit margins such as Hopson No. 8
Royal Park, Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa and Hopson Xijing Garden, and
the increase in rental from an additional investment property, namely
Tianjin International Building, during the year. In view of the increase in
the total area delivered by the Group as compared with the previous
year, coupled with the slight decrease in unit sales price, there was
smaller effect on the gross profit, maintaining stable growth.

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

Fair value gain on investment properties for 2019 was $8,175.8 million
(2018: HK$4,673.3 million), up HK$3,502.5 million. As at 31st December
2019, the Group had 15 (2018: 13) investment properties.

Other Income/Gains, Net

Other income/gains, net amounted to HK$285.3 million in 2019 (2018:
HK$161.9 million), which included (1) gains from disposal of listed
securities of HK$88.6 million; (2) grants amounting to HK$45.0 million in
total from government authorities in Mainland China; (3) fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$9.2 million; (4)
dividend income of HK$155.8 milion from investment in listed and
unlisted securities; (5) interest income of HK$5.8 million from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss; (6) net exchange losses of
HK$15.2 million; (7) gain of HK$8.7 million from disposal of subsidiaries;
and (8) gain of HK$5.8 million from disposal of an associate and a joint
venture, respectively.

Operating Costs
The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general

and administration for 2019 increased by 31% to HK$2,569 million (2018:
HK$1,960 million).

Financial Review (continued)
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Financial Review (continued)
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Finance Costs

Gross interest expense before capitalisation in 2019 increased by
HK$900 million or 26% to HK$4,326 million (2018: HK$3,426 million)
primarily due to the increase in weighted average interest rate in 2019 as
compared to the previous year. The effective interest rate in respect of
the Group’s borrowings was approximately 6.7% per annum (2018: 6.0%).

Share of Profit of Joint Ventures

Share of profit of joint ventures represented the Group’s share of profit of
HK$119.1 million from six joint ventures.

Taxation

The effective tax rate for 2019 was 34.6%, down 0.7% compared with
the previous year (2018: 35.3%), which was mainly due to the fact that
the land appreciation tax rate applicable to the major projects delivered
this year was lower than that for major projects in the previous year.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$9,486 million for 2019 (2018:
HK$5,775 million). Basic earnings per share were HK$4.26 (2018:
HK$2.60). During the period under review, excluding the effect of the net
of tax gain from investment property revaluation of HK$6,132 million, the
net of tax gain from the investment property revaluation of two joint
ventures of HK$47 million, the net of tax gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$67 million, the net of tax
gains from disposal of subsidiaries and an associate as well as a joint
venture of HK$10 million, the underlying profit was HK$3,230 million, up
HK$927 million or 40% as compared with the previous year.

Segment Information

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(68%). In 2019, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Huanbohai Area, Pearl River Delta
and Yangtze River Delta. Southern China (including Guangzhou, Huizhou,
Zhongshan and Yangshuo) contributed 47.2% of the total revenue of the
Group, followed by 24.6% from Eastern China (including Shanghai,
Hangzhou, Kunshan, Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang) and 28.2% from Northemn
China (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao).
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Financial Position

As at 31st December 2019, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$204,104 milion and its total liabilites amounted to HK$129,088
million, representing an increase of 24.37% and 34.00% respectively as
compared to 31st December 2018. Total assets increased mainly due to
the increase in investment properties and completed properties for sale.
Total liabilities increased mainly due to the increase in borrowings and
accounts payable, accruals and other payables.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2019 was 1.98 (2018: 2.15).
Equity as at 31st December 2019 was HK$75,015 million, up 10.69% as
compared with 31st December 2018 primarily due to the increase in
profit attributable to equity holders during the year. The net asset value
(“NAV”) per share as at 31st December 2019 was HK$33.71.

Liquidity and Financial Position

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group’s operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 63% (2018: 59%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 66%
(2018: 70%).

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$14,102 million (2018: HK$7,940 million), of
which approximately HK$2 million (2018: approximately HK$2 million)
was charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties.
89.87% of the cash and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi,
2.66% in Hong Kong dollars, 7.46% in United States dollars and 0.01%
in other currencies.

Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$51,536 million as at 31st December 2019, representing an increase
of 13% or HK$6,073 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2018. Gearing ratio, measured by net borrowings from banks and
financial institutions, corporate bonds, senior notes, asset-backed
securities and commercial mortgage-backed securities (i.e. total
borrowings from banks and financial institutions, corporate bonds, senior
notes, asset-backed securities and commercial mortgage-backed
securities less cash and bank deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’
equity, was 66% as at 31st December 2019, representing a decrease of 4%
from 70% as at 31st December 2018.
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Financial Review (continued)
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All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured or
covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi
with fixed interest rates.

All of the commercial mortgage-backed securities were secured and
denominated in Renminbi.

All of the senior notes were secured and denominated in United State
dollars.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.
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The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2019is ANEBER -—ZET—-AE+-_A=+—H2ZEEE&
as follows: REMAT
As at 31st December 2019 As at 31st December 2018
R=B-AF+=A=+-H RZF-N\E+ZA=t—H
Corporate
bonds,
commercial
mortgage-
Bank and  Commercial Bank and backed
financial  mortgage- financial ~ securities and
institution backed Senior Other institution  asset-backed Other
(HKS million) borrowings securities notes borrowings borrowings securities  borrowings Total
REES
RITR ROR BEREFER
BERE BRER BE BHEE EHREE Hip
(BB%T) B& ERES E XHES E @t
Within one year —-FR 12,662 28 = 3,383 16,073 (24%) 9,436 4,008 3,040 16,484 (28%)
One to two years —EEME 15,413 75 = - 15,488 (23%) 13,369 17 - 13,386 (23%)
Within two to five MEZERER 15,376 7911 3,840 - 27,127 (41%) 19,461 5,613 - 25,074 (43%)
years
Atter five years hE#% 8,085 - - - 8,085 (12%) 3,197 - - 3,197 (6%)
Total borrowings RSt 51,536 8,014 3,840 3,383 66,773 45,463 9,638 3,040 58,141
Less: Cash and bank  J&: 35 & & 88 17 (14,102 (7,940)
deposits e
Net borrowings BRFE 52,671 50,201

As at 31st December 2019, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$88,053 million (2018: HK$91,977 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$24,663 million (2018:
HK$36,876 million) was unutilised.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2019, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$78,951 million (2018: HK$50,364 million)
and the Group’s equity interest in subsidiaries of HK$1,267 million (2018:
HK$1,393 million) was pledged with banks and financial institutions for
loan facilities used by subsidiaries.
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Financial Guarantees

Financial Review (continued)
B 7% O] 8 (@)

B # AR

As at 31st December 2019, the Group provided guarantees to banks for R _-_ZE—HAFE+_-_A=+—H KNEER}LE
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which MEZERERBIRBERMAKITIREZ

amounted to HK$11,846 million (2018: HK$8,045 million). ERAENNB4MEEBT(ZE—/\F 80458
BB -

Commitments A e
The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2019 were as follows: AEBR -_ZE—NEF+_A=+—HZ&EW
™
As at As at
31st December 31st December
2019 2018
R-ZE—h&F R N\F
T A=+—H gyl
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEBT BEAT
Capital commitments & A A
Contracted but not provided for BT 418 R B E
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —ET A TR LT
in certain land holding entities ERRAER 916 1,266
— Property construction costs — W RBER R 1,532 1,821
— Capital contribution to an associate ——EBEARZHE 239 254
2,687 3,341
Property development commitments W) EE B R A E
Contracted but not provided for BRI4EREE
— Property construction costs — W ERER K 25,390 20,680

SHEAREBEERAT —E-NEFH
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Financial Review (continued)
B 7 2] B8 (@)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
balance as at 31st December 2018 included all leases, while upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, the balance as at 31st December 2019 included
only the commitments for low-value leases and short term leases with a
lease term of less than 12 months. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

AEERZNABBEAEMEZ TAFEHEEEH
EmEMAKEHEAE R-_F—N\F+=
AZT - HNERBERAETEV K RE LR
FI6RKWMAHEE R-FT-AF+ A=
T-HNERRSFEEEESE NEHI RN+
“EANEHEENAE - BRETAFHLE
HARBERZEEENESERNT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2019 2018
R-EB-hF R-ZE—N\&F
T A=1+—H [l tl=
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAET

Amounts payable THIER N E R 2 3RIE
— Within one year — —FR 16 14
— Within two to five years —WMEERAFA 4 5
— After five years —AF® = 34
20 53

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash on hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure
The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and

funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Principal Activities FEEK

The Company is an investment holding company. lts subsidiaries, XA & A —BEEEZERAT  ETEHEBLQ
associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in investment F] - FE AR RS L AR TERESHE LR -
holding, property development, commercial properties investment, ¥ X% E HEEMERE VESENEEE
property management and infrastructure business. 7 o

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributionsto ARNEEHE T —HAE+_B=+—HILFE
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2019 by geographical IZih@ 2 H v XM ESEHKEE RN 2B

locations is as follows: BaramT:
Contribution to
Turnover operating profit
HRE R
R 2 B’
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Guangzhou =20 6,973,538 2,782,034
Beijing b= 4,844,753 3,732,043
Shanghai Hapis! 4,584,642 2,893,325
Tianjin RE 394,155 (188,688)
Huizhou Wl 1,796,773 369,712
Others H1h 6,719 61,964
18,600,580 9,650,390

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year #X~EFE#HZE T —HLEF+_HA=+—HIFFE

ended 31st December 2019 is as follows: BEBHIMEIWEETLIMBET :
Turnover
EERE
HK$'000
FET
Revenue from property development W) R N 12,848,239

Revenue from commercial properties EEMEXREWZ

investment 3,154,385
Property management income EEEIIA 1,183,147
Infrastructure income AR 1,414,809
18,600,580

AERREBERAR —E—hAFEEH 77
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EETHET@

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 4% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
16% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 1% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 4% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
42 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2019
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 168 of this
annual report.

An interim dividend of HK10 cents per share (2018: HK20 cents per
share), amounting to a total of HK$222,556,000 (2018: HK$445,112,000)
was paid to the shareholders of the Company on 29th November 2019.
The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK30
cents per share for the year ended 31st December 2019.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
28 to the financial statements.
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Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 30 and 44 to the financial statements respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda regarding the calculation of the
distributable reserves, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to
HK$962,832,000 as at 31st December 2019 (2018: HK$894,980,000).

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$6,394,000 (2018: HK$121,809,000) to various charitable
organisations.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and Investment
Properties

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements respectively.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 45 and 46 to the financial statements respectively.

Borrowings and Debentures

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2019 are set out in Note
25 to the financial statements.

On 27th June 2019, the Company issued 7.5% senior notes due 2022 in
an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,893,925,000). The Directors believe that the issue of
the senior notes allow the Company to obtain long-term financing from
international investors and improve its capital structure. The Company
intends to use the proceeds from the issue of the senior notes for project
investments, constructions, refinancing and general corporate purposes.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERET@

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 286 to 288 of this annual
report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

A. Framework Agreement

On 11th May 2012, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (R8T 2% TIRAR A7) (how known
as Guangdong Hanjiang Engineering Construction Limited* (B3I T
REERs AR A7) (‘Hanjang”), being the respective holding companies
of the Group and the Hanjiang Group (where referred to in this paragraph,
comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a
framework agreement (the “2012 Framework Agreement”) setting out,
among other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased
premises to be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of
services/leased premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group. Upon expiration of the 2012 Framework Agreement on 31st
December 2014, the Group entered into a new framework agreement for
the three financial years ending 31st December 2017 with the Hanjiang
Group on 22nd April 2015 (the “2015 Framework Agreement”).

Since the Group intended to continue certain recurring transactions
contemplated under the 2015 Framework Agreement and to enter into
certain new recurring transactions with Chu’s Controlled Entities (where
referred to in this paragraph and below, comprising companies which are
associates of either Mr. Chu Yat Hong or Mr. Chu Wai Hong and such
companies included members of Hanjiang Group that entered into
transactions with the Group under the 2015 Framework Agreement,
which have become members of Chu’s Controlled Entities as a result of
the restructuring of Hanjiang on 14th October 2016) in the three financial
years ending 31st December 2020, the Company entered into the new
framework agreement (the “2018 Framework Agreement”) with Mr. Chu
Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong on 26th April 2018. At the special
general meeting of the Company held on 15th June 2018, the 2018
Framework Agreement, the transactions contemplated therein and the
annual caps of the maximum aggregate annual transaction amount for
the transactions were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).
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On 2nd July 2019, the Company, Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai
Hong entered into the Supplemental Framework Agreement (the
“Supplemental Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the scope of
services to be provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities under
the 2018 Framework Agreement is extended to include a new
transaction, namely the provision of construction work by the Group to
Chu’s Controlled Entities for their certain property development projects (the
“New Transaction”). Save and except for the extension of the scope of
services to be provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities under
the 2018 Framework Agreement pursuant to the Supplemental
Framework Agreement, all other terms and conditions under the 2018
Framework Agreement remain unchanged and continue to be in full force
and effect. In light of the extension in the scope of services to be
provided by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities pursuant to the
Supplemental Framework Agreement to include the New Transaction,
and the annual transaction amounts in respect of certain transactions
under the 2018 Framework Agreement (the “Revised Transactions”) for
each of the two financial years ending 31st December 2020 are expected
1o exceed the relevant maximum aggregate annual transaction amounts (the
“Annual Caps”) for the relevant periods, the Directors proposed to (i)
revise the Annual Caps in respect of each of the Revised Transactions
and (i) set the proposed Annual Caps for the New Transaction for the
two financial years ending 31st December 2020. At the special general
meeting of the Company held on 29th August 2019, the Supplemental
Framework Agreement, the New Transaction, the Annual Caps for the
New Transaction and the revised Annual Caps for the Revised
Transactions for the two financial years ending 31st December 2020
were approved by the Shareholders.

Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong are the sons of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (“Mr. Chu”, the controlling Shareholder, a former executive Director
and the former Chairman of the Board (resigned as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director with effect from 10th January 2020)) and
the brothers of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (“Ms. Chu”, an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board (appointed as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 10th January 2020) and daughter of Mr. Chu). In addition, Mr.
Chu Yat Hong also indirectly owned approximately 17.76% of the shares
of the Company. Accordingly, both Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai
Hong were connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Hence, the transactions between the Group and Chu’s Controlled Entities
as contemplated under the 2018 Framework Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Framework Agreement) constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of such continuing connected transactions are set out as
follows:
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEE®mRET@

Transactions under the 2018 Framework Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Framework Agreement)

()  Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, the Group may appoint
Chu’s Controlled Entities to carry out construction work for certain
property development projects of the Group. The construction fees
payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities and the other terms for
carrying out construction work of the property development projects of
the Group in the PRC will be determined by the parties with reference to
the terms offered by independent third parties for providing similar
services and the latest stipulated standards and guidelines prescribed by
Construction Committee of where the project is located. During the year
ended 31st December 2019, total construction fees paid/payable by the
Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$984,988,000 (2018: HK$86,275,000).

(i)  Electrical installation, low voltage system and intelligent building
system installation and consultancy service on cost control for
construction work

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, the Group may appoint
Chu’s Controlled Entities to carry out electrical installation, low voltage
system and intelligent building system installation work for certain
property development projects of the Group and to provide the Group
with consultancy service on cost control for its construction work. Low
voltage system and intelligent building system installation works included
installation of visual walkie-talkie system, CCTV system, music broadcast
system, security system, car park automatic management system,
telephone system, mobile signal coverage system, internet system and
television antenna system and procurement and installation of the related
facilities. Consultancy service on cost control for construction work
included the preparation of project settlement based on completion data
such as built drawings, and to issue completion accounts. The amount of
fees payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities and the other
terms for carrying out electrical installation works for the property
development projects of the Group will be determined with reference to
the terms offered by independent third parties for providing similar
services and the latest standards and guidelines prescribed by the
relevant governmental authorities of where the property was located. The
amount of fees payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities and the
other terms for carrying out low voltage system and intelligent building
system installation works for the property development projects of the
Group in the PRC will be determined with reference to the terms offered
by independent third parties for providing similar services and the latest
standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant governmental
authorities of where the project is located. For procurement of equipment
for the low voltage system and intelligent building system, a mark-up of
1%-3% on the price of the equipment procured was to be charged. The
amount of fees payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities for the
consultancy service on cost control for construction work will be
determined with reference to the latest standards and guidelines
prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of where the project
is located. During the year ended 31st December 2019, fees for electrical
installation, low voltage system and intelligent building system installation
and consultancy service on cost control for construction work paid/
payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to
approximately HK$11,472,000 (2018: HK$26,513,000).
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(i)  Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may lease certain commercial premises located in Guangzhou
and Shanghai to the Group for office use. The rent payable by the Group
to Chu’s Controlled Entities and the other terms will be determined with
reference to the prevailing market rents paid by and the other terms
available to lessees who are independent third parties for leasing the
premises in the same building (or in the event that no such lease was
available in the same building, reference should be made to the lease of
comparable sizes and types and comparable grading in the same region).
During the year ended 31st December 2019, rental paid/payable by the
Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$9,488,000 (2018: HK$7,554,000).

(iv) Information technology related services

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, the Group may appoint
Chu’s Controlled Entities to maintain the intranet and servers of the
Group, and to supply information technology or computer system related
products and facilities to the Group. The amount of fees payable by the
Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities for the maintenance of the intranet
and servers of the Group, and provision of information technology or
computer systems related products and facilities to the Group and the
other terms will be determined with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services/products. During
the year ended 31st December 2019, information technology related
services fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities
amounted to approximately HK$13,409,000 (2018: HK$49,712,000).

(v)  Marketing services

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, the Group may appoint
Chu’s Controlled Entities to provide sales service, sales agency service
and marketing service for the Group. The amount of fees payable by the
Group to Chu’s Controlled Entities for the provision of sales service, sales
agency service and marketing service for the Group and the other terms
will be determined with reference to the terms offered by independent
third parties for providing similar services. During the year ended 31st
December 2019, the fees paid/payable by the Group to Chu’s Controlled
Entities for provision of marketing services amounted to approximately
HK$682,375,000 (2018: HK$234,050,000).
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(vi)  Building design

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may appoint the Group to provide construction and building
design service for certain property development projects of Chu’s
Controlled Entities. The amount of design fees payable by Chu’s
Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms will be determined
by the parties with reference to the terms offered by independent third
parties for undertaking similar design projects and the latest standards
and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority on the fees and
other terms for providing similar services (if any). During the year ended
31st December 2019, the service fees received/receivable by the Group
from Chu’s Controlled Entities for provision of construction and building
design service amounted to approximately HK$70,014,000 (2018:
HK$30,325,000).

(vii) Management of vacant properties and delivery of sold property
units to purchasers

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may appoint the Group to manage vacant properties developed
by Chu’s Controlled Entities and to handle the delivery of sold property
units of Chu’s Controlled Entities in Guangdong Province, Beijing, Xi'an
and Shanghai to purchasers. The amount of management fees payable
by Chu’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms will be
determined by the parties with reference to related costs of the Group,
the prevailing market rates charged and the other terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services for properties of
similar grading in the same region and the latest standards on property
management and the property pricing guidelines prescribed by the local
government of where the particular property is located. During the year
ended 31st December 2019, the management fees received/receivable
by the Group from Chu’s Controlled Entities for provision of vacant
property management service amounted to approximately
HK$33,510,000 (2018: HK$30,059,000).

(viii)
For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may appoint the Group to provide heating service to certain
properties of Chu’s Controlled Entities. The amount of heating services
fees payable by Chu’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other
terms will be determined by the parties with reference to the terms
offered by independent third parties for providing similar services and the
latest standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority
on the fees and other terms for providing similar services. During the year
ended 31st December 2019, the fees received/receivable by the Group
from Chu’s Controlled Entities for provision of heating services amounted
to HK$1,458,000 (2018: Nil).

Heating services
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(ix) Hotel management

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may appoint the Group to provide hotel management service for
certain hotels of Chu’s Controlled Entities. The amount of hotel
management services fees payable by Chu’s Controlled Entities to the
Group and the other terms will be determined by the parties with
reference to the terms offered by independent third parties for providing
similar services. During the year ended 31st December 2019, the fees
received/receivable by the Group from Chu’s Controlled Entities for
provision of hotel management service amounted to approximately
HK$4,965,000 (2018: HK$3,843,000).

(x)  Shop and office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, the Group may lease
certain premises located in Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai to Chu’s
Controlled Entities for use as shops and offices. The rent payable by
Chu’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms will be
determined with reference to the market rents charged and the other
terms offered by the Group to lessees who are independent third parties
for leasing premises in the same building (or in the event that no such
lease was available in the same building, reference will be made to the
leases of premises of comparable sizes and types and comparable
grading in the same region). During the year ended 31st December 2019,
the rent received/receivable by the Group from Chu’s Controlled Entities
for shop lease amounted to approximately HK$25,546,000 (2018:
HK$9,898,000).

(xi) Commercial real estate management

For the three years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled
Entities may appoint the Group to provide commercial real estate
management service for certain commercial real estate projects of Chu’s
Controlled Entities. The office and shop management services fee
payable by Chu’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms
will be determined by the parties with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services. During the year
ended 31st December 2019, the fees received/receivable by the Group
from Chu’s Controlled Entities for provision of commercial real estate
management service amounted to approximately HK$131,795,000 (2018:
HK$48,301,000).
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(xii) Construction

For the two years ending 31st December 2020, Chu’s Controlled Entities
may appoint the Group to provide construction work for certain property
development projects of Chu’s Controlled Entities. The construction fees
payable by Chu’s Controlled Entities to the Group and the other terms for
carrying out construction work of the property development projects of
Chu’s Controlled Entities in the PRC will be determined by the parties
with reference to the terms offered by independent third parties for
providing similar services and the latest stipulated standards and
guidelines prescribed by Construction Committee of where the project is
located. During the year ended 31st December 2019, total construction
fees received/receivable by the Group from Chu’s Controlled Entities
amounted to approximately HK$16,154,000 (2018: Nil).

B. Lease Agreements
Transactions under the Lease Agreements

On 18th January 2016, Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development
Limited* Qb &4 EHEMRZEFRAR]), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Hopson Beifang”), entered into () a lease
agreement with Zhujiang Life Insurance Company Limited* (%I A Z R
ffr B RR A7) (“Zhujiang Life”) for the lease of the premises situated at
7th floor of Hopson Fortune Plaza; and (i) a lease agreement with Beijing
Zhujiang Real Estate Development Company Limited* (It RIKLE M E S
fR A 7)) (“Zhujiang Real Estate”) for the lease of the premises situated at
9th, 10th and 11th floors of Hopson Fortune Plaza, by Hopson Beifang to
Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate respectively, for a period of three
years from 18th January 2016 to 17th January 2019 (collectively the “Lease
Agreements”).

As at the date of the Lease Agreements, Zhujiang Life was a majority-
controlled company (as defined under the Listing Rules), held indirectly,
by the family members and relatives of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu together,
namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong (the sons of Mr. Chu
and the brothers of Ms. Chu), Mr. Zhu La Yi (a brother of Mr. Chu and an
uncle of Ms. Chu) and Mr. Xie Bing Zhao (the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu
and an uncle of Ms. Chu). Mr. Chu Yat Hong, being a substantial
shareholder of the Company, was a connected person of the Company.
Zhujiang Life was also a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr.
Chu Yat Hong. Zhujiang Real Estate was a majority-controlled company,
held indirectly by Mr. Chu Wai Hong (a son of Mr. Chu and a brother of
Ms. Chu). Accordingly, each of Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate
was a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules and the
Lease Agreements and the leases constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Group decided to gradually cease its hotel operations in Hopson
Fortune Plaza in mid 2015 and to lease out the entire building for office
use. The Directors believe that Lease Agreements will bring forth
additional and stable income to the Group after the cessation of hotel
operations in the building. During the year ended 31st December 2019,
the aggregate rental received/receivable by the Group pursuant to the
Lease Agreements (including annual rental and annual property
management fees) from Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate amounted
to Nil (2018: HK$20,357,000).

C. Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive

Directors and Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

U

the above transactions have been conducted between the
parties on normal commercial terms or better, which are, on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group;

the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the 2018 Framework Agreements (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Framework Agreement)
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole;

the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the Lease Agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole;
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(i) inrespect of the 2018 Framework Agreement (as supplemented by (i)
the Supplemental Framework Agreement), during the year ended
31st December 2019,

construction fees paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled Entities
amounted to approximately HK$984,988,000 (2018:
HK$86,275,000), which have not exceeded the revised
annual cap on construction fees paid/payable to Chu’s
Controlled Entities in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2nd
July 2019 (the “2019 Announcement”);
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fees for electrical installation, low voltage system and
intelligent building system installation and consultancy service
on cost control for construction work paid/payable to Chu's
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$11,472,000
(2018: HK$26,513,000), which have not exceeded the annual
cap on service fees for electrical installation, low voltage
system and intelligent building system installation and
consultancy service on cost control for construction work
paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 26th April 2018 (the “2018 Announcement”);

rental paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled Entities for lease of
offices amounted to approximately HK$9,488,000 (2018:
HK$7,554,000), which has not exceeded the annual cap on
rental paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled Entities for lease of
offices in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
2018 Announcement;

information technology related services fees paid/payable to
Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$13,409,000 (2018: HK$49,712,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on information technology related
services fees paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled Entities in
respect of the year concermned as disclosed in the 2018
Announcement;

marketing services fees paid/payable to Chu’s Controlled
Entities amounted to approximately HK$682,375,000 (2018:
HK$234,050,000), which have not exceeded the revised
annual cap on marketing services fees paid/payable to Chu’s
Controlled Entities in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the 2019 Announcement;

construction and building design fees received/receivable
from Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to approximately
HK$70,014,000 (2018: HK$30,325,000) which have not
exceeded the revised annual cap on construction and
building design fees received/receivable from Chu’s
Controlled Entities in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the 2019 Announcement;

fees received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities for
management of vacant properties and delivery of sold
property units to purchasers amounted to approximately
HK$33,510,000 (2018: HK$30,059,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on the management fees received/
receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the 2018 Announcement;

heating service fee received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled
Entities amounted to HK$1,458,000 (2018: Nil), which has
not exceed the annual cap on the heating service fee
received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect
of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2018
Announcement;
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hotel management service fee received/receivable from Chu’s
Controlled Entities amounted to approximately HK$4,965,000
(2018: HK$3,843,000), which has not exceeded the annual
cap on the hotel management service fee received/receivable
from Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the 2018 Announcement;

j- rental received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities for
lease of shops and office amounted to approximately
HK$25,546,000 (2018: HK$9,898,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap of rental received/receivable from
Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the 2018 Announcement;

k.  commercial real estate management service fee received/
receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities amounted to
approximately HK$131,795,000 (2018: HK$48,301,000),
which has not exceeded the revised annual cap on the
commercial real estate management service fee received/
receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the 2019 Announcement;

construction fees received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled
Entities amounted to approximately HK$16,154,000 (2018:
Nil), which have not exceed the annual cap of construction
fees received/receivable from Chu’s Controlled Entities in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the 2019
Announcement; and

(i) in respect of the Lease Agreements, during the year ended 31st
December 2019, the aggregate rental received/receivable from
Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate for lease of premises in
Hopson Fortune Plaza amounted to Nil (2018: HK$20,357,000),
which has not exceeded the annual cap of the rental received/
receivable from Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate in respect of
the year concerned as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 18th January 2016.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits of Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rules 14A.56. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Connected Transaction

Sale and Purchase Agreement in respect of the
acquisition of the majority equity interest in a PRC
company which is the successful bidder of lands in
Yangshuo, Guangxi, PRC and anticipated provision of
shareholder’s loan

On 4th February 2019, Guangzhou Zhan Teng Investments Company
Limited* (E/NEBEREAR AT (‘Guangzhou Zhan Teng”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; Beijing Hua Yu Dong Fang
Investments Company Limited* (b REMEHREABRAF) (‘Beiing
Hua Yu”) and Beijing Feng Huang Wen Tou Properties Company Limited*
JtRBESIEE Z AR A7) (‘Beijing Feng Huang”) entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) whereby Beiing Feng Huang
agreed to sell, and Guangzhou Zhan Teng agreed to purchase 51% of
the equity interest in Guilin Feng Huang Wen Tou Properties Company
Limited* (FEMBEEXIKEZEBR AT (the “Target Company”) at the
cash consideration of RMB51,000,000 (the “Acquisition”); and Beijing
Hua Yu agreed to acquire 9% of the equity interest in the Target
Company at a cash consideration (the “Minority Transfer”). Guangzhou
Zhan Teng has also agreed to provide a shareholder’s loan in the amount
of RMB163,000,000 to the Target Company after completion of the
Acquisition and the Minority Transfer in accordance with the SPA (the
“Shareholder’s Loan Transaction”). Beijing Hua Yu has also agreed to
provide a shareholder’s loan in the amount of RMB57,000,000 to the
Target Company after completion of the Acquisition and the Minority
Transfer in accordance with the SPA. Completion of the SPA is subject
to the fulfiment (or waiver, if applicable) of the conditions precedent
provided under the SPA. Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Target
Company will become an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Target Company is the successful bidder of the target
lands, i.e. four pieces of parcels of lands located in Yangshuo, Guangxi,
PRC. Approximately 90% of those lands are for residential use and the
balance of approximately 10% are for commercial use.

Beijing Feng Huang is ultimately controlled by Mr. Chu Wai Hong. Mr.
Chu Wai Hong is the son of Mr. Chu and the elder brother of Ms. Chu.
As such, Mr. Chu Wai Hong is an associate of each of Mr. Chu and Ms.
Chu and therefore a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
Beijing Feng Huang, being a company ultimately controlled by Mr. Chu
Wai Hong, is also a connected person of the Company and the
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Following the completion of the Acquisition and the
enter of the Shareholder’s loan Transaction, the Target Company is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of it being a connected
subsidiary and, the Shareholder’s Loan Transaction constituted a
connected transaction of the Company. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 4th February 2019 and the
supplemental announcement of the Company dated 22nd February
2019.
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Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2019 are set out in Note 42 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, namely transactions under the 2018
Framework Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Framework Agreement), the Lease Agreements and the SPA (which are
subject to disclosure and/or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements). Save for the aforementioned, other related party
transactions as set out in Note 42 to the financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors who held office during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman) (resigned as the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director with effect from 10th January 2020)

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman) (appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 10th January 2020)

Mr. Xi Ronggui (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung

Save for the resignation of Mr. Chu Mang Yee as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director with effect from 10th January 2020, all
the abovenamed Directors remained as Directors up to the date of this
annual report.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. Chu
Kut Yung, Mr. Au Wai Kin and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron will retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and Mr. Ching Yu Lung and considers them
to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements and the sections
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected
Transaction” of this annual report above, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures or holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which any of the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Interests in shares of the Company

Report of the Directors (continued)
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RRQBRAD Y E S

Number of shares of the Company

ARARGEE

Approximate
percentage
Personal Family Corporate Other of shares
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding
HE BT
R B4
EEps BAERZ RkEzR DR Hit s CE Bl
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) KREKSTE® — - 1,229,003,809 - 1,229,008,809 55.22%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BEREED - - 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.55%
Ms. Chu Kut Yung (c) KEBRZ L () 1,000,000 — 1,014,000 - 2,014,000 0.09%

Notes: /ZITEI B

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,160,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of the
Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, an exempt charitable
institution and a company limited by guarantee, of which Mr. Chu is the sole member.
Mr. Chu resigned as the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director with effect
from 10th January 2020.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through Yield Plentiful
Incorporated, a company wholly-owned and controlled by him.

C. Ms. Chu Kut Yung held 1,014,000 shares of the Company through Ju Rong
Investment Holdings Limited, a company wholly-owned by her.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2019, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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b. BEEZELEBE2EHRAERENZARREER
B R 2 R H5 B 21X 734,500,000 A% B& 17 °

c. RAERELLTEBERERBZ AR BRBEALZKRA
R AR F5 A A2 F1,014,000 B A -

BREXEEEN RZTE-—NAWEFF+=_A=+
—H ARFREF TTHARLBESFSEEZ2H
BABERREES RBEGIEXVEET KX
FENWMAMEARANBRZAEBN AR
FEEAEBEE(EERESFRAEKRIE
XVER) Z Bt ~ 48 B8 B 10 S 18 25 o B A ] (2
ARk AR EMERSOAR (BRERIEE
SRAERIZZSRERRB/XAFEEE 2
B dORR) > HBBINAREESFMHE K
PIEI2MGETFTAFEZELMA » KRBT E
STRIMEMNEARARBRBRAZEMBEA K
P REIHEMESIOKE

SEAREEARATE ZES-NAFFHR

93



94

Report of the Directors (continued)
EEE®mRET@

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or
debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2019, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

B P AE T B R - A2 B AT B A R
A ONGETCESGL PN SO
NEEERRSE Y CARBRT AR TFL
B B A 20 ) ST B A A A B
AR BRI A R E BRI RO
HEEAZEERH/\BLTFRORRERT
BRI RBARFRG L EHBERDTEE
% S -

FERR

B X% ERTEARNBRG  AMBG R
WHTE 2 % BOAA ] — G BRI
R-—ZE-NE+-A=+—8 BERAR
15 % T B 5 1 ) S5 336 15 17 B 2 B R A
B THEMRALTRGREAREBSR
H O EXVES 2R B85 M AW AL 7 B
B R AR

Approximate

Capacity and Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder nature of interests issued shares shares outstanding
28T HERTRS
REREM B RESENEE Ko EE BMABEDH
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,160,363,809 52.14%
HEEXBRRAA EmEEA
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) " Beneficial owner 395,246,625 17.76%
REREERAR(EE] M ERBEBA
TheBest Investments Limited (“TheBest”) " Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%
TheBest Investments Limited ([ TheBest ] ) # ZEEEER
Clear Build Investments Limited (“Clear Build”) ™ Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%
Clear Build Investments Limited ([ Clear Build J)##’ ZEEEER
Mr. Chu Yat Hong ™ Interest of controlled corporation 395,246,625 17.76%

5 — #1554 9 512 5% B M %

Note:

395,246,625 shares were held by Farrich which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TheBest. The
entire issued share capital of TheBest is held by Clear Build which is in turn wholly-owned by
Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Each of TheBest, Clear Build and Mr. Chu Yat Hong was deemed to be
interested in 395,246,625 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2019, had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

Employees

As at 31st December 2019, the Group, excluding its associates and joint
ventures, employed a total of 10,385 (2018: 9,576) staff, the majority of
which were employed in Mainland China. Employees’ costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$1,581 million for the year ended
31st December 2019 (2018: HK$1,299 million).

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance,
market practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract,
motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management comprises salaries, bonuses,
discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’'s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 34 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31st December 2019.
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Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 99 to 121 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Permitted Indemnity

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

Environmental Policy

For the environmental policy of the Group, please refer to “Sustainability
Report” on pages 122 to 156 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

For the relationships with employees, suppliers and customers of the

Group, please refer to “Sustainability Report” on pages 122 to 156 of this
annual report.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a property developer in China, the Group is subject to various national
and local laws and regulations relating to, among others, land acquisition,
development of real estate projects, real estate transfer and sale, real
estate financing, construction safety and environmental protection. On
the listed company level, the Group is also subject to the Listing Rules,
the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the SFO
and/or the laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdictions where the
Group companies are incorporated. The Company seeks to ensure
compliance with these requirements through various measures such as
internal controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at
different levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of
ensuring compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
in PRC and in Hong Kong by the Group that have significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

For details regarding the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to
“Sustainability Report” on pages 122 to 156 of this annual report.

Changes in Information of Directors and Chief
Executives

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of Directors/chief executives subsequent to the publication of the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30th June 2019 are set
out below:

Name of Director

BEEgR

Details of Changes
BEFE
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Mr. Chu Mang Yee

resigned as the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director and ceased to be (i) the

chairman and a member of the Nomination Committee; and (i) a member of the Option
Shares Committee, with effect from 10th January 2020.

=REE BT - TF - ATHERCTEFSIRRITES THEXIREZES]
FRAE  RHBREZEEKE -

Ms. Chu Kut Yung

was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination

Committee, with effect from 10th January 2020.
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Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHU KUT YUNG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th March 2020

*  For identification purposes only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31st December 2019, except for the code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
as described below.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Save for Mr. Ching
Yu Lung, whose appointment is for a 3-year term subject to renewal,
none of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1.
However, as all the independent non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws, in the opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective of the
CG Code.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting for the year 2019 due to other
business commitment.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2019.

Business Model and Strategy

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market conditions of the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBE @)

Business Model and Strategy (Continued)

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties for meeting regular demand, mid-end
residential properties for customers who seek to improve living
environment and high-end deluxe residential properties, and created a
business development model for maintaining profitability in high-end
residential properties, guaranteeing cash flow in residential properties for
meeting improvement demand and regular demand, and generating
stable and continuous cash flow through investing in investment
properties such as commercial properties (industrial real estate). On the
basis of the coordinated development of the properties for sale and for
investment, the Group will also further integrate resources, develop
investment business prudently and acquire more competitive strengths
through diversified and professional development strategies.

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
properties and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to “Future
Prospects of the Group” under the section “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 9 to 29 of this annual report.

Board of Directors

During the year, the Board comprised six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors who held office
during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman) (resigned as the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director with effect from 10th January 2020)

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman) (appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 10th January 2020)

Mr. Xi Ronggui (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung

Save for the resignation of Mr. Chu Mang Yee as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director which took effect from 10th January
2020, all the abovenamed Directors remained as Directors up to the date
of this annual report. As of the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” on pages 66 to 68 of this annual report, which
demonstrate a balance of core competence having regard to the
business of the Group. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and their re-election is
subject to a vote of Shareholders at the annual general meeting. The
Board believes that the independent non-executive Directors, with
diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall offer experience, make
independent judgement and provide advice on issues relating to strategy,
performance, conflict of interest and the overall management of the
Company such that the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make
further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board
(appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 10th January
2020 and was the Deputy Chairman of the Board prior to her
appointment as the Chairman), is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
former Chairman of the Board (resigned with effect from 10th January
2020).

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has through his wholly-owned entity entered into consultancy
contracts with a private company that is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, the former Chairman of the Board (resigned with effect
from 10th January 2020), in connection with the construction of a private
residence in Hong Kong for use by Mr. Chu Mang Yee and his family
members.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess the
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Six Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Option Shares Committee, Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee and Finance
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management.

Board Meetings/General Meeting

The Board met nine times in total during the year ended 31st December
2019 at which the Directors considered and approved significant matters
including, among other things, interim and final results of the Group,
statutory financial reports, issuance of bonds and notifiable transactions
undertaken by the Group.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:

BEEE2 W)

BRETHRAUZAE E=ZRBILFRITES
EF RLA-ARBEREZMBERRERXMN
e BEBUFATEFTHEREBILMER
ARARFEHFERER  MBRELEWRAFEI13
RETE S EEERR/ZFEFHRBIA
+

RECAEBERETEZEE BERINEE
=ZBe MRRAZEBE FHZEE FX
ZEg BREZES WEXRS WMEAL
RHPEEELMBLZEE - EFGCZRERE
BHTAKBZEXBRAEBEERF-

EEEEE RERAE

HE_Z-NAF+_A=+—-HILFEEH#E
TNREEEER EFNGLERRIER
AREE EFEEAKEZTHEE2FEE
AEFBHRE  BIESREARMZEERS
R

EEFHRFEFTEEZNRAET

Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBERE B XH

Executive Directors HITES
Chu Mang Yee (resigned with effect from ARk (B —E-—ZEFE—A+AHZE

10th January 2020) BFE) 0/9
Chu Kut Yung KiER 2/9
Xi Ronggui BEE 2/9
Au Wai Kin R (8 2 0/9
Xie Bao Xin HES 9/9
Bao Wenge i A% 1/9
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 8/9
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron R BEB 9/9
Ching Yu Lung g 7/9
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Meetings/General Meeting (Continued)

Seventeen additional Board meetings were held during the year ended
31st December 2019 for the purposes of approving some operational
matters such as the provision of guarantees by the Company in respect
of bank loans granted to the Company’s subsidiaries.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors are as follows:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HESBRE B XH

Executive Directors HITES
Chu Mang Yee (resigned with effect from AR (B-_E_FTF—-H+AHE

10th January 2020) BEIE) 8/17
Chu Kut Yung K& 8/17
Xi Ronggui FEE 10/17
Au Wai Kin BX (& 32 15/17
Xie Bao Xin WEE 1717
Bao Wenge & A% 97
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 017
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREES 017
Ching Yu Lung 2mnge 07

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection
by all Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEBRE @

Board Meetings/General Meeting (Continued)
During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Company held two

general meetings. The attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings is set out below:

BEEEgs REXEW

RE-T—AFT-A=+—BIFE A2
ARTTMABRRAR - EEHEBREARH
ERMT :

Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBENE B

Executive Directors BITES
Chu Mang Yee (resigned with effect from KRAK(B=ZE-_FEF—HA1THE

10th January 2020) BEIE) 0/2
Chu Kut Yung KER 0/2
Xi Ronggui BERE 0/2
Au Wai Kin NESE 0/2
Xie Bao Xin HE = 2/2
Bao Wenge ) A% 0/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUkHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 2/2
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BB 2/2
Ching Yu Lung FRunEE 2/2

Non-Executive Directors

Two of the three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1
with respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific
term subject to re-election. However, as the relevant Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the
objective of the CG Code.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

With effect from 10th January 2020, Mr. Chu Mang Yee resigned as the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director whereby Ms. Chu Kut
Yung was appointed as the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman is
responsible for managing and providing leadership to the Board in terms
of formulating overall strategies, business directions and policies of the
Company. The Chairman is also responsible for overseeing effective
functions of the Board, application of good corporate governance
practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to make full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the support of the
executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive complete and reliable information in a timely
manner.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

The daily operation and management of the Company is monitored by
the executive Directors and the senior management. With the assistance
of the Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Xi Ronggui being the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company ensures that the funding requirements of the
business are met and closely monitors the operating and financial results
against plans and budgets, taking remedial action when necessary and
advising the Board of any significant developments and issues.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Ms. Chu Kut Yung; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Messrs. Lee Tsung Hei, David, Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and
Ching Yu Lung. Mr. Chu Mang Yee ceased to be the chairman and a
member of the Nomination Committee since his resignation as an
executive Director with effect from 10th January 2020. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for nomination and selection of Directors.
Proposed new Directors are selected based on skills and experience that
will enable them to make positive contributions to the Board. The
Nomination Committee is currently chaired by Ms. Chu Kut Yung and has
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities and posted on the Company’s website. The principal
functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to formulate the nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Board’s consideration and implement the Board’s
approved Nomination Policy;

° to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, culture, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular chairman and chief executive; and

° to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEEBRE @
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBERE B

Chu Mang Yee (resigned with effect from AR (B -—ZE-ZFF—AF+HIE
10th January 2020) BE(E) 0/1
Chu Kut Yung KIER 1/1
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 1/1
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron FREEE 11
Ching Yu Lung f2unge 11

During the year, the Nomination Committee had performed the following
works:

° implemented the Board's approved Nomination Policy;
° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

o evaluated the performance and contribution of the retiring Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
Directors and senior management of the highest calibre and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

° establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive and
senior management;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° making recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors
and the chief executive) and senior management;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° determination of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind,
pension rights and compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

° reviewing and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct to Directors
and senior management;

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

° consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendations to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee has been delegated with the function of
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during the year
to review and approve the remuneration of Directors. Individual
attendance of the members is set out below:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HESBRRE EEAY

Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREES
Ching Yu Lung e ungE

1/1
1/1
1/1

No Director was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERBE @)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
The remuneration of the senior management (comprising executive
Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2019 by

band is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

FMZEE S m)

AATEREREB (RENTES)BE—T—
NE+=-—A=+—AILEE 2 HEMZRAZRT
m

Number of individuals

AR (&) AE
$0 to $1,000,000 0% 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T 4
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 /& 7T & 3,000,0007% 7T 2
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000 3,000,001 JT & 4,000,000 7T -
$4,000,001 to $5,000,000 4,000,001 & 7T & 5,000,000/ 7T -
$5,000,001 to $6,000,000 5,000,001 7% 7T & 6,000,000 7T 1

Further details of the executive Directors’ remuneration for the year
ended 31st December 2019 are disclosed in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$7,000,000 (2018: HK$6,500,000)
and HK$2,640,000 (2018: HK$2,995,000) was paid for non-audit
services.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

° to make recommendations on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such

appointments;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

o to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;

° to ensure the management has fulfiled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

° to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

° to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In year 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With
respect to the results of the Company for the year ended 31st December
2018, the Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and
the external auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
control, risk management, financial reporting matters and effectiveness of
internal audit function. This review by the Audit Committee included an
appraisal of the integrity of the financial statements and the annual report
of the Company. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s interim
results for the six months ended 30th June 2019 as well as the external
auditor’s remuneration. There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of
external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2019, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. Individual attendance of the members is set
out below:
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Board Committees

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, three other Board Committees have been established
to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee was
established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung
Hei, David. The primary function of the Connected Transactions/Related
Party Transactions Committee is to review all continuing connected
transactions and related party transactions to ensure that they are
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and to recommend to the Board
corrective measures in such transactions if needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, two meetings were held by
the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee.
Individual attendance of the members is set out below:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEERE EERHE
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 2/2
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)E 2/2
Ching Yu Lung 2 e 2/2

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November 2005
and comprises any two executive Directors. Mr. Chu Mang Yee ceased
to be a member of the Option Shares Committee with effect from 10th
January 2020. Its primary function is to deal with the allotment and issue
of shares of the Company upon the exercise of options granted or to be
granted under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4th
November 2002.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the year
2019.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

(3) Finance Committee

The Finance Committee was established on 21st December 2018 upon
passing of the relevant Board resolutions and comprises any three
executive Directors. Its primary function is to approve and deal with debt
financing for the Group’s matters which are within the normal and
ordinary course of business and do not require approval by the
Shareholders in general meetings. Such debt financing include borrowing
or raising any money by and for the Company or any of its subsidiaries in
its normal and ordinary course of business, or securing by guarantee the
payment of money on the debt obligations or the performance or
fulfilment of any obligation of any subsidiary of the Company under any
loan agreement, finance document or contract for raising money entered
into by such subsidiary in its normal and ordinary course of business;
provided that the power and authority of the Finance Committee shall not
be extended to:

i. matters outside the normal and ordinary course of business of the
Company or its relevant subsidiary;

ii. any decision to change the general character or nature of the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a group;

. matters relating to any notifiable transaction or connected
transaction within the meaning of the Listing Rules;

iv.  matters which, according to the Listing Rules, require approval at a
full Board meeting or by the independent non-executive Directors;

V. matters which, according to the Listing Rules or the Bye-laws of
the Company, require approval by the Shareholders in general
meeting; or

vi.  matters involving a conflict of interest for any Director.

The Finance Committee has specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authorities and duties. A chairman shall be nominated
for each Finance Committee meeting among the three committee
members. Mr. Xi Ronggui, Mr. Au Wai Kin and Mr. Xie Bao Xin were
appointed as the first batch of members of the Finance Committee.
Meetings of the Finance Committee shall be held as and when the
Finance Committee considers necessary.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(8) Finance Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2019, one meeting was held by
the Finance Committee. Individual attendance of the members is set out
below:
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Number of meeting(s) attended/
Number of meeting(s) held

HEEBEAE R
Xi Ronggui FHE 1/1
Au Wai Kin B (& 2 01
Xie Bao Xin HEE 1/1

Company Secretary

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of MinterEllison LLP, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary
since September 1997. The primary contact person of the Company is
Mr. Au Wai Kin, an executive Director.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2019.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance, legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;

and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy as approved
by the Board which aims at setting out the procedures and criteria for the
nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the
Board for it to consider and make recommendations to the Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings of the Company or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies or appoint as an addition to the
Board. The chairman of the Nomination Committee will, upon his own
motion or receipt of a nomination from a Board member (as the case
may be), convene a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination Committee to
consider the same in accordance with its terms of reference. The
Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as conducting interviews,
background checks, presentations and third-party reference checks. In
conducting this assessment, the Nomination Committee will consider,
inter alia, diversity in all its aspects (including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge and length of service) and such other
factors as it deems appropriate for maintaining a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate to be appointed to
the Board or any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the following criteria:

(i) reputation for integrity;

(i) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

(i)  commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to
the businesses of the Group;

(iv)  merit and potential contributions that such candidate may bring to
the Company and the Board;

(v)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(vi) in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director,
compliance with the criteria of independence, as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(Vi) board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company; and

(viii) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance to ensure that the Board
has the appropriate balance and level of skills, experience and
perspectives required to support the execution of its business strategies.
The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through considering a
number of factors when appointing a new Director, including gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates are
expected to bring to the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of, among others,
gender, skills and professional experience) to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Palicy.

The Company considers that the current composition of the Board is
considered well-balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the
business of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) aiming at
setting out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits as
dividends to the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy, in
considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth and rewarding
the Shareholders. In addition, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend distribution ratio. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

(i) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial condition,
expected working capital requirements and capital expenditure

requirements, liquidity position and future expansions plans;

(i)  the amount of retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Dividend Policy (Continued)

(i) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity ratio
and the relevant financial covenant;

(iv) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group;

(v)  the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s
norm; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Bermuda, the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association, and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine
the level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and modify the Dividend Policy
from time to time. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time.

Accountability and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, financial position and prospects. It is also
responsible for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other
price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The
management provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2019, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.
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Accountability and Internal Controls (Continued)

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s risk
management and maintaining sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests. The Directors
confirm that the Group, through its Internal Control Department, performs
regular checks on office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard
assets from inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures
compliance with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. The Internal Control Department
reports directly to the Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports
independently to the Board. The Internal Control Department is
independent of all management functions of the Group and has direct
and independent access to the Board. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, no frauds and irregularities, risk
management and internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws,
rules and regulations have come to the attention of the Audit Committee
to cause it to believe that the systems of risk management and internal
controls were inadequate. The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with
the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal control of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal controls systems to safeguard the
Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests, while management is
responsible for designing and implementing an internal controls system
and monitoring the operational effectiveness. A sound and effective
system of internal controls is designed to identify and manage the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, in order to provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our Risk Management Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems and reviews their effectiveness on an annual basis. The
Audit Committee and the Supervisory Committee support the Board in
monitoring our risk exposures. The Audit Committee, acting on behalf of
the Board, oversees the following processes:

(i) regular reviews of the principal business risks, and control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks; the strengths
and weaknesses of the overall internal controls system and action
plans to address the weaknesses or improve the assessment
process;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Controls (Continued)

Our Risk Management Framework (Continued)

(i) regular reviews of the business process and operations reported by
the Supervisory Committee and the Internal Control Department,
including action plans to address the identified control weaknesses,
status update and monitoring the implementation of recommendations;
and

(i)  regular reports by the external auditors of any monitoring issues
identified in the course of their work and the discussion with the
external auditors about their respective review scope and finding.

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after due review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management. The Board
considers the works and findings of the Audit Committee, the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department in forming its own view
on the effectiveness of the system.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, the Board, through the Audit
Committee and Supervisory Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management system of the Group by conducting
a formal risk assessment process to identify, prioritise and assess the key
risks (classified by strategic risks, operational risks, financial reporting
risks and compliance risks) faced by the Group. Action plans for each
key risk have also been identified. No significant areas of concern that
may affect the risk management functions of the Group have been
identified. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management system of the Group.

Our Internal Controls Framework

Internal controls guidelines have been established by the Supervisory
Committee and the Internal Control Department to set out the internal
controls and corporate governance framework of the Group. In
establishing the internal control guidelines, we have taken into
consideration our organisational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

The Group conducts its affairs having close regard to the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially involve or constitute
inside information and restrict dissemination of such information to a
need-to-know basis before disclosure. Prior to disclosure, the Board is
responsible for ensuring that any inside information relating to the Group
is kept strictly confidential. The Group has also designated persons to be
responsible for making any necessary announcement in respect of such
inside information to ensure consistent and timely disclosure and to
respond to external enquiries about the affairs of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls (Continued)

Our Internal Controls Framework (Continued)

The Board and the Audit Committee oversee the internal controls of the
Group, assisted by the Supervisory Committee and the Internal Control
Department. The Audit Committee meetings are held twice in a year,
which include assessment over effectiveness of internal controls system
and reports the result to the Board.

Internal Control Review

The Group, through its Internal Control Department, performs regular
checks on office procedures, practices and systems to safeguard assets
from inappropriate use, maintains proper accounts and ensures
compliance with regulations. The regular reviews also cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Summaries of major audit findings
and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Supervisory
Committee and the Audit Committee at least once on an annual basis.

For the year ended 31st December 2019, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe
that the system of internal controls was inadequate. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and is satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As part of the process of reviewing the financial statements, the Audit
Committee reviews the Group’s compliance with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements including the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance and Securities and Futures Ordinance and also the financial
reporting compliance; for notable exceptions on code provisions A.4.1
and E.1.2 of the CG Code, please refer to page 99 of this “Corporate
Governance Report”.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Directors’ Training (Continued)

During the year, each of the Directors had been provided with training
materials regarding timely disclosure of inside information under Part XIVA
of the SFO. Each of the Directors had noted and studied the training
materials provided by the Company. The Directors had provided the
Company with their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development by way of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
Shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual reports and interim reports, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend the annual general meetings.
External auditors are also available at the annual general meetings to
address Shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions are proposed for
each issue considered at the annual general meetings. The 2019 annual
general meeting circular was distributed to all Shareholders not less than
20 clear business days prior to the annual general meeting, setting out
details of each proposed resolution and other relevant information. The
procedures for conducting a poll were explained by the chairman
presiding at the annual general meeting at the beginning of the meeting.

There were no changes in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year under review.
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Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Shareholder(s)
holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business specified
in the requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Shareholders’ Right to Propose Resolutions at General
Meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (Suites
3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Shareholders’ Right to Propose Resolutions at General
Meeting (Continued)

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor
Jardine House

1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

(852) 2537 3086

(852) 2537 2834

Tel No.:
Fax No.:
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Sustainability Report
AFEERMRE

About This Report

Report Profile

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”
or “Hopson” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present its fifth sustainability report. This report
summarises the progress and performance of the Group in relation to
environment, society and governance for the period from 1st January
2019 to 31st December 2019. The following sections of the report set
out the efforts and achievements of the Group in communication with
stakeholders, operations, environmental protection, employees and social
responsibility.

The Group is convinced that fulfilling corporate social responsibility is the
cornerstone of any business success, and a company must uphold the
principles of good business ethics, as well as its respect for society and
nature in its daily operations. After more than twenty years of
development, the Group has become a reputable real estate developer in
Mainland China. During the years, the Group has always adhered to the
corporate philosophy of “Mutualism with an insistence on integrity and
innovation”, continuously and proactively assuming corporate
responsibility for sustainable development. Mutualism means to win the
highest honour of the Group and individuals, and insistence on integrity
and innovation means to value personal integrity and compliance
operations and to expand business with innovative measures. Sticking to
its mission of value creation, the Group is committed to fulfilling social
responsibilities, marching towards the objective of becoming a world-
class enterprise across different regions and industries. Guided by its
corporate vision and mission, the Group further adopts five core values
as its operating principles.

Firstly, the Group focuses on dealing with its own business as well as
social issues, thereby enhancing the internal operating efficiency and the
ability to create commodity values. Secondly, the Group introduces the
operational principle of “Judging a corporate by its values, and deciding
the winners and losers through competition”, maximising the corporate
market value and enhancing the corporate core competitiveness. Thirdly,
the Group firmly believes that the credibility of employees and corporates
can inject the steady “vitality” into the long-term sustainable development
of corporates, therefore, the Group regards the credibility of corporates,
employees and business partners as the overriding consideration for the
establishment of long-term strategic cooperation. Fourthly, with the aim
to stand out from the competitive property development market, the
Group will continue to adapt to changing market demands and
technological advancement, apply latest technologies and new thinking,
and establish an innovative business model that is in line with the market
economy. Fifthly, the Group undertakes to treat putting mutualism into
practice as the highest honour to a corporate, bringing about positive
effect on society through provision of quality real estate services to the
public and active fulfilment of social responsibility.
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Reporting Guidelines and Approval

This report has been compiled in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”) under Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The board of directors is responsible for the leadership,
decision-making and supervision of measures, policies and procedures in
relation to environment, society and governance, and has reviewed and
approved the publication of this report.

Report Scope and Coverage

This report summarises the sustainable development vision of the Group,
and the progress and performance in relation to environment, society and
governance during the reporting period. For the compliance with the
principles of importance, quantification, balance and consistency, in
addition to the disclosure of issues falling within the purview of “comply
or explain” as set out in the ESG Guide, this report also regards the
importance and relevance of the sustainable development issues to the
Group and its stakeholders as the basis for defining its coverage and
prioritisation. Please refer details to the section of Communications with
Stakeholders. The report covers the Group’s management policies,
strategies, related materiality and objectives relating to environmental,
social and governance aspects, and the associated policies implemented
by the Group. The report sets out the Group’s business in Mainland
China, including property development, commercial properties
investment, property management and infrastructure business in
Northern, Eastern and Southern China.
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Communications with Stakeholders

Communications with Stakeholders

Opinions of different stakeholders help improve the management and
operations of the Group, which is an integral part of accomplishing the
corporate mission. In view of this, the Group constantly maintains
effective communication with its stakeholders, collecting their views on
the Group’s ESG performance and disclosure in a timely manner. By
understanding their expectations and considering the actual situation of
the enterprise, the Group formulates relevant business objectives and
strategies in response to the interests and concerns of stakeholders.

Stakeholders
Fl #5468 BE 75

Objectives

BE

Community
a—

Customers

BE BERAMNER

NEHELTBRE

NERBELBE

TRAMNMEZHEB I ELEREAEEEE
REEB RETEREDTNEE-R-BE
Rt AEBEREENEBETRERFNE
B EHREMMUEEERR HLERER
RAPBPBZER - BEBTHROMNHPERE
BEEERMAR AEEHEHBEELER
BRERE EEMNSHEEINNSEREEE
I8 o

To provide innovative solutions to social affairs
7 Bl 1 3 R R At & R R

Customers are our bosses

To establish their responsibility and nurture them

to be a stakeholder

o AN A N T R

Shareholders

IR 3R

To maximise shareholders’ values

BERRREBESAL

To achieve a win-win situation and mutual

Business partners

BB

enrichment
%75

Materiality Assessment

In order to analyse the issues that our stakeholders most concerned and
their expectations on the Group, the Group engaged a third-party
consultant to conduct a materiality assessment last year. The assessment
was carried out through an online survey, with over 800 external and
internal stakeholders interviewed, including the management of the
Group, employees, investors, shareholders, suppliers, contractors,
customers, mass media and non-governmental organisations (NGOs).
The survey identified a total of 23 topics from four aspects, namely
environment, employment and labour, operational practices and society,
where each topic will be rated by our stakeholders.

To further improve the results of the materiality assessment for the year,
the Group added two new assessment parameters for analysis, namely
the industry risks and concerns of peers. According to the survey results,
the Group included green buildings in the options for sustainable
development issues.
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Sustainable development issues in the survey
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Sustainability Report (continued)
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Environment

BiR
Employment and Labour Practices %
ERRETER g

Operational Practices
EEEG

Society
HtE

S

@ Energy consumption and efficiency
BEIRfE B R B e

o Emission of greenhouse gases
BERBHNR
Waste disposal management
BEEYE R

o Usage of water and efficiency
IKERERIBR KM=
Usage of materials and efficiency
WEHE R B R e

O Biodiversity
EYE T

@ 'Greenbuilding
REER

e Compliance with the employment and labour laws
ERERETEGINETER

o Employment benefits
& REF

@ Recruitment and retention of talents
AT HBELE

@ Employee participation
BRE2EE

@ Occupational health and safety
BERERLZE
Employee training and career development
EBEFIRBEER
Employee diversity and equal opportunities
BEIZKRMERETSHRE

® Child labour and forced labour
E T MoREL

Customers’ health and safety
BEEREEREEREZD

@® Customer privacy
BEFLE
Customer satisfaction
BERPmEE

@ Quiality of services and products
RR 75 K 2 om &
Supply chain management
HEgEER

@ Compliance with laws during operations
EEREDIHETIER

€ Anti-corruption
R&3

€ Community participation
e H
€ Community investment

HREE

*

represents the issue option newly added this year
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Based on the total score given to each issue, the Group ranks the overall
materiality of the ESG topics in a matrix diagram, where the Y-axis
represents the importance of relevant topics to stakeholders, while the X-axis
represents the importance of such topics to the Group. The matrix is as
follows:

RESRZENEY  AKENAEEEN A
BRI Ed BB ERERE EhY#®ARMA
MZEEMNEHETHEEN XBARKKE
BHASENEEE - BEEAERNT :

Materiality matrix of ESG issues of Hopson Development
BEARRE HEREREEMEREE

Issues with Medium Materiality
PEEREE

)
o &

Issues with Low Materiality
BEEEHE

Materiality to Stakeholders
HAZHBELTNEENY

Materiality to Hopson Development

HELRRNERN

Based on the survey results, the Group selected a total of eleven
important sustainable development issues as the key concerns of
corporate operations and the basis for drafting the disclosure of this
report. The relevant issues included energy consumption and efficiency,
emission of greenhouse gases, green building, employment benefit,
occupational health and safety, employee training and career
development, customer satisfaction, quality of services and products,
supply chain management, compliance with laws during operations, as
well as anti-corruption.

*

represents the issue option newly added this year

* RAFEMANZEER
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Responsible Operations

Achieving compliance and excellence in operation is indispensable to the
long-term success of a company, and also the responsibility that the
Group must shoulder as one of the major real estate developers in
Guangdong region. To this end, “Mutualism with an insistence on integrity
and innovation” is corporate ideal that the Group has always adhered to.
In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Group has
formulated different preventive measures, policy guides and reporting
mechanisms to ensure the integrity and compliance operations of
enterprises, staff and other cooperative partners, as well as the strict
compliance with local laws and regulations in all fields of operation.

The Group also extends our considerations on relevant operating
standards and sustainable development to procurement affairs and
supply chain management, and promotes good corporate operation
practices to upstream and downstream suppliers. In terms of business
development, the Group provides high-end commercial properties and
large-scale residential properties in first- and second-tier cities, and
continues to innovate smart property management services to provide
residents and customers with high-quality and diverse real-value services
across the entire value chain.

Compliance Operations and Anti-Corruption

In the course of daily operations, the Group strictly abides by the laws
and regulations related to commercial activities and real estate industry,
including the Regulations on Administration of Development of Urban
Real Estate, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Administration of Urban Real Estate. The Group has formulated the
Employee Behaviour Supervision and Disciplinary Action Management
Policy, the Authorisation and Approval Process Management Measures
and other information management related internal policies, which set out
the scope of responsibility of different employees and the details of
accountability. This system strengthens the internal management of the
Group, clearly defines the rights and obligations of employees,
standardises the code of conduct that employees should follow in
performing their duties, and perfects the existing supervision and restraint
mechanism.
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With regard to anti-corruption, the Group strictly abides by the relevant
laws and regulations in force in China, including but not limited to the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law.
Following regulatory requirements, the Group has also formulated a
series of internal guidelines such as the Exact Compliance with
Instructions Regulation of Hopson Development Holdings and the
Employee Behaviour Supervision and Disciplinary Action Management
System, to set out standards for the violations of law and discipline in
various fields of operation. Our internal guidelines strictly forbid
malpractice such as employees soliciting or receiving bribes, engaging in
fraudulent acts for private gains through abuse of position power and
cronyism. The Group also strictly prohibits employees colluding with
other parties in whatever ways and obtaining illegal interests. The Group
highly values personal and corporate integrity. With the “zero tolerance”
attitude of the Group, employees will be severely punished according to
the Provisions on the Investigation of Misconduct and Law Incompliance
of Employees if misconduct or violation of the regulations is found, and
they may even face immediate termination of labour contract and be
transferred to administrative and judicial authorities. During the reporting
year, there is no misconduct and violation of the regulations identified.

To more effectively prevent, identify and deal with ethics and integrity
problems, the Group sets up a “Complaint and reporting mail box” to
offer our employees a channel for reporting. If employees discover any
misconduct, they can complain or report through email. In order to
maintain effective internal monitoring, the Group has formulated the
Administrative Measures for the Audit of Hopson Development Holdings.
The Supervision Department of the Audit and Supervision Center reviews
daily operation compliance and reported cases, and proposes corrective
measures and related follow-up actions.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are essential business partners of the Group. Only through
supply chain management for the entire value chain can guarantee the
quality of our products and services. To this end, the Group has
established a good supply chain management system to develop
stringent requirements for the processes including selection, cooperation
and management.

The Group strictly complies with the current Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and has formulated systems and internal policies such
as the Administrative Measures for the Cooperation Unit List of Hopson
Development Holding and the Budget and Tendering Preconditions
Management Rules as required such law. According to these policies,
only the suppliers that are pre-qualified and meet the quality standards of
the Group can be admitted into the Cooperation Unit List. These policies
also stipulate that the transparent bidding method must be adopted in all
strategic procurement of the Group, and suppliers must be selected from
the Cooperation Unit List.
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In order to develop a standardised bidding process, the Group has
formulated the Administrative Measures for Bidding of Hopson
Development Holdings to set up the indicators for selection for various
stages. During the initial screening stage, three to six suppliers will be
invited by the Group to bid according to their market popularity and past
supply records. The Group will estimate the service cost based on factors
such as the content of their tender submissions, the quality of past
services, past raw material prices, quotations and market prices. Under
the pre-condition of satisfying technical standards, the Group will select
suppliers with reasonable price and good performance. Besides, the
Group also invites local quality suppliers to participate in bidding
according to project scale and pricing, seeking to promote supplier
diversity and localisation and providing more local employment
opportunities.

With regard to supply chain management, the Group’s policy, the
Implementation Rules for Cooperation Partner Evaluation, has stipulated
that cooperation partners are assessed by the Group every quarter, and
the Group continuously inspects their product quality, goods supply
ability, performance of on-sale service and post-sale service, so as to
ensure that they can meet the Group’s requirements of “High quality,
high standard and high orientation.”

Product and Service Quality

In terms of services, the Group adheres to the brand philosophy of
“enjoying high-quality lifestyle” over the years, developing high-quality
products, services and supporting operations, introducing world-class
living concepts into China. The Group has established the “U Life”
philosophy in order to create quality life for customers, and established
the “UP Product Value System” (in which “UP” stands for “You” and
“Perfect”) based on such philosophy to put the philosophy and objective
of “U Life” into practice, and put further effort into the design of our
services and products from four dimensions:

° Place (product level);
° Person (service level);
° Promise (ancillary level);

Platform (community level).

As a leading real estate developer in the PRC, the Group has developed
nearly 100 residential projects, with a total developed area of more than
30 million square metres. The Group strictly complies with the regulations
relating to construction in Mainland China such as the Construction Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Regulation on the Quality
Management of Construction Projects, in order to ensure quality and
safety of each real estate project meet national standards.
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In order to maintain our excellent project quality, the Group has A TREBERENEEEE  AEBRITHEME
formulated the “Implementation Rules for Project Quality Inspection and B ERE TREBENEER T TIEREY 7T
Acceptance” for the quality verification work at different stages of real 2 HE 2B EHEMA) - TEBEE 7 & @ T2
estate project development. They not only clarify the responsibilities of B 2% ESRAEMZEE LS EIPFHAMEBE - I
the entire project quality inspection and acceptance management EE T IREEHE BERK—RKXEAKRERE
organisational structure and various departments, but also propose goals  |95% LA F + B TIRE 2 R K& 15100% + LA
for project quality, requiring a one-time delivery rate of 95% or above, a REFWRIER HREEREBERFE L NRE% - X
rate of 100% for final qualified project quality of units, and an owners’ HEtE N ABBENRK TIEELR&E  Efa
complaint rate of less than 5% on quality issues when handing over the  #E :

units. The document regulates the acceptance work for nine major areas,

including:

Inspection and acceptance for 1.

construction work

BETERK
2.
3.
4.
5.

Inspection and acceptance for 6.

ancillary facilities

HRHEERK

Inspection and acceptance for 7.

flats and units

BT ELBRK 8.

On-site inspection and acceptance for construction materials and equipment, such as
rebar, cement, wall bricks, kitchen equipment, fire control equipment, lighting control
equipment, etc.

BEMBLRERESRYE WM KOk EE - FERE BEMEHRE B
KIS R ES

Inspection and acceptance for samples from various construction processes

I8 i TR AR B9 Bk 5 I

Inspection and acceptance for inspection lots from various construction processes

& T8 b T A2 # A iR B I

Inspection and acceptance for individual engineering task, including sanitary appliance
installation, switch socket panel and lighting installation, and various construction
equipment systems

DEIRRK BEELERELE HUEBEER BELE UREHEER
CES D

Inspection and acceptance for partitioned (itemised) construction, such as curtain wall,
waterproofing project, ground foundation engineering, etc.

SE(FHE) LRI - nEEE  PHKIRE MEERIRES

Inspection and acceptance for “two pints, one stroke” construction quality, including
inspection and acceptance for project sample flats, sales centres, gardens and municipal
ancillary facilities

(M- TREERYW BREBRSGEN HEFL BEMULRTHREER
W T

Completion inspection and acceptance for construction of flats and units

B TIRE TR

Inspection and acceptance for comprehensive construction delivery

ITREaXEREK

Payment of inspection and acceptance for project and contract timelines

T2 & [F &5 B B U A R
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In addition to the above efforts in acceptance, the Group also carries out
reward and punishment measures according to the performance of
project management personnel and construction units, in accordance
with Implementation Rules for Reward and Punishment on Quality and
Safety of Project Management Personnel and Implementation Rules for
Reward and Punishment on Quality and Safety of Construction Units, so
as to strengthen incentives for the project team to maintain project
quality.

In our property management business, the Group strictly abides by the
Regulation on Realty Management of the People’s Republic of China and
strives to achieve perfection in service quality. To this end, the Group has
formulated the Measures for Inspection of Community Property
Management of Hopson Group to improve the community property
service supervision mechanism. The document has specified the scope
of inspection, including the comprehensive property management and
the handling of complaints from owners, housing management and
maintenance, environmental sanitation, landscaping, public security and
vehicle management, comprehensive management of engineering and
common facilities, and management of vacant flats. The document has
also stipulated that the relevant property management personnel must
conduct monthly community inspection activities, fill in the Community
Daily Property Service Inspection and Acceptance Form and the Two-
point and One-stroke Property Service Inspection and Acceptance Form,
and convene on-site coordination meetings to find out insufficiencies and
report progress of correction measures.
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Customer Service

The Group understands that property services in the new generation not
only focus on promoting first-class property environment and supporting
facilities, but also maintain attentive and courteous customer relationship
management during early, middle and latter stages of sales, as well as
provide thoughtful and timely property management support to residents
and tenants, so as to build a long-term brand reputation. To this end, the
Group executes customer service standards of “separate handling,
unified collection, unified management”. Firstly, the Group has built five
major customer service channels, including 400 national customer
hotlines, e-mail, WeChat public account and property service centre set
up in the regional office, to receive customer feedback in an effective and
systematic way. The Group inputs the feedback from customers and
residents collected into an unified customer relationship management
(CRM) system and database to follow up the progress of processing
customer opinions in an effective manner, thereby bringing better user
experience to customers and improving customer satisfaction.

EFR#%

AEBFAFERDERBT TR B RERE—
MM ERBELEE  EAEHEERN  F &g
HRFBRYOAENEFHEREE  URBEF
EEPREREED HYANENYEEEX
B ATARBYRANMERE - Rt K&
BEGTIOBEE f-—H&E S EEINE
FREER - B AKERETHAATPR
BRE DR REE400FREALKL EFEHMH -
MERIFBHRALNME R RAERLAYER
B RBEREBERGHIARREFPHNE
ARE - HREBRE BEPREPHNRER
BRAZEH-—NEPBEE R AL CRV L BUE
B UEEARREFTFEANBELEE /T
FHREENAFPERIRSEFPMEE

Case Study: “Hopson Life” smart community service platform APP

DERM

Making good use of today’s technological advancement, the Group has
launched a brand-new mobile application that provides a smart platform
for community services. The platform builds up on Esteem Property’s
well-established property management systems to provide residents an
“Internet+” online property management experience. Through the
creation of one-kilometre smart community living circle, we cater the
needs of our next generation with an 020 smart living model.

The platform comprises various core functions,
including community announcements, mobile
payment, and smart housekeeping services,
so that residents can keep abreast of the
latest community affairs such as water and
power outages, make real-time complaints,
book for repairing services, pay property
expenses and use property facilities.

In addition, the platform also has a “chit chat”
community communication platform, as well
as “pair and share” neighbourhood car
sharing, “jump and hop” second-hand items
trading and “arrange and date” community
activities and dating functions, which not only
effectively promote neighbourhood exchanges,
but also facilitate the sharing economy model
and achieve effective resource uses within the
community.
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In addition to the use of a digital customer management system, the
Group has also formulated the Manual for Prime Service Center of
Hopson Group to establish a customer service and complaint handling
mechanism and strictly regulate our customer service staff to perform
eight procedures in handling complaints. Employees must first make a
record in the Customer Complaint Handling Form within the CRM
customer service system, and assign the relevant case to the relevant
business departments, and then conduct follow-up, supervision,
inspection and early warning work to ensure that the complaints in the
supervised region and project can be settled. After the issue is settled,
the customer service staff must pay a follow-up visit to the customer and
file the customer needs of a closed case in the Customer Complaint
Handling Form. The manual has also classified different types of customer
complaints and their severity into four levels, and formulated
corresponding levels of handling standards to help customer service staff
to analyse the cause of the issue and the solution thereof. During the
reporting period, the Group received 1,398 complaints in total and
successfully handled 98.14% of them.

In order to achieve transparent and fair property sales, our Manual for
Prime Service Center of Hopson Group has clearly defined the
organisational structure of the sales team and the responsibilities of each
position, and established various information acquisition channels and
customer communication channels and procedures, so as to put the
systems for pre-sale consultation, post-sale consultation and complaint
handling and other work processes in place, and prevent unfair sales
practices and promotion with false information. The manual also regulates
the relevant staff recruitment requirements, staff service wording and
service etiquette, and has established a reward and punishment
mechanism, in order to improve customer service quality of the sales
team.

At the same time, the Group has specified the marketing management
system in the Implementation Measures for Employee Behaviour
Supervision and Disciplinary Action Management System, pursuant to
which employees are strictly prohibited from making unauthorised
changes to the benchmark price, rental or sales price list or contract
terms, promising customer discounts without permission, and
misrepresenting sales information, etc. During the reporting period, the
Group strictly complied with the regulations relating to sales of buildings
in Mainland China such as the Measures for Administration of Sale of
Commodity Properties and the Measures for Administration of Pre-sale of
Commodity Properties. There was no case of sales in violation of
regulations.

Sustainability Report (continued)
AEFERERS @

BRTEASBLELNEFPFERRS  AEEF G
FET(AEEEEERBHALIIEFM &2
EERBEREFEERS  BERESEFRET
AEEERFHETNESR - BTAEER
CRMEFRBERN(CEFRFREERIETR
B WAEAHBRNAD REMEEBEM Hig
Lﬁﬁt»ﬂ% B R TEE T UHERE

BRig RIEENIEFEUAER - IR EE
ERETEASEFPETOS I WIEE &S
MEFERE(EFRFREER)ANRIE - FM
MIETRNEBELRFOBEL IR HEBREME DKM
BERp - FIERERAANNEEZE  HFEER
BINMBEKREREBEFR - EREHA
ANEBEEH, 38R EFMEZE - WK EE
H 08 14% | o

BRTEEFERALRINYMERHEE  XEENE
EEEEERBTOITEFMBET HER

B RE LSBT ERABE . UARE
VEHEEEEDRSET HEPFPEBREENLE

P EERMAER ERFBARKRFREEFRRE
TERBEAGIENR HIETREEFERT
BEEEEESBR FHIAHMEBEE LREZ
kCBIRBAZBARBERELRE 22
ﬁ HH > BRIEAHEREBRNETEFRRBEE

M

AR AKREE(EITRAEERERE
BEHEERAAFIRAEHEESE -
FETHRHEBEHNEALEE HEEBERK
AEF BEAEEFPEENT UERRK
HEGEFTR NBEHHE AEEBERE
SHEAETEAMEERTER (A
FHETEERZX) HWhERERTEMER
SEEMEF WRAHBEERHEENER -

> o> @D OB
3 W mp =
eeer LI j

SRAREBERAR “E-AEFH

133



134

Sustainability Report (continued)
AEFERRERS @

Environmental Protection

Green Building

Focusing on the impact of its own projects on the sustainable
development of enterprise and society, the Group has incorporated the
concepts of green building and energy conservation into its development
policy, and strictly complied with relevant national environmental
protection laws and construction regulations at each project operation
stages, and committed to reducing emissions and pollution through
efficient resource utilisation, and promoting the development of green
building on the basis of legal compliance and in line with national trends
development. In addition, in line with the state’s requirements for green
building development in the “13th Five Year Plan for Building Energy
Efficiency and Green Building Development”, the Group has established
a number of internal management measures and guidelines related to
environmentally friendly buildings, including the construction provisions in
response to the national sponge city plan, technical details and
management measures for green building evaluation standards, etc., to
ensure that the Group’s green building development process can keep
pace with the social and national development. Considering the potential
impact of the building on the environment during its life cycle, the Group
has formulated comprehensive environmental protection measures in
terms of building design and planning and construction management to
minimise the impact of the building on the environment.
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Sustainability Report (continued)
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As at the end of 2019, Hopson’s green building certification projects included:

BE_Z-NFEAL S4ESLRCRERENEEGE:

Guangzhou Region
F& ] 3 [

Hopson Joy Mansion

BN AR

Hopson Xijing Garden Phase |
aEEREE—H
Hopson Xijing Garden Phase |l
EEERTEE_H

One-star Green Building
—ERER%E
One-star Green Building
—ERERE
One-star Green Building

—EReRE

(%)

East Region Shidai City Project Phase | residential and primary school and One-star Green Building
kindergarten

R EP [ RAMER —HEERNEBHREE —EReEE
Shidai City Project Phase | apartment and commercial Two-star Green Building
RAMEE A REE —EREEE
Hopson Yushan Garden One-star Green Building
& EMLEER —EReEE
Hopson Xiaogui Bay Phase I, districts 5 and 6 One-star Green Building
BENEE_BHREARR —ERERE
Hopson International New City Phase VII Group 1 One-star Green Building
SHEBEBRFH AR —EReEE
Hopson International New City Phase VII Group 2 One-star Green Building
AEBBRFR R _EE —ERERE
Hopson Yuijing Bay Phase V One-star Green Building
AAHREDE “ERERR
Hopson Yuijing Bay Phase VI One-star Green Building
B ER = SN —EFBEE
Xin Yu Village Project Phase | Two-star Green Building
FranIEE — 5 —EgEESE
Xin Yu Village Project Phase |l Two-star Green Building
MENEB —H —ERERE

Shanghai Region Hopson International Garden S1 Phase IV One-star Green Building

EEHE & 4 BB IE B ST A —EReREE
Hopson International Garden S1 Phase V One-star Green Building
SHEBKRERESIHH —ERERE
Hopson Sea Block Two-star Green Building
aEMHE —EgEEE
The Town of Hangzhou Bay One-star Green Building
B AN R B 4K —ERERE

Northern China Region = Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) Project C2-1 One-star Green Building

FEih = EHEBETR (ELE)c21 —ERERE
Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) Project C3-1 One-star Green Building
SEBEETR(ELE)C31 —ERERE
Hopson Regal Park (Caofeidian) Project C4-1 One-star Green Building
EHEBETR (BELE)C41 —ERERE
Taiyuan Hopson International City One-star Green Building
NIRE 4 BRI —ERERE
Bazhou Guajiazhuang Project One-star Green Building
HMBHEIEE —EReREE

Tianjin Region Jingjin New Town Shangjing Runyuan 17-51 One-star Green Building

KM@ FORFW R EE17-51 —ERERE
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion One-star Green Building
REGHEHEELS —EReREE

ERIREBERAR

ZE-hLEFER
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Environmental Protection Measures in Construction
Design and Planning Stage

In the construction design and planning stage, the Group takes full
account of the sustainability of the sites, building methods, technologies,
equipment and materials of construction projects, and uses building
information modelling (BIM) technology, making visualised and delicate
construction and information management of projects feasible, thereby
promoting green building data management, and ensuring that project
blueprints are consistent with green building principles and are
sustainable.

In order to reduce the energy consumption of buildings, the Group
consistently adopts environmentally friendly materials and electrical
appliances including environmentally friendly refrigerants, high energy-
efficiency lamps and low energy-consumption accessories, etc. in the
buildings. It also sets the timing or photoelectric control in the natural
lighting areas based on natural ventilation and lighting design to reduce
power consumption during daylight so that the buildings can use natural
resources more effectively. For example, the Group makes good use of
renewable energy, installed solar panel in the Hopson Regal Court, saved
a total of 458,400 kWh of electricity during the year. In addition, water-
saving appliances and equipment are adopted in drainage design of
buildings, rain and sewage are diverted, and the collected rainwater and
reclaimed water will be reused for activities such as landscaping, vehicle
washing, and toilet flushing to reduce water consumption.

In addition to reducing energy and water consumption, environmental
management is another focus of the Group in construction design and
planning. Therefore, all construction projects of the Group use
environmentally friendly coatings and adopt fresh air system technology
in ventilation and air-conditioning system which effectively controls the
intensity of indoor fine particulate matter and improves air quality. In
addition, in order to cope with increasing extreme climatic conditions
such as rainstorm, the Group also incorporates the concept of a sponge
city during the project planning stage, by constructing green landscaping
and cultivating local native plants, with the purpose of absorbing and
filtering rainwater, reducing surface runoff, and strengthening the
resistance of nearby areas to flood prevention.

Environmental Protection Measures in Construction
Stage

The Group implements strict construction management, actively develops
prefabricated buildings, and works to reduce environmental damage
during construction in four aspects: energy saving, water conservation,
waste treatment and environmental and natural resource management.

° Energy saving: the Group strictly monitors the performance and
operation of the engineering equipment, only uses the mechanical
devices compliant with emission standards and the electrical
equipment that is highly energy-efficient, and actively reduces the
use of fuel and power consumption such as diesel and gasoline.
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° Water conservation: The Group has formulated water-saving
measures, such as the implementation of wastewater and rainwater
reuse measures and the use of water-saving equipment and
appliances such as water-saving dust control sprinklers.
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Case Study: Xin Yu Village Project Phase I
PERMHENEEZH

The Xin Yu Village Project Phase Il is located in the eastern region of
Mainland China, with a total construction area of 262,285 square metres.
The district adopts a number of water-saving measures, including water-
saving irrigation, the use of high-pressure water guns, water-saving
appliances, etc., and high energy-efficiency lamps and energy-saving
elevators are installed to make buildings more effective in reducing natural
resource use. In addition, the concept of a sponge city is incorporated
into the project construction, and green landscape was constructed to
reduce surface runoff and strengthen the flood control capabilities of
nearby areas. Therefore, the Xin Yu Village Project Phase Il won the Two-
star Green Building certification issued by the state during the year.
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Case Study: Hopson Yunshan Regal
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The total construction area of Hopson Yunshan Regal covers an area of
225,124.5 square metres. Sanitary ware that achieves level 2 water-
saving efficiency is consistently used in the building to achieve reasonable
use of water resources. Three primary colours energy-saving fluorescent
lamps, LED energy-saving lamps or other energy-saving light source, and
the human body sensor or acousto-optic delay switch are provided in the
stairwell and other places to reduce building energy consumption. In
addition, its construction design utilises outdoor wind pressure and
indoor heat pressure to form natural ventilation, which not only improves
the energy efficiency of buildings, but also improves indoor air quality.
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° Waste treatment: The employees of the Group must store and
process hazardous wastes in accordance with the internal
guidelines of On-site Safe Construction Management Standard and
the provisions of the National Hazardous Waste List, and adopt
waste recycling measures to recover steel bars and short head
reinforcing steel and other useful building components to reduce
waste production and raw material consumption.

° Protection of the environment and natural resources: The Group
strictly prohibits any illegal logging within the scope of the
construction sites, and adopts transplanting methods to establish
new forest farms to compensate for environmental damage during
the construction process, and will take reinforcement measures
when necessary to protect hillsides and ecological environment.

Energy Saving in the Office

While the Group is committed to promoting green construction and
building, it also proactively assumes more environmental protection
responsibilities as a corporate citizen, actively formulates energy
conservation and environmentally friendly management policies, and
creates a green office culture. The Group continues to encourage and
cultivate employees’ good practices of energy saving and reducing
expenses in the office by formulating relevant measures, such as
encouraging employees to use the “standby” mode when they do not
use their computers within a short period of time in daily work, and
disconnect the power plug after the computers are turned off. Also, zonal
lighting is applied during overtime hours to curb energy consumption.

In addition to formulating an encouraging advocacy plan, the Group also
has related management measures to assist colleagues in the low-
carbon life of energy saving and water conservation in the office
environment. With regard to water consumption, the Group installed
water-saving systems in the office toilets on each floor to reduce
unnecessary water consumption. With regard to paper use, the Group
has implemented a paperless office in all offices. Except formal
documents, all documents in the office shall be printed double sided to
reduce paper usage. In addition, all external documents or reports shall
be printed using paper certified by Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) to
ensure that the pieces of paper come from forestry operators responsible
to the ecosystem and community so that the impact on the ecosystem
as a result of paper use can be reduced.
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Employment Relationship

Systems and Benefits for Employees

Employees are important resources of the companies of the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to optimising the human resources
system and employee benefits to attract and retain talents. The Group
has introduced the Human Resource Management System and
implemented related human resources management structure and
established relevant human resources management structure based on
the system. The Group has formulated the Administrative Measure for
Human Resources (the Administrative Measure) according to the relevant
requirements of the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Corporate Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations in order to
provide management guidelines and related processes in recruitment,
remuneration, training and other relevant practices. The implementation
of the administrative measure is monitored by the Human Resources and
Administration Center of the Group. If any non-compliance is discovered,
Human Resources and Administration Centers at all levels have the right
to investigate.

The Group complies with relevant national laws and regulations and has
established appropriate welfare policies for employees, including social
insurance and housing provident fund. The Group also offers marriage
leave, funeral leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, breastfeeding leave,
etc. The Group provides its employees with competitive remuneration
and pays overtime pay to employees who work overtime in accordance
with relevant national regulations and the internal Administrative Measure
for Salary.

In addition to statutory benefits, the Group has offered supplementary
benefits (i.e. flexible benefits), including festival fees, heating and cooling
fees, work meals, travel expenses, clothing expenses, medical
examination fees, mobile phone fees and transportation subsidies. The
Group makes timely adjustments to the aforementioned subsidies in
accordance with actual operating conditions.

To promote work-life balance, the Group organises various employee
activities every year to relax employees in a timely manner and thereby
enhance team cohesion. During the year, the Group continued to
organise the following activities to show care to employees.
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Hopson Staff Clubs

Hopson Staff Clubs has set up three sports clubs, namely the
Badminton Club, the Basketball Club and the Football Club. The
Group encouraged the staff to participate in more sports activities,
promoting a healthy culture. By organising various internal
competitions and encouraging socialising with sports, the clubs not
only help employees relax, but also help the staff grow their
leadership and organising ability, thus enhancing team spirit.

Festival Gifts to Show Our Care for Employees

During festivals, the Group decorates the offices with festival
decorations to provide a positive working environment for the staff.
In addition, during traditional holidays such as Dragon Boat Festival
or Mid-autumn Festival, the Group prepares festival gifts for the
staff, sending warmth and blessings to them.

Corporate Publication

In order to strengthen communication with employees, the Group
regularly releases internal publications to all employees and
communicates the latest corporate trends and news to the staff
through a WeChat public platform in order to create a corporate
culture of diversity, tolerance and pursuit of excellence.

Hopson Library

The headquarters of the Group has established Hopson Library,
providing a reading and interacting venue for the staff. It has a
collection of books including literature, history, technology,
photography and design. It is open to our staff during lunchtime for
relaxing and enjoying reading to promote reading and broaden their
horizon.

Career Development and Training

The
emp

Group strongly supports the career and personal development of
loyees, and invests sufficient human resources to promote the

mutual growth of employees and the corporates. The Group continues to
organise local internal training of the Group for its subsidiaries and
regional departments, and also subsidise the staff to receive external

man
train

agement training. In addition to one-way career development and
ing, the Group has also established two-way career development

path to enable staff to switch between their professions and

adm

inistration.
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According to the Administrative Measure for Human Resources, the
Group has established the training management system, training course
system, training teacher system and training implementation system that
are compatible to the corporate development and personal growth of
employees. The Group has also introduced the training merit point
management. The staff must obtain corresponding points by participating
in training to meet the required point standards. To achieve so, the Group
provides diversified internal training for the staff at all levels, including new
staff induction training, regular training and training programmes for
internal trainers, to promote continuous learning of the staff, thereby
enhancing personal capabilities and professional knowledge. In 2019, a
total of 10,094 employees of the Group pursued training with 5.5 training
hours on average. The highlights of some training programs during the
year is as follows:

° New Staff Induction Training

In order to help new employees adapt to the corporate culture and
system requirements of the Company, the Talent Development of
the Group’s Human Resources and Administration Center provides
new staff training every month, and helps them develop a thorough
understanding of the job responsibilities and departmental
functions, and a firm grasp of the relevant permission system and
work processes through three training methods: real-time training,
hierarchical training and centralised training and daily coaching.
During the year, the Group promoted the standardised operation of
basic projects and carried out a three-step plan for new staff
training, hoping to bring the message of corporate culture,
company system and integrity education to every employee.

° HE Incentive Management

The Group continued to implement the “HE Manpower
Programme”, which aims to select university students with excellent
management potential and to cultivate the main force for the future
development of the Group. In order to help them understand the
Company and enhance the cohesion of the team, the Group held
“Cohesion e Begin as a New Chapter e Creating the Future”
training camp for 2019 HE Manpower Management Trainee.
Through many forms including outreach training, intensive courses
and sand table simulation design, the Group cultivated a new force
for Hopson Development. Meanwhile, to meet the needs of the
Group’s strategic development, the Group conducted retraining of
HE Manpower/elite classes to further improve the work quality and
efficiency of young employees.

° Management Training

The Group organised “HE Adaptability/Strength Training Camp
2019” and “HE Potential-HE Ability Training 2019” to enhance the
leadership, operation awareness, cost awareness and teamwork of
middle-level and senior management personnel respectively,
helping employees grow and cultivating a better team.
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° Professional internal training

Since 2019, the Group has required each centre/business
department and each business segment to conduct internal
training. It is listed as the annual “ten tasks” for inspection and
acceptance. Each centre/business department and each segment
is required to organise the internal training of the unit from the three
dimensions of basic training, case training and comprehensive
management training in accordance with the annual key work tasks
and the actual needs of employees. In 2019, the Group completed
a total of 145 training programs, providing a total of 55,786 hours
of training.
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Case Study: HE Manpower “Elite’s Journey” Theme Training
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In order to implement HE Manpower Training Programme, the Group’s
Human Resources and Administration Center designed and launched a
five-year and five-phase training programme for management trainees to
train future management personnel.

During the year, the Group’s Manpower Center established a career goal
and formulated a reasonable growth plan for the 2019 batch of
management trainees. A total of more than 30 management trainees
participated in “Elite’s Journey” Theme Training. Through sand table
simulation and resumption, the management trainees were able to further
understand themselves, set goals, master key skills and devise clear
development paths.
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Case Study: E-learning Platform, “Hopson Academy”

SERH

At the end of 2019, the Group launched “Hopson Academy”, which
provided core courses in various aspects such as group standards,
professional knowledge, efficient methods and leadership, aiming to
establish a more convenient way for employees to gain richer knowledge.

As Unit One of Hopson professional course was themed with “new
process standards”, the course content covered Construction
Technology Standards for Facing Tiles and Tile Adhesives, Construction
Technology Standards for the Installation and Construction of Aluminium
Templates, Technology Standards for Construction of Thermal Insulation
of Rock Wool Boards for External Walls, and Technology Standards for
the Installation and Construction of Prefabricated Building Components,
enabling employees’ to gain knowledge of the equipment materials,
construction preparations, operating techniques and quality standards
involved in the projects.

The learning platform provides nearly 300 excellent courses. Employees
can learn through computers and mobile phones anytime and anywhere,
cultivating the habit of continuous learning.
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In addition, the Group has established comprehensive routine training.
The training organisation comprises of personnel from the Group’s
Human Resources and Administration Center, the Human Resources and
Administration Center in different regions, various pipelines and regional
companies under the Group’s headquarters, as well as designated
project trainers. It promotes continuous improvement of employees. The
Group has also provided training programmes for internal trainers. From
the team, we have tapped the lecturers who have the potential and
understand the Company’s business ideas to improve their teaching
ability and encourage a culture of mutual teaching and sharing.

Aside from internal training, the Group has also provided external training
management. The external management can be divided into short-term
external training and long-term external training. Employees can
participate in short-term training organised by external training institutions
to learn from rich corporate cases and improve their professional
knowledge. Through long-term external training, employees have the
chance to take academic qualification and degree education courses
organised by domestic and overseas institutions in China.

The Group has established the Hopson Youth Foundation to support the
career development of young employees and encourage employees to
participate in the development process of the Company. The foundation
is an organisation managed by a council based on the operation principle
of “majority decision”, and the members of the council are elected by all
employees of the Group. It mainly provides employees with assistance
including professional courses, qualification examinations and advanced
school support.

In order to further improve the performance capabilities of employees, the
Group also provides specific and clear assessment objectives and
assessment criteria under the Performance Management System of
Hopson Development Group, and continuously conducts performance
appraisals for employees. The objective and fair principle of performance
management also requires the whole process of performance appraisals
to be objective, fair, just, comprehensive, factual and respect the facts,
thereby enabling the performance appraisals to accurately reflect the
working conditions of the Group and employees. The employee
performance is recorded in accordance with the Administrative and Filing
Management Measures to provide the basis for human resources-related
decision making and staff development. Incentives will be granted based
on the Incentives Management Measures of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited.
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Health, Safety and Labour Standards

The Group actively creates a healthy, safe and inclusive working
environment for our employees and ensure every employee is treated
equally. The Group adheres to the “safety first” management attitude,
and strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations, including the Law on
the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, Work Safety Law
of the People's Republic of China, and the Administrative Regulations on
the Work Safety of Construction Projects. It strives to minimise potential
occupational safety and health risks for employees (including contract
workers). The Group has developed the Manual on the Safety Standard
for the On-site Construction Management and set up the Safety
Committee. We regularly update safety work reports and policies to
require that employees strictly abide by the safety policies and
management systems of the Group or subsidiary contractors as a
precaution against substantial safety accidents. In addition, the Group
equips employees with necessary safety precautionary measures and
provide essential labour protection materials to prevent occupational
hazards. The Group organises employees to conduct annual physical
examinations to provide employees with strengthened health and safety
protection. During the reporting year, the number of work-related fatalities
in the Group was Nil and the lost days due to work injury were 2,527
days, representing 0.15% of the total days scheduled to be worked for all
headcount.

The CCTV security devices were installed in offices to safeguard the
safety of our employees and assets. Emergency accesses are designed
in our office buildings to ensure the safe evacuation of employees and
vehicles in case of emergency, enabling government authorities to
maintain order and adopt suitable plans if an incident happened. All of
our offices also equip with air-purifiers and renewed green plant
decorations on a regular basis in order to improve indoor air quality.

The Group strictly complies with the related laws and regulations
including the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Law of
Protecting the Disabled of the People’s Republic of China. Accordingly,
the Group has established a sound human resources system framework
and management system to regulate issues such as remuneration,
dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hours, holidays and other
compensations and benefits to protect the labour rights. The Group
upholds the principle of meritocracy during recruitment. The Group also
stands adamantly by the following five recruitment principles: the open,
fair and just principle, the morality-first principle, the meritocracy principle,
the principle of internal promotion before external recruitment and the
family relationship declaration principle. We also require the Human
Resources and Administration Centers at all levels to carry out
transparent recruitment and results.
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Child labour or forced labour is prohibited in the Group. A verification
mechanism is implemented during recruitment and induction to ensure
the new employees are legal workers. Before employment, Human
Resources and Administration Centers at all levels will complete a
Background Report on job applicants. Employment approval will be
completed before the induction of new employees. An employee shall
present his/her original and copy of identity card, physical examination
report and other identification documentation on the date of induction for
identity, age and on-the-job verification. Human Resources and
Administration Centers at all levels will not deal with the induction
procedures in the absence of such identification documentation. The
Group opposes any form of discrimination, including gender, age,
nationality, ethnicity, disability and marital status. Employees enjoy equal
job opportunities and various welfare policies including training,
promotion, position re-designation, dismissal, layoffs and employment
conditions.

During the reporting period, the Group did not note any incident and
violation conceming the discrimination, use of child labour or forced
labour in all aspects of the business processes, and the practices for the
contract and agency labour complied with the national laws and
regulations.

Social Responsibility

To Construct Harmonious Society Together

Adhering to the people-oriented belief, the Group not only provides a
higher quality living environment for the society, and actively optimises
the customer’s life experience, but also pays attention to the
development and harmony of the local communities of the project,
promotes the construction of harmonious communities, and is committed
to shouldering social responsibility.

The Group implements the concept of “U Life” and provides various
heart-warming services with respect to the needs of different groups in
the community, aiming to bring better and more convenient life to all
residents. For example, the district will provide working families and
parents with value-added services, including child care, after-school
homework assistance, as well as games and activities. It also provides
short-term pet fostering services for pet owners, thus mitigating the
troubles and inconveniences in the dalily life of the residents.

The Group also extends care to the mental level by creating community
experiences categorised by hobbies, lifestyles and culture to create a
friendly and harmonious community. During the year, the Group held
nationwide birthday parties for homeowners, a photography competition,
a go-kart competition, a basketball invitation tournament, a Mother’s
Day-themed event, a children’s stage performance, and a hobby group
to gather like-minded residents with similar interests in the community,
thereby enhancing their communication and improving the sense of
belonging to the community.
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In addition, during the year, the Group launched the charity theme
donation activity of “Heart-warming Clothes Donation”, set up donation
bins in 22 sales centres in projects across the country, and invited
residents and caring people from all walks of life to donate unwanted
clothes for children in need. A total of nearly 1,000 pieces of clothing
were collected during this charity week in the hope of passing on care to
those in need and creating a harmonious community environment with
love and care.

Charity Services

The Group is enthusiastic in participating in public services and giving
back to the community through different channels. At the group level, the
Group has established the Charity Donation Policy to supervise relevant
activities and the use of the funds. To encourage employees to
participate in community services, the Group has specially established
incentive measures such as volunteer service leaves.

Sustainability Report (continued)
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Artistic and cultural performance for the disabled in the community in 2019

“T-NFHEREBALXZER

In addition, the Group encourages employees to participate in public
welfare activities through the Hopson Youth Foundation. The Foundation
invites various employees to participate in charity projects to show
support and raise funds for the disabled groups in the neighbouring
community. The Youth Foundation has internal management policies for
its day-to-day operations, including the Rules and Procedures of the
Youth Foundation Meetings, Management Measures for Expenses,
Budget Accounts and Approval Process of the Youth Foundation, and
Memorandum for the Prerequisites and Approval Procedures for the
Payments of Hopson Youth Foundation. During the year, Hopson Youth
Foundation continued to joined hands with Jinsong Street Disabled
Persons’ Federation to organise an artistic and cultural performance for
the disabled in the community, and provided small gifts to the disabled
during the lucky draw session to help them feel the care of the society.
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Sustainability Report (continued)
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The Group has spared no effort to support the community’s poverty
alleviation cause and care for the disadvantaged groups in the society. In
2019, the Group’s subsidiary, Hooplife Technology Group, joined the
China Accurate Poverty Alleviation Community Union and was elected as
a Government Unit of the China Accurate Poverty Alleviation Community
Union, which confirmed the Group’s efforts and contributions in the past
in poverty alleviation. The Union is a non-profit organisation established
by Yiju Lenong under the supervision and guidance of the China Poverty-
alleviation Promotion of Volunteer Service under the State Council
Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development, joined by
real estate companies, property management companies and home
furnishing companies. The Group will do its utmost to use its expertise
and resources to help villages rejuvenate and strive to become the
backbone of targeted poverty alleviation. The Group will also participate
in the “Power of the Community”, a New Year’s Eve festival for consumer
to support poverty alleviation. Through leveraging community resources
in property projects and the power of e-commerce, the festival aims to
promote more consumption of goods produced in villages and rural
areas.

The Group continues to support charitable activities and non-profit-
making organisations. In 2019, the Group made donations totalling
RMB5.67 million to organisations including the Education Fund of the
Affiliated High School of South China Normal University, Bamboo Forest
Temple in Mount Wutai in Shanxi Province, Huizhou Charity Federation
and Daya Bay Area Charity Federation to support comprehensive
development of the society. The employees of the Group also actively
participate in volunteer services to show their care to the disadvantaged
groups in the society. During the year, a total of 350 employees of the
Group participated in volunteer services, with total volunteer service
hours exceeding 375 hours.
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Sustainability Report (continued)

Performance Data Summary

RRBEBERE

Environmental performance KPIs'

REHEARER

A1.2 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity*

BERBAERER (WER BE’
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1and 2)  BZERELERA S (S E1%2) Tonnes CO.e

N s

GHG emissions (Scope 1)° BEREHNE (BE1)® Tonnes CO.e
A =R iR E

GHG emissions (Scope 2)° BERBENE (BE2)® Tonnes COze

N -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity

FELEEERRNAERR (WER)RE

Lamp/Bulb-Disposal BE/BA—ZEE Kg

Electrical and Electronic Waste-Disposal & & RE—EBEE P:<Fgﬁ
Electrical and Electronic Waste-Recycling & & RE—BkE P:<Fgﬁ
Industrial waste oil-Recycling THEEH—OkE ggz

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity

FEEREERRNEER (NEBER)ZE

Food waste-Disposal RUWEH -—EES ggﬁ
Food waste-Recycling REH — BKRE F;g;EE
Construction waste from interior RERZEEN —FES Tonnes
renovation — Disposal N
Domestic waste-Disposal EFENR -EEBES Qgﬁ
Construction waste from site work — BE/THERN B2 Tonnes
Disposal N
Paper-Recycling Ham— Bl E Kg
T
Plastic-Recycling BR-ElE Kg
T
Glass-Recycling W — B E Kg
T
Metal-Recycling LB -EkE Kg
T
Metal recycled in construction site BE /T E —DkE Ton@nes
N
Earthwork-Backfill +TH—[OEE Tonnes
N

The selection criteria for the environmental data in this report are:
(1) The ownership of all selected projects are more than 50%.

) Hotels and property investment projects continuously operated by the Group

are selected.
t©)] Property development projects with a higher proportion of turnover during the

year are selected, and which represents 80% of total turnover.
In 2019, the Group’s data covered 26 projects including 1 hotel operation project, 10 2
projects under development and 15 operating property investment and property
development projects.
In 2018, the Group’s data covered 28 projects including 1 hotel operation project, 11 8
projects under development, 10 operating property investment and property
development projects and 6 property management projects.
The Group’s GHG emissions are calculated with reference to ISO14064 greenhouse 4
gas validation and verification specifications,
For the calculation of the GHG emissions from Scope 1, the Group uses the National V
standard automobile gasoline average density (0.747kg/L) and the National Standard
of the People’s Republic of China GB19147-2013 automobile diesel (V) average
density (0.83kg/L).
For the calculation of the GHG emissions from Scope 2, the Group uses the carbon 6
emission factors listed in How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPls, the Stock Exchange’s guidance material on ESG.

Data coverage in 2018 includes property management projects, where the food waste
recycling of residents was included. As the data coverage in 2019 does not include
any property management project, the volume of food waste recycling is drastically
reduced.

AFERRERE @
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Sustainability Report (continued)
AFEERERE @

Performance Data Summary (Continued)

RUHBRE @

Environmental performance KPIs'

REREENER

A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity

BREHIINWEER RNBEEREEEREE

Petrol i kWh 13,654 135,287
TR
Diesel 5¢h kWh 77,641 2,546
T B
Natural gas RKAR kWh 7,029,265 6,999,808
TR
Total direct energy consumption BERERERS kWh 7,120,560 7,137,641
TR
Total direct energy consumption by HERBRERE TREBR®EE  KWh/m? 0.3956 0.4029
project area HE F R TK
Total purchased electricity INBENBE kWh 79,490,906 85,680,736
T R B
Total purchased heat INER N BE GJ 50,500 71,839
B
Total indirect energy consumption HEgEReEs kWh 93,518,796 105,636,036
TR
Total indirect energy consumption by BEEREREE TRERBEE kWh/m? 5.20 5.96
project area E FREFHK

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

REKBERZE(NUSEREMN SEHRENH)

Water Consumption FKE m® 2,587,796 3,926,739
3K
Recycled water BEBANKS m?® 0 101,779
ST K
Total water consumption by project area 42 #E/k 8 % & /1218 B H & m?/m? 0.14 0.23
E SLH RS K

Social performance KPls

HERRERER

B1.1 Total workforce (by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region)
EEAH (R ERED FRENRLESS)

Male B Number 6,759 5,412
ANEL

Female M Number 3,626 4,164
ANEL

Top-level Management SRERE Number 207 144
ANEL

Middle-level Management R EIEE Number 1,459 578
N -

General staff —MET Number 8,719 8,854
A

Age 30 or below 305% 8 LA T Number 2,796 2,457
N

Age 31-40 312 405% Number 3,586 3,128
A

Age41-50 M E505% Number 2,601 2,321
ANEL

Age 50 or above 508% 8 A £ Number 1,402 1,670
ANEL

Hong Kong BB Number 15 9
ANER

The PRC o B b Number 10,370 9,567
N -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate (by gender, age group and geographical region)

BERALR(ZRMER FRAFNRBERS)

Male B Percentage 36.25% No disclosure
Btk REWE
Female 7 Percentage 29.73% No disclosure
"B REWE
Age 30 or below 30 LA~ Percentage 46.89% No disclosure
Btk REHE
Age 31-40 312 4075% Percentage 32.57% No disclosure
"B REWE
Age 41-50 4 E505% Percentage 30.18% No disclosure
Btk REWE
Age 50 or above 505% 8k A Percentage 18.83% No disclosure
"B REWE
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Performance Data Summary (Continued)
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Social performance KPls

HEERENEE
Hong Kong H58 Percentage 27.00% No disclosure
ERalsd REHE
The PRC R A Percentage 33.99% No disclosure
[ KERHE
B2.1 Number of work-related fatalities and ratio
EIEBEMETHAZSRELER
Number of work-related fatalities TYEBEMXT A E T4 5 Numberand percentage 0 0
ABREDLL
B2.2 Number of lost days due to work injury
EIGEAXIFEAR
Number of lost days due to work injury THEELANETIIHERH Days 2,527 No disclosure
X REHB
Lost day rate BARTIEE SR Percentage 0.15% No disclosure
(Lost days/Total days AEWE

scheduled to be worked
for all headcount)
Bl
(BRAItERE 28
BIETEBE)
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
HRREEEANEINZIEEES L

Male Bk Percentage 99.16% No disclosure
AL REHE
Female pegcd Percentage 93.55% No disclosure
Bkt KEHE
Top-level Management ShEIERB Percentage 100.00% No disclosure
ADL REHFE
Middle-level Management hREERE Percentage 99.72% No disclosure
Bkt KEHE
General staff —RET Percentage 96.88% No disclosure
AL REHE

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee (by gender and employee category)
BEEERHZINTEFOSGH (EEIREEERES)

Male Bk Hours 5.75 No disclosure
AN KERE
Female 2 Hours 5.08 No disclosure
N KEHE
Top-level Management SRER Hours 28.20 No disclosure
AN KERE
Middle-level Management hREIEE Hours 10.71 No disclosure
N KEHE
General staff —RET Hours 4.08 No disclosure
AN KEHE

B5.1 Number of suppliers (by geographical region)
HEBHE (RELES2)

The PRC R A Number 660 No disclosure
#H RERKE
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
EERRERRBRBNRFRE
Number of products and service related %5 1 B8 70 & 54 M iR 755 AU 1% 5 Cases 1,398 1,751
complaints received L g=] = (during the period, (during the period,
98.14% of complaints ~ 99% of complaints
are followed are followed
up and closed) up and closed)
(B2 (e
B3R ek B R T
98.14% ) A %) 99% ) A1)
B8.2 Community Investment — resources contributed to the focus area
HERE-ESTHERMBHAER
Total amount of donations to the RmEEREEE HKS 6,394,000 121,809,000
community BT
Number of volunteer work SRR TS A B Number 350 360
ANEX
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Sustainability Report (continued)
AFEERERE @

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Index
ERRGAH (RIR - £t ERERHKE) E5l%Rol

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks

TEER -EH —REERFERERER 20 He

Aspect A1 Emission EMEA1 : Y

General Disclosure Environmental Protection — 134-138
— B E Green Building
RIBRE - HEREE
KPIAT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Performance Data Summary 149
BREBUEIEATT PR & AR B R R B - BHHEREE
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Performance Data Summary 149
B R IE1ZA1.2  appropriate, intensity. BERBIERE
BERBAYNE U8 R(ER) BE -
KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Performance Data Summary 149
BB 4B IR HZA1.3  intensity. EWEIE B
FMEEEEEEDES UEE) R(WER) HE -
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Performance Data Summary 149
B8 4E M I51ZA1.4  where appropriate, intensity. BERBIERE
FEXEEFEEYHEE UEAE) R(WER)EE -
KPIA1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Environmental Protection — 134-138
FREMIEIEAS MR EHERENEERTEKR - Green Building
RIBRE - HEREE
Environmental Protection — 138

Energy Saving in the Office
RIBRE - PAERREEE

KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Environmental Protection — 134-138
A8 4E M I512A1.6  handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. Green Building
HlRIEEENBEEEYN A RIERE -—HEREE
AR E & 8 BE R FTISRCR - Environmental Protection — 138

Energy Saving in the Office
RBRE - PRERIREEE

Aspect A2 Use of Resources EHEA2 : &R E A

General Disclosure Environmental Protection 134-138
—RIRE RIBRE

KPIA2.1 Directed and/or indirect energy consumption Performance Data Summary 150
S RIEIZA2.1 by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWhin ~ 000s) BERHBIERZ

and intensity.
REDIHDWEE RN EELR(WE - "o
HREEBUTETERAE) REE -

KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary 150

MR ERIEIEA22 BRKEREE - BERBERE
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Sustainability Report (continued)

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Index (Continued)
ERRZ (RIR - wEREREHE) B5I%E3| @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FTEER -EH —REERERERER

KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
FAREMIEIEA23 L IRE A B m st B RATEMR -

KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
FAsR B WIEHZEA2.4  for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
ot SREGE A KR BRI BRI R RE - DA KRR T K s 5t &l
KPS RR

KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and,
FASR B WIEFEA2.5  if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
R EAREMEMEE (CUEAE) R(EA)
EEEMNGE -

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources EBHA3 : BE R XRER

General Disclosure

—RRE

KPIAS.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
B8 4E W F512A3.1  and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
R EBEHHRBERRARERNERATLE
MERKREBEHTZENTH -

Employment and Labour Practices EER% T ER
Aspect B1 Employment EEB1 : E &

General Disclosure
— MR E

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
BA 84 W F512B1.1  geographical region.
RIER  EERE  FRAEANRMEESHNES LS -

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
B4R 1B WIEIEB1.2 region.
IR FRARIRILE RS MR RKLE -

AEFEZRERS @

Reference/Remarks

28 H8

Environmental Protection — 134-138
Green Building

RIERE —HEEE

Environmental Protection — 138
Energy Saving in the Office

RIRRE - PREERE

Environmental Protection — 134-138
Green Building

RIERE -—HREEE

Environmental Protection — 138
Energy Saving in the Office

RIRRE - PAEEEE

Not applicable — This KPlis irrelevant to the
business operation of the Group so it is not
applicable for the disclosure.
TEAWESERASENETZXBEEM
SYTER - WAAERE )

Environmental Protection — 134-138
Green Building
RIBIRE —HERE

Environmental Protection — 134-138
Green Building
RGERE —HBEREE

Employment Relationship — Systems 139-140
and Benefits for Employees
BEBER—(EEHELEF

Employment Relationship — Career 140-144
Development and Training
BEAER-BEERNLIE

Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146
Safety and Labour Standards

EREG-ER 22RBITRHRE

Performance Data Summary 150
BEREIEEE

Performance Data Summary 150-151
BEHHEEE

SHEAREBEERAT —E-NEFH
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Sustainability Report (continued)
AFEERERE @

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Index (Continued)
ERXGAH (R - £t ERERHE) B3RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FTEHEE - -BH - —

BRERERBERERER

Reference/Remarks

28 38

Aspect B2 Healthand Safety EBHEB2: @FHZ 2

General Disclosure Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146
— M E Safety and Labour Standards
EEBE-ER T2RBIFE
KPIB2.1 Number and percentage of work-related fatalities. Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146
RASRAERIEIZB2 EIEEEMETHAREE D o Safety and Labour Standards
ERBFE-RER T2RhBIRE
Performance Data Summary 151
BHEIEREE
KPIB2.2 Number of lost days due to work injury. Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146
RABE M EIEB22 HAITBIBATIIEAE - Safety and Labour Standards
ERBAGFR-RER T2RBIFE
Performance Data Summary 151
BRI E
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, ~ Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146
FAsR B W IEHEB2.3  how they are implemented and monitored. Safety and Labour Standards
AT ER AN B R R B 2 - DA RBRI R TT ERBE-REER T2RhBIRE
REERFE -
Aspect B3 Development and Training JE B3 : 2 & & 32 3l
General Disclosure Employment Relationship — Systems 139-140
— M E and Benefits for Employees
B IERAEFE—E S HE REF
Employment Relationship — Career 140-145
Development and Training
1 178 8 1R — BB 35 3 e R 3B 3l
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Performance Data Summary 151
F5 B BIEIEBB.T  category. BREEREZ
RUERNREERANESNZIEEADL -
KPIB3.2 The average training hours completed per employee Performance Data Summary 151
2 ﬁ% B ?5 T}rij\ B3.2 by gender and emp|oyee category. BB T); ?% z
RENKEEEMNE Y BREETKZIN
TR B -
Aspect B4 Labour Standards B HEB4 : & T 2§
General Disclosure Employment Relationship — Systems 139-140
— MR ER and Benefits for Employees
B 1R R —1E 8 HIE RAEF
Employment Relationship — Health, 140-145
Safety and Labour Standards
EREBGRER-RER T2RBIFE
KPIB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices Employment Relationship — Systems 139-140
RABR4E I 1EB4.1 10 avoid child and forced labour. and Benefits for Employees
W T B I A R E T RBRHST - 1 13 A 1 — 1 B 5l /% S 42 7
Employment Relationship — Health, 140-145

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Sustainability Report (continued)
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Index (Continued)
ERRGAH (RIKE - £t RERHE) B3RS @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks
TEHE EH —REERBEERESR 20 GE
KPIB4.2 Description of the steps taken to eliminate a violation when it is Employment Relationship — Systems 139-140
B HE & N F51ZB4.2  discovered. and Benefits for Employees
il FE 25 3R R AR B IS bR B RIS L BT BRER B 2P BR - B IR RE—1E & HIE BT
Employment Relationship — Health, 145-146

Safety and Labour Standards
ERBGE-RE Z2hBIRE

Operating Practices % & 18§l
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management [EHEBS5 : 1 fE§E & 18

General Disclosure Responsible Operations 127-133
—RIEE BEAEE

KPIB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data Summary 151

R AE RIS IER5 IR E R S A EREEE o BEREIEREE

KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Responsible Operations — Compliance 127-128

AR AR R FE1EBG6.2  suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are  Operations and Anti-Corruption

T GE A 4 S A
implemented and monitored. BRAEE-AREER

38307 T P 5 R 0 B 5 1R - ijsible Ooeratons
HEEBE - R E RIE DS RT RER I - S G Moot 512

BEMAEE —HEBERE
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility EEB6 : & fm = F

General Disclosure Responsible Operations — 129-131
— R E Product and Service Quality
BEAEE-—EQkRERE

KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Not applicable — This KPl is irrelevant to the
B 45 W I545B6.1  safety and health reasons. business operation of the Group so it is not
EENCEREMBEHRTRL D BEERIER applicable for the disclosure.
HEIEE G s TEAWESRERASEN T2 XBUEEN
SWTERA  WTEREE )
KPIB6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Responsible Operations — Customer ~ 132-133
RA % E M F51ZB6.2 received and how they are dealt with. Service
EEANEDRREONIRFEE ARBEEH T X - BEREE-EFPRY
Performance Data Summary 151
BREERZ
KPIB6.3 Description of practices relating to observing Not applicable — This KPl is irrelevant to the
BB 45 A F54ZB6.3  and protecting intellectual property rights. business operation of the Group so it is not
Wi EEERRENSREEGEENED - applicable for the disclosure.

TERBLERENAEREN T ZERILEN
SATER  MAERE )

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Responsible Operations — 128-129
FARIENIEIZB6.4 HIEERTAENERBIWIER - Supply Chain Management
BEREE-—HERER
Responsible Operations — 129-131

Product and Service Quality
BEEEE—EmkRBMRE

AEAREEERAT —S—NEEH 155



Sustainability Report (continued)
AFEERRE @

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks
TEER BFEH —REBERBEEERER 20, HEE
KPIB.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how  Responsible Operations — Customer ~ 132-133
BA i 4B I 15 B6.5 they are implemented and monitored. Service
B BEEERRERFLBBE - L RAEART BEAEE -TEPRY
REEERTTE -

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Responsible Operations — Compliance 127-128
— MR Operations and Anti-Corruption

BREERE-AREZRREN

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Responsible Operations — Compliance 127-128
BA8E4E I 1ZB7.1  brought against the issuer or its employees Operations and Anti-Corruption
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. BEEEE-GHEERERRES

EAE%EHHW%’H‘é‘ﬁ)\iﬁ@i%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ@é%
FAREMWEE RFDRER

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Responsible Operations — Compliance 127-128
B 45 I 15 B7.2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Operations and Anti-Corruption
By #0150 R R R A2 Fr - LA RABRARTT BEAEE-—AHREBELERRES

RERTE-

Community # &
Aspect B8 Community Investment BHEBS : H B &

General Disclosure Social Responsibility — To Construct 146-147
— MR Harmonious Society Together

HEEME - HEMELE
Social Respon3|blllty — Charity Services

HeEMT— QR 147-148
KPIB8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Social Responsibility — To Construct 146-147
RABLEMIEIEB8 B EEEE - Harmonious Society Together

HEEFE - HEMBLRE

Social Respon3|b|llty — Charity

Services 147-148
HteEE - 2=mR%

KPIB8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Performance Data Summary 151

BgtERIEEBS2 EEIHBBRHAER - BHBERE
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To the Shareholders of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hopson Development Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 166 to 285, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

8 3 A% BUED 3R & m)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31st December 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Valuation of investment properties

° Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land

° Recoverability of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRESER

B 3 A% BLED 3R 5 om)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNBEANAEEFARENSR

Valuation of investment properties

REMENMGE

Refer to Notes 4.1(a) and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements

iR A M BRI E4.1(0) %8

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be HK$56,962 milion at 31st
December 2019, with a revaluation gain for the year ended
31st December 2019 of HK$8,176 million recorded in the
consolidated income statement. External valuations were
obtained for all the investment properties in order to support
management’s estimates. Fair values of completed
investment properties are derived using the income
capitalisation method, and fair values of investment
properties under development are derived using the residual
method. The valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant judgement, including
capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents. The
valuations of investment properties under development are
also dependent upon the estimated costs to completion
and estimated developer’s profit.

EEECHEEER _E—NFEF+_A=+—8H
REMERTFER/S62EE BT MREEKEE
MRAZEBEZEZE_Z—NWF+_A=+—BLEFEZER
W Bl R817T6 A BB T » FTERE M E LB BN
HME BEUAXHEBEZAFT BEERREVENR
FETARABREGEE MBERPREDENR
FEANAFGESE - HEDRARE TR EERH
MONEEZRR BREEAMCELERRITMSEE - &
BAREMENMGEITTBOR G EBOK AR R b5
FEEAE -

Due to the existence of significant judgement in making
assumptions used in the valuation of investment properties,
we considered it a key audit matter.
HARELHKREMEGMEMBCBRRBEEERAE - &
BPEER AR ETEE-

Qur procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

RERBETREMENGEENS  RMANEFE%E:

° Evaluating the external independent valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o FIEBIUINEEEMNT®H EHOREBEE:

o Reviewing valuation reports and meeting with the
independent valuers to discuss valuation
methodologies;

e FHRMEBRSVYEBUYGEMEE UAwmMEE
FA

o Assessing the valuation methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key underlying assumptions,
including capitalisation rates, estimated developer’s
profit and prevailing market rents, based on our
knowledge of the property industry, comparing to
available market information for comparable properties
and using our internal valuation experts; and

o HREMEUWETENRE MG LA
AOALEEMEEHTERERMOATEHESR
K UG AREREZREZHEBRREE R
g ERERNME A ERANBRRITTIS
He: R

° Checking on a sample basis, the data provided by the
Group to the independent external valuers, including
agreeing the rental information to the underlying lease
contracts and/or market rental information of
comparable properties as applicable, agreeing the
costs incurred and the budgeted costs to the
construction contracts and/or the supporting
documentation.

e HBHMEAAXEE REEEERMHE THELIBME
EMNEE EEBEHEBERAESNNESER
R/ARKAENEMETSHSEMRERE) -
EIREGHMPRAARBEER AR 3HERX
o

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available audit evidence.

BMBEREERR AN SEFREMH

REAREEERAA

ZE-NFFH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

8 3 A% BUED 3R & m)

Key Audit Matter
RETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEANNEEFARENSER

Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land
W B 4 3 78 A< SR I8 B9 BT I E 1

Refer to Notes 4.1(b), 17, 42(e) and 42(f) to the consolidated
financial statements
IRMAR B MM KM FE41(0) ~ 17 ~ 42(e) K2 42(F)

The Group had prepayments for acquisition of land of
HK$10,886 million as at 31st December 2019.
Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances
made for the acquisitions of land use rights, for which the
formal land use right certificates have not yet been
obtained.
BEEER_ZE—NF+_A=1T—HBEKELHEN
TRIE /510,886 B &8 7T o Ui T T8 (N sRIB T AR K
B RER B MAAMEN L B#EE KR
g e

The balance includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,186 million for the land situated in Chaoyang District,
Beijing, Mainland China, through the acquisition of a
company from Mr. Chu Mang Yee (“Mr. Chu”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, in 2007, which
possesses the right to develop the project on the land. Mr.
Chu has undertaken to the Group to be responsible for the
excess amount, if any, payable by the project company in
respect of any increase in plot ratio as the government may
approve.

ERBENR4186 BB B THIRIE - AR —BEL N F
Wit REAGEH T EDERKE—RK &4
AIERRERGEREE((REEDEBEN QARG -
HR T+ FAAEZ T HERBEAEN - R5E
FEmMESEAREAETRERB A G BN AT 888 £ 0
ERBAEERES ZEINFIEME)
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QOur procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the recoverability of prepayments for the acquisition of land
included:

HEIRE AW TR RIEN TR E S
WEF B :

- H A

° Discussing with management on the latest status and
development plans of the underlying property projects,
such as expected dates in obtaining the formal land
use right certificates and expected completion dates of
the projects;

s HERBENWMEBEVEBRBENRIRERERT
g-mBREEALHEREENESAHLES
EHRIAH:

o Reading the Group’s correspondence with the relevant
government authorities and Hanjiang;
e MESSEHEMEEBUTHERBEINEMA:

o Obtaining the opinions received by management from
independent legal counsels and discussing with them
on the legality of the land transfer contracts and the
undertakings provided by Mr. Chu, and whether any
idle land penalties have been imposed by the relevant
government authorities; and

s EMERBRERBUVEAZERUDMMNER  RHER
ENmIMEESAONEG AL ARREEED
B 7 56 N AR B AT B B A i A0 E fR] ) B & b &
P73

o Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing,
on a sample basis, the estimated market value of the
land with the recent market transaction prices of land
parcels with comparable locations.

e HEEMEFAALRLMMAEAMISEERRALLAE
WO TSR SERE UAREBREN
BRI

We found that management’s assessment on recoverability
of prepayments for acquisition of land is supported by the
available evidence.

P93 3R E 1R 2 b WS & 3 0 T8 5 BRIE B9 AT U [E] 1 ) RE
Ty AIISE BT HF -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
RETER

B ZEEBRE @

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MBS NAEEBRENSE

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$3,797 million for the land situated in Panyu District,
Guangdong, Mainland China, which the Group has
obtained the right to develop the land through the
acquisition of a wholly owned subsidiary from Guangdong
Hanjiang Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”),
a related company, in 2010. Hanjiang agreed to perform
and complete all necessary demolition and preparation
work to obtain the land use right certificate at its own
expense. Mr. Chu has undertaken to the Group to
guarantee the due and punctual performance by Hanjiang
of its obligations in relation to the land (subject to a
maximum amount of RMB3,600 million).

EANEREER —RURTRAEERER R L
BWRIBLI7TI7TEEET EEENBERAN _T—TF
MAERRBERBIZELEIRARLQA([EI])
WE—E2EMBARIMIRGZ T e ERE 5T
AEEBERIEW KD IMTOFER R ERTELAE
SLERAREE RAEFCDMESERFHRIZEN
HETEAEA LN EE(ZeaREBER/RAREI600H

e —

BIT) °

Management assessed the likelihood of obtaining the
related land use rights by reference to the latest discussions
with the relevant government authorities and Hanjiang.
Management took into consideration opinions from
independent legal counsels on the legality of the land
transfer contracts and the undertakings provided by Mr.
Chu, and whether any idle land penalties have been
imposed by the relevant government authorities.
BN THGAA T AN AN A2
RO EBARNTRELR IO mME - BREZE
BTEAEBERS T HEES N RREEREHA
MEAEMNE R - LAKRMEREBT# B A S i A
FE LI

Management also assessed the recoverability of
prepayments for acquisition of land, taking into account the
estimated market value of the land, and concluded that no
provision for impairment is necessary. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

IR E IR AT Al U BB L b TR RRIA Y AT R B MR -
THFEATEMALZE - WAL BEELHRERS -
WEEEMNBEREBHERETET —E AT KB -
BlgELBE -

Due to the existence of significant management judgement
in making assumptions used in the recoverability of
prepayments for acquisition of land, we considered it a key
audit matter.

B PO R + i TR R IE Y FT U B BT A 2 R AR 17
EEBENEANAE BMNEERSAREAFE-

REAREEERAA

ZE-NFFH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

8 3 A% BUED 3R & m)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEANNEEFARENSER

Recoverability of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale
AHEEZERTYMERAIHLEEZEEKYENTA
W [ 14

Refer to Notes 4.1(c) and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements

IR AR A M AR M E4.1(0) )29

The Group had properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale of HK$57,047 million and
HK$31,261 million respectively as at 31st December 2019.
Management assessed the recoverability of the properties
under development for sale and completed properties for
sale, taking into account the estimated costs to completion
and estimated net sales value under prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable.
EEERZZE-NF+ZA=+—HBBAHLEZ
BERPMERAMEEZERZXMED R RS7,047H
BAETK3261EEB T ERENTEAHREEZ
BERPYERAMEE 2B EKYE AW B
HEER AT TR R TR RAGFTHHE FEEIIAZ
o e B A E B RN ¥ B B R AR T (B AT AR A D)
B RlgEHE -

Due to the existence of significant management judgement
in making assumptions used in the recoverability of
properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale, we considered it a key audit matter.
HAMEHATHEHEZBRPMERAIBEEZEEK
MENAROMERBZ RRFEEIRENERHE
BMEERSBARESAEE-
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QOur procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the recoverability of completed properties for sale included:
HEBETRAMHEEZEZKYENTRE MRS
BMHRERFBE:

° Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing,
on a sample basis, the estimated selling price used in
the assessment with the recent price or market prices
of properties with comparable locations and conditions.

s HERMEIALBCEHMERTEMAANMEAERE
SAEEMERRADENTE NI REBEN
BRER

Qur procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the recoverability of properties under development for sale
included:
HERBAGEAHLEZERDTYENAIKE MR E -
BPHREFBE:

Testing the key controls around the property
construction cycle with particular focus on, but not
limited to, control over cost budgeting for estimated
costs to completion; and
RAAMETRRBENFTEZEE  CEHEIR(ET
PRA) BT R TR AR K ARTEE T &

o Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing,
on a sample basis, the estimated selling price and the
estimated cost to completion used in the assessment
with the recent market price of properties with
comparable locations and conditions and latest
approved budgets on total construction costs by
checking to supporting documentation such as quantity
surveyor reports and signed contracts.

s HERMEITALBRBMEFOHEERMEFRIX
REPTAEEE AR ENTRATERER
EITHASERENERTANEITAXNGMESR
BBREERANRNEHETEE  UTREREE
BT A o

We found that management’s assessment on recoverability
of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale is supported by the available evidence.
BMERERERAMEEcERPYERAHEEZ
B & A ) 35 69 P U B 1 O BT T B AT SRR AR P S o



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

B 3 A% BLED 3R 5 om)
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chui Man.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RREERER

As at 31st December 2019 R-Z—NE+-A=+—8H
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2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt s FET FAT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land costs + 3B A AN — 1,675,097
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B8 + b 7B 1~ 3k 18 17 118,758 121,411
Prepayments for construction work B IIETEMFRIEA 17 244,107 -
Loan receivables FEUE T 16 170,801 743,201
Properties and equipment ENE 7 4,976,880 4,571,452
Investment properties "EME 8 56,961,529 46,856,835
Goodwill = 10 34,534 35,249
Investments in associates REE QR ZRE 11 364,855 147,668
Investments in joint ventures REERRIZIRE 12 5,059,567 7,514,062
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEBEMERE
other comprehensive income WADBE 2 B8 & E 14 3,337,773 3,144,258
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEBERIEZ
profit or loss PIEEE 15 - 35,000
Finance lease receivables b E & E R RIE 13 344,656 159,828
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6 1,634,045 -
Deferred tax assets REFRIBE = 26 1,309,259 784,147
74,556,764 65,788,208
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B8+ ¥B N k1A 17 10,767,194 9,403,647
Properties under development for sale A E v RRERYE 9 57,047,059 41,237,995
Completed properties for sale AfEEZEERYE 31,260,655 30,299,744
Financial assets at fair value through AV EEBEBERIE L
profit or loss B 75 & & 15 788,403 775,943
Accounts receivable FE U BR K 18 1,058,081 784,882
Loan receivables ERER 16 2,520,879 1,983,693
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI RIE e REM
current assets MENEE 17 8,060,451 5,370,900
Due from a joint venture FEW—ME & & A rlRIE 42 48,845 45112
Due from associates FE U Bt 5 N B 0 IB 42 58,964 201
Due from related companies FEURREE N R I8 42 8,318 7,149
Contract assets AHEE 19 982,860 473,606
Pledged/charged bank deposits B A RITER 20 1,466,913 483,182
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBEEEY 20 12,635,125 7,456,708
126,703,747 98,322,762
Assets classified as held for sale DERBEHECEE 21 2,843,132 -
129,546,879 98,322,762
Total assets HWEE 204,103,643 164,110,970



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

EE8EX @

As at 31st December 2019 R-Z—NE+-A=+—8H

2019
ZE-NF
Note HK$’000
iikz3 FET
EQUITY E
Capital and reserves attributable to A QT REFH AEHEKRE
the Company’s equity holders ki#EE
Share capital B& 7 28 222,556
Reserves HE 30 72,358,121
72,580,677
Non-controlling interests FEFE ) 1 R = 29 2,434,725
Total equity DB 75,015,402
LIABILITIES 8%
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Land cost payable FEAST K AR 91,043
Borrowings BE 25 50,700,558
Lease liabilities HEBRE 22 676,246
Due to non-controlling interests FETIEVE B 2 2 BB 42 2,126,867
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B E 26 9,957,093
63,551,807
Current liabilities RBas
Accounts payable, accruals and other  JETBR 3 - FEETFIE K
payables H i fE B 23 22,970,848
Land cost payable JE £ b R A 359,201
Borrowings Ty 25 12,689,322
Contract liabilities EHaE 24 19,505,008
Lease liabilities HERE 22 8,419
Due to an associate e — & R R 2 RIE 42 5,964
Due to related companies FETRE R R 25K 42 366,248
Due to joint ventures BN E&ERRZHIA 42 3,011,241
Current tax liabilities RERIEEE 27 6,620,183
65,536,434
Total liabilities BEHAE 129,088,241
Total equity and liabilities BEzRBEHEE 204,103,643
Chu Kut Yung Xi Ronggui
KIER EHRE
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
*E THAEH

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial

statements.

2018
—EF-N\F
HK$'000
FTAET

222,556
65,472,354

65,694,910
2,078,725

67,773,635

88,310
41,656,532

514,605
8,323,506

50,582,953

13,942,503
4,996
13,444,611
10,304,371
6,299
260,654
2,773,349
5,017,599

45,754,382

96,337,335

164,110,970

BEMT < P RE I 4R & B IS SRR VAR BB 1D

REAREEERAA

ZE-NFFH



Consolidated Income Statement

ma R

For the Year ended 31st December 2019 H#ZE —ZT— W&+ _-_A=+—HILtEE

2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$000
bt e TET FAT
Revenues g 5 18,600,580 13,293,532
Cost of sales 6 B A (9,237,436) (6,765,596)
Gross profit EX 9,363,144 6,527,936
Fair value gain on investment properties % & ) % A (B Iz 8 8,175,781 4,673,345
Other gains, net H sk JF58 31 285,329 161,935
Selling and marketing expenses MERTEKREER (736,887) (378,153
General and administrative expenses —mRTHREA (1,831,815) (1,581,856)
Finance income IR TN 35 394,311 173,949
Finance costs B 75 B AR 35 (1,002,439) (578,319)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates DREEE R E (E18), % F) 11 (4,562) 1,637
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures DiEEE R REF(F18) 12 119,113 (6,152)
Profit before taxation & 5 A v A 14,761,975 8,994,322
Taxation FimE 36 (5,111,585) (8,171,723)
Profit for the year FEEBA 9,650,390 5,822,599
Attributable to: FEAh
Equity holders of the Company RARIREFE A 9,486,000 5,775,467
Non-controlling interests JEFE I R S 164,390 47,132
9,650,390 5,822,599
Earnings per share for profit BEREQATREREETA
attributable to equity holders of EBhEBEAAE2EREF
the Company during the year (% T
(in HKS per share)
— basic and diluted —HAREE 37 2.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial B i 2 i 51 T 47 & 81 % 3R 3% B 4B B 261D o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEBARE

For the Year ended 31st December 2019 HE—ZT—NE+-A=+—HILFEE

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaF FTHET FiE T
Profit for the year FEEBEAN 9,650,390 5,822,599
Other comprehensive income: Ht2mEBA:
Items that may be reclassified HEEenEg#r5eEms
subsequently to profit or loss: HAE :
Assets revaluation reserve realised HEFELED EK
upon disposal of completed MEREIER 2 EE
properties held for sale BlEHE (87,079) (87,746)
Deferred tax IREFE 40,341 33,081
Currency translation differences BHEE N Z5 (1,535,553) (3,205,050)
Item that will not be reclassified HEETSEN D EZ B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE -
Fair value loss on financial assets at BEATEEAEMEE
fair value through other WSR2 BT 75 & B
comprehensive income Z N EEE 14 (539,540) (273,347)
Deferred tax iR IE T IE 139,392 68,337

Other comprehensive loss for the year, FEHE 2 HE A8 > BB

net of tax B (1,982,439) (3,464,725)
Total comprehensive income FEXEWRAAE

for the year 7,667,951 2,357,874
Attributable to: FE4L :

Equity holders of the Company RARRERE A 7,553,435 2,410,104

Non-controlling interests FE 28 I 4 A 2 114,516 (52,230)

7,667,951 2,357,874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial & it 2 i 5% 542 & B B R R B9 4B B 2017 -
statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERETMEBR

For the Year ended 31st December 2019 HE—ZT—NE+-_A=+—HIFE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FEx

Note
Bt s

Cash flows from operating activities K& FEsHERE
Cash generated from operations KeEELAZHES
Interest received 2 AR

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China corporate income

ENEBNEHR
ENPBEAELEMEHR

39(a) 4,617,269

389,540
(4,228)
(1,222,690)

(686,305)

tax paid
Mainland China land appreciation BT B KRE AR
tax paid
Net cash generated from operating KETHEL VRS FE
activities
Cash flows from investing activities BREZH2HERE

Dividend income from financial assets BMAFEAEZHBEEE

measured at fair value A% B U A
Dividend income from a joint venture —EAERREEWA
Additions of properties and equipment 7 1% 1) 2 [ 5 45
Additions of investment properties g EmE
Additions of loan receivables G E R

Additions of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Additions of financial assets at fair

RNV EEBER
SR B EE
g AT EEREM

value through other comprehensive 2HEUW AT Z 87
income BE

Proceeds from disposal of financial REBRAFEFRBIER
assets at fair value through profit or IR Z IS B ETE
loss RIE

Capital injection in an associate and AET—HBEAFR
joint ventures ARELE

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash U i — R B A 7 - 1B
acquired BEESR®

Proceeds from disposal of an associate
and a joint venture, net of cash

HE—EBEAT B
ABOCEMSRE

3,093,586

155,841
(723,799)
(1,106,193)
(36,333)

(1,548,931)

(774,245)

1,639,425
(738,935)

39(b)

62,596
2,910

(1,005,279)

disposed HHREERS
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, € [} & 2 7] BT 15 308
net of cash disposed HHREERS
Increase in pledged/charged bank EEIF B RITFR
deposits 3 hn
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEMAB RS F5E

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019

(4,072,943)

2018
—ZE-N\F
HK$’000
FHET

7,282,084
169,124
(268)
(1,072,591)

(841,872)

5,636,477

149,184

181,817
(165,671)
(967,512)
(783,898)

(386,178)

113,224
(32,883)

(1,108,602)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

mERERER®@
For the Year ended 31st December 2019 HE—ZT—NE+-A=+—HILFEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$000
bt & FTET FAT
Cash flows from financing activites FBEEB2REH K 39(c)
Interest paid =ERERS (3,781,041) (3,290,999)
Additions of short-term bank and L C HSR 1T R B %
financial institution borrowings R E T 3,423,530 2,554,616
Additions of long-term bank and g RABRIT R
financial institution borrowings BEED 14,397,087 12,667,451
Additions of commercial mortgage FIZ R I ERES
backed securities 2,507,173 5,808,599
Additions of senior notes AR E L RE 3,829,694 -
Repayment of bank and financial EBIBITMNUBEEBER
institution borrowings (10,734,596) (15,043,466)
Repayment of commercial mortgage BEmMERFERES
backed securities (42,393) —
Repayment of asset-backed securities {818 & & X155 5 (1,670,448) (376,144)
Redemption and repayment of fEO REERAES
corporate bonds (2,257,362) (1,284,964)
Capital contribution by non-controling  ZE3% #1425 £ &
interests 453,112 20,647
Acquisition of additional interest in KE—HNB AR 2
a subsidiary HIME S (211,628) -
Increase in due to non-controlling FET IEH | MRS 2 FIB
interests & 32 0 870,211 _
Advances from related companies BERNAI BN 111,181 91,277
Advances from/(repayment to) a joint =k WNCIE-T
venture (BET)—MHEaERA 192,966 (294,068)
Dividend paid to Company’s equity ERNAQBREREA
holders % & (667,668) (890,224)
Dividend paid to non-controlling BT IR RS 2 B
interests (83,225)
Payments of principal of lease HONREESH D
payments (40,034) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFEEL(FTHA)Z
financing activities e FE 6,379,784 (75,500)
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBRLSEEY2EM
equivalents FEE 5,400,427 2,362,197
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January ' — A —B 2R & kR &
ZEY 7,456,708 5,396,990
Exchange difference on cashand cash R4 MIREEHBY 2 [E K
equivalents == (222,010) (302,479)
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+ZA=Z=+—RHZHRER
31st December REEEY 12,635,125 7,456,708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial & Fff = Ff 5 Jh 47 & 81 75 R 5= AU 48 5k 3015 o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ReEmEBXR

For the year ended 31st December 2019 HE—Z—NE+-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
RARRERE AER,
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
[N e FEEFIER et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1st January 2019 RZE—NF—A—B2Z&% 222,556 65,472,354 2,078,725 67,773,635
Profit for the year F 5 T 9,486,000 164,390 9,650,390
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hi 2 (B18) WA -
income:
Fair value loss on financial RATESRBEMEEEA
assets at fair value through PR BEE 2 N FE
other comprehensive income BB (539,540) (539,540)
Assets revaluation reserve REFIELEEERMER
realised upon disposal of BREAEERREE
completed properties held for
sale (87,079) = (87,079)
Deferred tax R 179,733 - 179,733
Currency translation differences & ¥ [& i, = %A (1,485,679) (49,874) (1,535,553)

Other comprehensive loss for FEHEMEEERE  MEKRHE
the year, net of tax (1,932,565) (49,874) (1,982,439)

Total comprehensive income for £ & % & W A 4258

the year 7,553,435 114,516 7,667,951
Transactions with owners: HEFERS

Dividends paid ETIRE (667,668) (667,668)
Capital contributions by non- BB A F) oz FE 45 M A A

controlling interests of L&

subsidiaries 453,112 453,112
Acquisition of additional interest Uy B — & B /B & & 2 58 4

in a subsidiary S (211,628) (211,628)

(667,668) 241,484 (426,184)

Balance at 31st December 2019 W-_Z—AF+-_A=+—H
2R 222,556 72,358,121 2,434,725 75,015,402
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2019 #HZE

EREEEEH R @

,ZT 7L¢+fﬂ_+ BIFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
RAAMREREA AR

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
[N i FEESMER HBEr
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET
Balance at 31st December 2017, W =-Z— ¢+:ﬂ =+—H
as previously stated ZEBBEEY) 222,556 63,871,569 2,143,538 66,237,658
Changes in accounting policies SIHHREEH — 80,905 - 80,905
Balance at 1st January 2018,as R _Z— ) \F—A—HZ2#%
restated (#=&7)) 222,556 63,952,474 2,143,533 66,318,563
Profit for the year F & F - 5,775,467 47,132 5,822,599
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H 2 & (E18) WA :
Fair value loss on financial assets 1% 2 (&5 1@ E 4 & E U A
at fair value through other Rz HBEE2 ATE
comprehensive income E1E — (273,347) — (273,347)
Assets revaluation reserve i ’% FELEBERMER
realised upon disposal of BH o EESHRE
completed properties held for
sale - (87,746) — (87,746)
Deferred tax ERET IR — 101,418 101,418
Currency translation differences EMIEN =% — (3,105,688) (99,362) (3,205,050)
Other comprehensive loss forthe  FE E M2 EEIE - MK EAE
year, net of tax - (3,365,363) (99,362)  (3,464,725)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) &2 E WA,/ (E18)
for the year — 2,410,104 (52,230) 2,357,874
Transactions with owners: BEFERS:
Dividends paid BERE - (890,224) - (890,224)
Dividends to non-controlling S IEIRAIEE RS 2 R
interests — — (33,225) (33,225)
Capital contribution by non- — BB AR Z IRl
controlling interests of &
a subsidiary — — 20,647 20,647
— (890,224) (12,578) (902,802)
Balance at 31st December 2018 R _Z—N\F+_A=+—H
o = 222,556 65,472,354 2,078,725 67,773,635
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated — B& Pt 2 i 5F Jh 47 & BF S R R A9 4B AR 3017 o
financial statements.
AEEIREBERLAT Z—ES—AFEFH 173



174

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The Group
is also involved in commercial properties investment, property
management and infrastructure businesses.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24th March 2020.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE S R AR MY A )

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 IXE€:HHEHE @)
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEE @)

() New and amended standards adopted by the Group () AEBECHEPNZHET RKIEBTE
Al

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments AREBR-_ZE—NF— A —HHEBOF

for their annual reporting period commencing 1st January 2019: E S HI R L AN LA 2RI R BT -

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

BB G EAE195 (BETA) TEMERT - HERISFE

HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint ventures

BB G EAFE 285 (BETA) REEERFIRAEERANRPER

HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015—2017 Cycle
HKAS 23 (Amendment)

BEEMBHRELAEIR  BEUE HEBMBREXRN T AFE T+t FRENNFELE
WEAERIE1T15 - BHA G R
F12R R BB EAF 235
CEHEN

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

EREMBHRESEEOR(ETA) REFERFUERBFHE

HKFRS 16 Leases
BB HMELERF165 HE
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
EE(ERMBREREZES)E FENHEENTHETENR

235%
The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of these new NEB OGN ZEBT NN ANE LR
and amended standards that are effective for the first time for this VT S ST B 2 2228 o K & [ E B 48
year. The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result EEMBRELERFEI6E MM ERNRS
of adopting HKFRS 16. FTERER o
The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the new accounting HWNE S B REELNE165R L =2t
policies are disclosed in Note 2.2. The other new amendments to BE 2 E NN 22 T - IR A XA/
existing standards did not have any material impact on the Group’s B A AER 72t HELELME
accounting policies. 24,
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A S IR R M R )

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)  New standards and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31st December 2019
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and
interpretations is set out below.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FESHTBREME @

21 WEEE @

(i) R BT B R
2 1E3T

ETCEMOHM ST E RRE BYKR
A —E-NFE+T-_A=+—"BHREHH
REHMYE BAEET RREFRMA - NE
BMUZEHENRRENZENTEH
RTXe

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RUT B

Z BB\
BFHEEN

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business
EREMBHELEREIR(BETLR) EBHNTER

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)  Definition of Material
EREGHEUE1RREBSTE HBEEZUNESR
RIE 85 (B AT A)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018
“E-N\EPHREIBIER
HKFRS 17
BRI REERF175

Reporting

Insurance Contracts
RBEE L

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

MBEREZEETHRTER

1st January 2020
—E-FF—H—H
1st January 2020
—E2-TF¥—HF—H

1st January 2020

—E-FEF—H—H
1st January 2021

—F-—%—-HA—H
To be determined

and its Associate or Joint Venture

BAEVBHRERFI0RREBLEE REENABRERARAGLERAAZHANEELRS FFEE
STAERIE 2858 (BT A) HTE

The above new standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2020 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019

LA LT 2R) MAERIMETARRE
RZEZZEF-—A—HXZERABNTF
EHEAENR  BERREZEFREVHERE
B AR - SEARZREES I Y
REBRNAHTBEBREREEATE -



2.2 Effect on Adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group’s right-of-use assets relate to (i) land leases for prepaid
operating lease payments in respect of hotel properties and
buildings which are held for self-use; and (i) land and property
leases with lease terms ranging from 1 to 40 years which were
classified as operating leases prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The accounting
policy of leases are disclosed in note 2.22.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1st
January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1st January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, land leases for prepaid operating lease
payments in respect of hotel properties and buildings which are
held for self-use are reclassified from land costs to right-of-use
assets, while operating leases for land and properties are initially
recognised as right-of- use assets and lease liabilities at the date of
which the leased assets are available for use.

() Practical expedients applied

The Group has used the practical expedient as permitted by the
standard that the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1st January 2019 are
treated as short-term leases. Payments for short-term leases and
low-value leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense. The right-of-use assets for other leases were measured
on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had always been
applied. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprised of
the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities; any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentive received; any initial direct costs; and restoration
costs. It is depreciated over the lease terms on a straight-line basis.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable. The lease liabilities were discounted at an incremental
borrowing rate at 1st January 2019 of 2.23% to 6.89%. Payments
associated with short-term leases with lease terms less than a year
are expensed on a straight-line basis in the consolidated income
statement.

22 MMNEBUMBEREERE16
ey

AEBNEREEESRO)RBRAMISAE
MBEMENEEDHBNELEHER
HEH T HEE (RN RAEFBM B RELE
AlF16RAE " BAKEHEZHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 IFE€iHBEHE @)
(Continued)

2.2 Effect on Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) 22 RMERPBHREERE16
W2EEW@m
(i) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) HEEEBEWTE
2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
Fix
Operating lease commitments disclosed AN_E-NF+_A=+—BARENKE
as at 31st December 2018 THE&IE 52,965
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing 72 & /X fE FA B HA(E & A % & £ R F| =X
rate of at the date of initial application HEITERIR (20,007)
Short-term and low-value leases recognised on NESZERAAINERAREEERE
a straight-line basis as expenses (11,234)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1st January 2019 R -_Z—NAF—F —BHRNEEEE 21,724
Of which are H
Current liabilities mEBAE
Non-current liabilities FRBBE

Lease liabilities recognised as at 1st January 2019 W-ZZ—HAF—F—HERNAEEE

(iii) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated balance iy RZE-—NFE-—B—HHEEEE
sheet on 1st January 2019 EEREIANF=
o Right-of-use assets — increase by HK$1,704,990,000; . EREEE — & H01,704,990,000 7%
JC
o Land costs — decrease by HK$1,675,097,000; o —+ 3 AR AN — 8 42 1,675,097,0005 IT
o Prepayments, deposits and other current assets — decrease . ENZE EREEREMRHEE —
by HK$8,169,000; R 8,169,0007% Tt
° Lease liabilities (current) — increase by HK$4,459,000; . HEABGRE)— 104,459,000
JG
° Lease liabilities (non-current) — increase by HK$17,265,000. . HEBEGERE)— 1 H117,265,000
AT °
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2.3 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December 2019.

(@ Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.3 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions-that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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2.3 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group applies HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under
HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method. The assets that the Group
controls and liabilities that the Group incurs in relation to the joint
operations are recognised in the consolidated balance sheets on
an accrual basis and classified according to the nature of the item.
The expenses that the Group incurs and its share of revenue that it
earns from the joint operations are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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A S IR R M R )

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-makers.
The Executive Directors, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
have been identified as the chief operating decision-makers who
make strategic and operational decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation
(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company and its
subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019

2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FESHTBREME @

24 DEFHE

REDMDERNEIBEERRARMKZ
NEBRE—R2TAZ2HR-BESEER
RHEREDMRAZHNTES  CERHE
EREFLERBEREERERZEIELER
BA e

25 HhiEmE
(@) WEFMEH E®

AEEBEERNOMBRRMAIIALH
UARETARE ] AVARGE REKE
REAZEMENTIELERENER)
(IMWEeEEEDFE - GREMBHRRIAET
ER - BLTR/RARBENZINER -

b) RZREER

SINERZFEBRXZANEXRBE R
EE -BREULERFEENELRESNAR
BB ENEREENMBBIAFRE
FHEELANELBRSERA KA RME

7
7 ©



2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.6 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction-in-progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel properties (superstructure) 28 to 30 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life of
50 years or lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Vehicles 3to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Construction-in-progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods or
services in the ordinary course of business. These properties are
carried at cost which includes construction expenditures, borrowing
costs directly attributable to construction of such properties and
other direct costs, less any impairment losses. On completion, the
properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of
properties and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction-in-progress
until they are completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.7 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
The valuation processes and techniques of the fair values of
investment properties are described in Note 8.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken directly to
equity as a valuation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Where a property for sale undergoes a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of an operating lease to another party, the
property is transferred to investment property.

Where an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale,
the property is transferred to inventories. A property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date
of change in use.

2.8 Properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties
for sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale consist of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.
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2.9 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair value and
contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically
exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal
group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as
held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2.10 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.11 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.12 Financial assets
(@ Classification

From 1st January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the assets. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

() Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
() Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the income statement.

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the income statement.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2.12 Financial assets (Continued)
() Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in “other gains, net” in
the statement of profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in “other gains, net” in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

(d) Impairment

From 1st January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
18 for further details.

2.13 Accounts receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 30 days and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 18
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and note 2.11 for a description of the group’s
impairment policies.
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2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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2.17 Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in
respect of finance lease and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses
that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the
entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency, and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on forward currency rates at
the inception of the borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences
eligible for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and
are limited to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the aforesaid functional currency borrowings and the
actual interest incurred for foreign currency borrowings. Foreign
exchange differences that did not meet the criteria for capitalisation
in previous years are included in other gains, net and are not
capitalised in subsequent years.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

Group companies operate defined contribution plans only. The
Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(@) Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time. If properties
have no alternative use to the Group contractually and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment from the customers for
performance completed to date, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore, recognises revenue
over time in accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the completed property.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the physical possession or
the legal title of the completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the relevant leases.

(c) Property management fees

Property management fees are recognised when the services are
rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon provision of
services.

(e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

() Infrastructure income

Infrastructure income is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service
provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

(99 Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Grants
relating to the purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received for which
the earning process has not been completed are accounted for as
deferred revenue.

(h) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.
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2.22 Leases

As explained in note 2.2 above, the group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in note 2.2.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the group as lessee were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1st January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

(c) amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual
value guarantees;

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.22 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

(@ where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

(b) uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Company,
which does not have recent third party financing, and

(c) makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
(@  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

(c) any initial direct costs, and
(d)  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life. While the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not
to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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2.22 Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.23 Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers and
guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries as
insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities under
its insurance contracts using current estimates of future cash flows.
Changes in carrying amount of these insurance liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group regularly monitors its exposure and
currently considers not necessary to hedge any of these financial
risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on account of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency; differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in Mainland China, with
most of the transactions denominated in RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of RMB
against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland China government.

At 31st December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by
one percentage-point against US dollar with all other variables held
constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange difference), post-
tax profit for the year would have been HK$30.7 million lower/
higher (2018: HK$1.9 million higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar
denominated bank deposits and borrowings.

At 31st December 2019, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by
one percentage-point against Hong Kong dollar with all other
variables held constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange
difference), post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$21.8
million lower/higher (2018: HK$29.6 million lower/higher), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HK dollar
denominated bank deposits and borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks and financial institutions and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At 31st December 2019,
deposits with banks amounted to HK$14,101 million (2018:
HK$7,939 million) were placed with a number of international/
national/provincial/municipal financial institutions with sound credit
ratings.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group normally
receives deposits or progress payments from sales of residential
properties prior to completion of the sales transactions, and bills
customers in advance for property management service.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units and has provided guarantees to secure the
purchasers’ obligations for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee, the
bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
property sales proceeds received from the customers and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal.

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly controlling their
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than equity securities included
in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) in the
balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance, and
guarantees provided to third parties. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable is set out in Note 18.

(c) Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely
monitors its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain
its rolling cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the
Group to finance the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow projections and
the Group has a number of alternative plans to offset the potential
impact on the Group’s business development and current
operation, should there be circumstances that the anticipated cash
flow may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its needs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities by relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Bt % B B B ()

3.1 B¥EKREZE@
) RBELREMR(GE)

TRBETRERBABINRARNE D 2 AEHE
BHAE REAGEREAOIMAL
RAREETON - RAMBBEZSER
BHMERBRBASRE -

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and 5 years 5 years
1R 182%F 2Z5%F HBIB5EF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T FHET FAT FAT
At 31st December 2019 R -ZT—h
+t=ZA=+—H
Borrowings (including EE(EsHA)
interests) 16,885,152 18,991,161 38,268,663 9,076,573
Accounts payable, accruals & < B 2 - FE 51 708
and other payables (Note) [ H fib & 1 5% 18
(Bt &) 21,138,261 = = =
Land cost payable JE 5+ 3 AR 359,201 91,043 — —
Lease liabilities HEAaE 24,548 26,109 113,033 520,975
Due to an associate FEA — R E RE 2
RIH 5,964 -
Due to related companies &< B3 i&E A 7] 2 3218 366,248 =
Due to joint ventures B E& & AR ZRHIA 3,011,241 =
Due to non-controlling FEIEIE S MRS
interests FNIE — 2,162,867
41,790,615 19,108,313 38,381,696 11,760,415
At 31st December 2018 R=-T—\fF
+T=ZA=+—8H
Borrowings (including EE@EERME)
interests) 16,142,328 15,526,219 27,200,663 3,868,439
Accounts payable, accruals & 1< BE 2 « B 5t 2018
and other payables (Note) N H {tb & ~f 2018
(Krat) 13,650,378 — — -
Land cost payable FE <+ #b K AR 4,996 88,310 — —
Due to an associate B —MBE R E 2
B 6,299 — — —
Due to related companies  JE - B i&E A &) 2 FE 260,654 - — —
Due to joint ventures ER&E AR ZHIE 2,773,349 — — —
Due to non-controlling R RIS i s 2
interests RIB — _ _ 514,605
32,838,004 15,614,529 27,200,663 4,383,044

Note: Excluding other taxes payable and accrued salaries.

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain buyers of the Group’s properties (Note
40) as management considers the likely crystallisation of the
guarantees to be as minimal.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing bank
deposits/balances, borrowings and advances from/to joint
ventures. Bank deposits/balances and borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair
value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2019, if interest rates had increased/decreased
by one percentage-point and all other variables were held constant,
the net finance income (after taking into account the interest
expenses capitalised in the properties under development,
investment properties and construction-in-progress) would
increase/decrease the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
HK$92 million (2018: HK$53 million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for equity owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital based on gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A S IR R M R )

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 HXEKERE@m
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 ELAKERE @)
The gearing ratios at 31st December 2019 and 2018 were as R-_ZE—NhEFEN_ZET—N\F+_A=+
follows: —BZEARABELENT :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F& T FA&T
Total borrowings BIEE 63,389,880 55,101,143
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and B BRI WRRITFERK
cash and cash equivalents HERBREEEY (14,102,038) (7,939,890)
Net debt BEF5E 49,287,842 47,161,253
Total equity e B R 75,015,402 67,773,635
Gearing ratio ERBELX 66% 70%
The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the BAREBEBELETETERANSETHE R
increase in bank deposits. MBTER -
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, TEUEEZELSHMIEATEFEZE R
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as TEH - ARLERZEEDT :
follows:
° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical ° HHEREESAERERME 2R
assets or liabilities (Level 1). BRAR)(FE1R) -
° Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that ° MEEXBEIER 7 BEH A
are observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (that E (RN E) sk @ A g (Bl 8
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BHRATES) (BEREIRANDN SR

BERIN (F2/R) -

o Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on o B EXAET S I IER S A R
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3). IS EE 2 A SR (BN ] 8 R E

%) (B3 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value at 31st December 2019 and 2018. See Note
8 for disclosure relating to the investment properties which are
measured at fair value.

At 31st December 2019 R-ZB—h#F
+=A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through 22 (&% i@ 18 25 51 BF
profit or loss A E

Financial assets at fair value through £ A EFE B E 2™
other comprehensive income W ABER 2 B 15 & E

RE S R AR MY A )

BEEREE @

33 AFEME @

TREINIR-_ZE-NFEFR_F-N\F+
—RA=t—BEQAFEFEZAKTEY
BEE BRRATEMAENKREVEN
WERMES

Level 1 Level 3 Total
1R EKE ot
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FAET FET

692,251 96,152 788,403

714,224

2,623,549 3,337,773

1,406,475 2,719,701 4,126,176
At 31st December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H

Financial assets at fair value through 1% A & % 8 18 %5 51| Bk
profit or loss CEHEEE 246,813 564,130 810,943

Financial assets at fair value through £ A FBE&E B E 2™\
other comprehensive income WAPNER 2 BT 758 B — 3,144,258 3,144,258
246,813 3,708,388 3,955,201

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments in Mainland China and Hong Kong
classified as trading securities.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. There was no
instrument included in Level 2 at 31st December 2018 and 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Instruments
included in Level 3 represent unlisted equity securities, which are
primarily classified as FVOCI.

Fair values of FVOCI were derived using the income approach.
Under the income approach, the net present value of the forecast
dividend is estimated by applying an appropriate discount rate
which reflects the risk profile of the investments. The Directors
considered that the income approach reflects the long-term
investment purpose of the FVOCI, and the stage of development of
the investees’ businesses.

The following unobservable inputs were used to determine the fair
value of the FVOCI.

Fair value at
31st December

R+=ZA=+-HZA¥E
2019 2018 Unobservable inputs
—B_hE& -z g TUBREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET

Bt % B B B ()

33 AFEME @

fid — (B % % B E A @ A BRI IERIZ AT
BEmSEBEFE EHITASASES
M-FAEIRZTEABETENBEA/ER
FEEBEMEEBAIRZMBEE
ZIEETMBRAES

BAFEEBEMEEWAIRZEBE
BEZRAFETIABAESH - REBEKRA
& AR EEFRENEEERRBRE
BRRBANBERBRGT -EFRR
WAERRZAFEZBEMEEEA
IR 2 M EE 2 RBIE B #H A Rl
RETEBHERER -

AT ABRBEIIRANEEEAFE
BRRMEEMAIE2HBAELD
FiE-

Range of unobservable inputs  Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

TTRRUEBEE

FABRRBERATENER

Equity securities sk

2,524,057 3,144,258 Dividend growth rate for the year
2020 to 2024 (2018: 2019 to
2023)

BER(ZZ-)N\F: ZF—HN  11%-38%)

Lack of marketability discount

R i Hid

The remaining balance of unlisted investment of approximately
HK$99 million is stated at fair value which is estimated using other
prices observed in recent transactions or valuation techniques
when the market prices are not readily available.
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8%-22% (2018: 11%-38%)

TZCTFEETCONEMRE 8%-2% (22— N\EF:

16% (2018: 16%)
16% (2T —\ & : 16%)

The higher the growth rate, the higher the fair value.

FEZTZ=F)
Terminal growth rate 3% p.a. (2018: 3% p.a.) The higher the growth rate, the higher the fair value.
RHERE SE(CT-N\FGF  HERXEE ATEES
3%)
Discount rate 11% p.a. (2018: 1% p.a,) The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
BRE BFN%(ZT-N\F:8F HRXES RATVEYE-
11%)

The higher the discount, the lower the fair value.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of accounts
receivable, accounts payable, balances with related parties,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and land cost
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments or based on the current bid price in the market.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
relating to future events which are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at each reporting date by independent external valuers based on a
market value assessment. Fair values of completed investment
properties are derived using the income capitalisation method, and
fair value of investment properties under development are derived
using the residual method. The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant judgement, including
capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents. The valuations of
investment properties under development are also dependent upon
the estimated costs to completion and estimated developer’s profit.
Details of the valuation techniques and key assumptions used in
the valuation of the investment properties which are measured at
fair value are set out in Note 8.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b) Recoverability of prepayments for acquisition of land

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances made for
the acquisitions of land use rights, for which the land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained. Management assesses the
likelihood of obtaining the related land use rights by reference to
the latest discussions with the relevant government authorities and
other relevant parties. Management also takes into consideration
opinions from independent legal counsels on the legality of the land
transfer contracts and undertakings provided by related parties, if
any. The Group assesses the recoverability of the land parcels by
comparing their respective carrying amounts to the estimated
market value of the land. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The assessment requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Details of prepayments for acquisition of land are
set out in Notes 17, 42(e) and 42(f).

(c) Recoverability of properties under development for
sale and completed properties for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties for sale based on their net
realisable value, taking into account estimated costs to completion
based on past experience and estimated net sales value based on
prevailing and expected market conditions. Provision is made when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be realised. The assessment requires the use of
judgement and estimates.

(d) Recoverability of properties and equipment

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculation require the use of
judgements and estimates.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(e) Estimated fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select the income approach and evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial health and
business outlook for the investee. The key assumptions adopted
on the valuation methodologies as set out in Note 3.3 are based on
management’s best estimates.

()  Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in provinces/cities of Mainland
China, and the Group has not finalised most of its land appreciation
taxes clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognises its obligation to land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

()  Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary difference arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(9) Recoverability of loan receivables

The loss allowances for loan receivables are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(@) Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of properties in
the ordinary course of business, as disclosed in Note 2.21. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the control to buyers
requires the examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of control coincides with the date when
the equitable interest in the property vests with the buyer upon
handover of the respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in Note 40, the Group provides guarantees in respect
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various banks. In order
to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled certain
percentage of the total contract amount in accordance with the
related PRC regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition, based on
past experiences, there were no significant defaults of mortgage
facilities by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that control of the
properties have been transferred to the purchasers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
(b) Financial implication of regulations of idle land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property developer fails to
develop land according to the terms of a land grant contract,
including the designated use of the land and the time of
commencement and completion of the property development, the
Mainland China government may regard the land as idle and issue
a warning or impose a penalty on the developer or reclaim the land.
The Group has certain tracts of land for which development has not
commenced according to the specified terms of the respective land
grant contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether these
tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle land or may be
reclaimed by the Government and thereby resulting in any adverse
financial impact to the Group. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities as to the
extension of time of commencement or revision of development
plans.
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Executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”) are
regarded as the chief operating decision makers of the Group. The
Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both business
and geographic perspectives. Reportable business segments
identified are property development, commercial properties
investment, property management and infrastructure business.
Geographically, the property development segment and commercial
properties investment segment are further segregated into three
main geographical areas, namely Southern China (SC) (including
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China
(NC) (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao)
and Eastern China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou, Kunshan,
Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang).

During the year, management reassessed and changed the
Group’s reportable operating segments in accordance with their
economic characteristics. The previously reported property
investment and hotel operations segments are combined as
commercial properties investment segment, while the infrastructure
business which was previously included within the property
development segment, is now separately reported. Infrastructure
business represents design services and construction services
provided to property buyers. The corresponding segment
information for the year ended 31st December 2018 has been re-
presented accordingly.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on the segment results. Corporate income/
expenses, finance income and costs, dividend income, interest
income and gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the Executive Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets consist of all operating assets and exclude
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and certain loan
receivables, which are managed on a central basis, and deferred
tax assets.

The revenue from external parties reported to the Executive
Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included revenue from property
development, revenue from commercial properties investment,
property management income and infrastructure income.

The following tables present revenue and profit information
regarding to the Group’s operating segments for the year ended
31st December 2019 and 2018 respectively.
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Revenue from property development MIEBERE 2 W

Revenue from commercial properties HEMERE 2 WS
investment

Property management income WEEERA

Infrastructure income AEEWA

TRENAKEZESHBE_T— N
FRZE-NEFTZA=+—HLEEFE
Yo 25 s N 2 B

2019 2018

—EB-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TET

12,848,239 8,639,708

3,154,385 2,434,941

1,183,147 1,136,282

1,414,809 1,082,601

18,600,580 13,293,532
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

5 Segment Information (Continued)

The segment results by business lines and where applicable by
geographical areas for the year ended 31st December 2019 are as

follows:

Property development
NERRE
SC EC NC
-1 R i
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
THxr TRAx FER
Year ended 31st December 2019 HBZE-Z-h&
+=ZA=+-8
tFE
Total revenues FelE] 6,701,846 3,369,153 2,939,920
Intra/inter-segment revenues AHER/ Bl (114,255)  (46,830)  (1,595)
Revenues &= 6,587,591 3,322,323 2,938,325
Revenue from contracts with BEEAH R
customers:
Recognised at a point in time Sl R 6,587,501 3,322,323 2,938,325
Recognised over time BRERMER = = =
Revenue from other sources: Hip R
Rental income HelA
Revenues U 55 6,587,591 3,322,323 2,938,325
Segment reslts (Note) DHEE (K2 3,200,416 1,234,954 125482
Depreciation of properties and MERZETE
equipment (84,558) (470)  (19,656)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  ff BIEBEH & (5,072) (716) =
Provision for impairment of accounts & U 8 5 (& & /&
receivable
Fair value gain on investment REMEZ
properties AV EKRE
Share of profit/(loss) of associates 7/ B4 A & 7,/
(B#8) 1,016
Share of profit/{loss) of joint ventures 754 % A &% Fl,/

(B8) 84,128

Note: Segment results for the infrastructure business before intra/inter-segment
eliminations were approximately HK$870,066,000.
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Commercial properties investment management

BREERE

SC

£8
HK$'000
TR

651,565
(26,708)

624,857

38,904

585,953

624,857

172,470

(1,362)
(36,808)

382,117

2 E B @)

HE-_Z—NhE+-_HA=+—BILtEE
REBRERMEBRE S Z D EBEE WD
T

Property
Infrastructure

NEEE -3

EC
ER
HK$'000
TR

NC
34
HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TEL

HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
TEL

1,209,869
(35,401)

1,510,866
(155,806)

1,719,509
(536,362)

6,407,400
(4,992,591)

24,510,128
(5,909,548)

1,174,468 1,355,060 1,183,147 1,414,809 18,600,580

249,247 100,563 1,183,147 1,414,809

12,848,239
2,986,670

925,221 1,254,497 2,765,671

1,174,468 1,355,060 1,183,147 1,414,809 18,600,580

3,735,560 5,277,272 117,836 698,541 15,162,531

(18,034)
(18,295)

(67,975) (781)
(15,696) -

(196,456)
(76,587)

(7,960)
3,076,964 4,716,700 — 8,175,781
)

119,113

it - BREBRNEE D BA IR Z 5 BREA
#) /870,066,000 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 7WER @
The segment results by business lines and where applicable by BE-_Z—N\FE+-_A=1+BILEER
geographical areas for the year ended 31st December 2018 are as EHRRMEE D 2D EELENT
follows:
Property
Property development Commercial properties investment ~ management  Infrastructure Group
NERR BEBERE NEER HE £E
SC EC NC SC EC NC

] ER £ M ER £
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
Thr THExT TEx TEx TETL TERT TET THEL TAT
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&Z3) (KE5) (@3) (HEF) (EB5) (EE7) (& Z51)

Year ended 31st December 2018 EHE-ZE—-N\F

+=A=+-8
tEE
Total revenues Al gy 3,528,081 3,012,882 2,111,112 399,602 1,026,102 1,174,711 1,324,977 4,333,207 16,910,674
Intra/inter-segment revenues DHRA/ IR (12,367) - —  (06436) (16,265 (122,779) (188,695  (3,250,606) (3,617,142)
Revenues & 3,615,714 3,012,882 2,111,112 373,166 1,009,837 1,051,938 1,136,282 1,082,601 13,293,532
Revenue from contracts with BPANNE:
customers:
Recognised at a point in time WEEBMEEEZ 8515714 3012882 2,111,112 - - - - — 8,639,708
Recognised over time BERHEER - - — 46,498 260,226 125,433 1,136,282 1,082,601 2,651,040
Revenue from other sources: H s ROR
Rental income BEWA - - — 326668 749611 926,505 — — 2,002,784
Revenues ez 3,515,714 3,012,882 2,111,112 373,166 1,009,837 1,051,938 1,136,282 1,082,601 13,293,632
Segment results (Note) PEMEE W) 1,307,845 1436304 483,087 456697 1,391,558 3,928,493 111,050 273677 9,388,711
Depreciation e (13,223) (2,891) (30,293 (9,421)  (34,081)  (88,696) (3,566) (1,073) (183,244
Amortisation 4 - - — (6063 (24672 (16032 - — [66Y)
Provision for impairment of accounts & Y B 26 (B B &
receivable - - - - - - (12,623) - (12,623)
Fair value gain on investment REMEZ
properties A EYE - - — 276947 842,380 3,554,018 - — 4673345
Share of profit of associates AEBERERF 192 - 1,445 - - - - - 1,637
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures 5154 % 2 7% |,/
(B#8) 46,405 - (431) - - (52,126) - - (6,152)
Note: Segment results for the infrastructure business before intra/inter-segment Kiak - BREBREES DR/ MRS 2 5 BEE
eliminations were approximately HK$398,650,000. #9 /398,650,000 JT °

FEAREEERAR —T—AFEEFH® 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 7WER @
The segment assets by business lines and where applicable by R-ZE—NWF+_A=+—"BREKER
geographical areas as at 31st December 2019 are as follows: BEAMEE S 2D -E‘[S BEWDT:

Property
Property development Commercial properties investment management Infrastructure

NERR BRUERE NEER EE

SC EC NC SC EC NC

3 ER i 5 #R i
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx Tz TEzr TEx TFEx TER TAR TEL

Asatand forthe yearended H=Z—h
31st December 2019 +ZA=t-8Ek
BEZALEE 54,725,866 25,600,368 53,805,369 9,455,010 20,303,646 32,038,354 892,061 1,133,397 197,954,071

Segment assets include: DHEERE:
Investments in associates REERAIZRE 272,001 ) - 364,855
Investments in joint ventures REEREIZRE 4,942,038 | 114,706 5,059,567

Additions to non-current assets i B ¥R E A E

(other than financial (TEELRIA
instruments and deferred REEHBEE)
tax assets) 575,735 45,946 4662 528,602 186 2,637,850 X 3,336 3,799,884
The segment assets by business lines and where applicable by N-_E—-N\NEFE+_B=+—HREKERK
geographical areas as at 31st December 2018 are as follows: bl i’@ RED2DEEEMT :
Property
Property development Commercial properties investment  management  Infrastructure Group
NEEE BEMERE NEER Hg £
SC EC NC SC EC NC

e ER £ £ £ £
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL ThEx Tz TFErL FErL  TEx FAT FAR FARL
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(g=5) (g=3) (B8H) (KEY) #EIH) &B5) (& =5)

Asatandfortheyearended RZ=Z—-N\fF
31st December 2018 +ZA=t-8R
BEZALEE 39,481,816 16,873,871 46,905,213 8,680,766 17,778,246 27,432,083 1,343,354 169,007 158,664,356

Segment assets include: "% ﬁ ER
Investments in associates BED 7 Z k& 4,015 — 143,653 - - - - - 147,668
Investments in joint ventures SBEDNTICRE 4,571,172 — 1,074,599 39,443 — 1,828,848 - — 7,514,062
Additions to non-current assets R E FEiRE A E
(other than financial (TaEeRIE
instruments and deferred REREHBEEE)
tax assets) 1,171,310 17,848 6,161 40,275 23,6561 1,340,378 6,014 4140 2,609,777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5 Segment Information (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit

before taxation is as follows:

RE S R AR MY A )

Al 23 o 30 2 & & R A B B B AT & T 8
RN ¢

2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FABTT
Reportable segment profit from operations Al 2 3R 2P & i 15,162,531 9,388,711
Unallocated corporate expenses (including ol NG
exchange loss), net (RIEERER)  JF58 (42,717) (147,220)
Dividend income A% 2 A 155,841 149,184
Gain on disposal of financial assets at BEEREATFESHAEEIEREY
fair value through profit or loss B % B E WS 88,642 8,017
Interest income from financial assets at RKERAFEEBRBERINESZ
fair value through profit or loss W EE T ERA 5,806 —
Finance income R 3 ON 394,311 173,949
Finance costs BF 7 A AR (1,002,439) (578,319)
Profit before taxation B B A& 14,761,975 8,994,322
Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets is as ME2EHP M EEHBLEELHEREWNMT :
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Total segment assets DEPEEBE 197,954,071 158,664,356
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 1% A (B @185 5 8E >
loss MBEE 788,403 810,943
Financial assets at fair value through other BAFESZBEMEEIA
comprehensive income PIER 2 BF 75 B B 3,337,773 3,144,258
Loan receivables FEURE 3K 714,137 707,266
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE E 1,309,259 784,147
Total assets wEE 204,103,643 164,110,970

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the years ended 31st December 2019 and 2018 were from
Mainland China. As at 31st December 2019 and 2018, non-current
assets were mainly located in Mainland China.

AREETERNTEAELERE -EE
—E-NFR_F-NF+tHA=1+—
ALEFE  fRAEKRSEHREFEARRE- R
ZENERZF-NF+ZA=1—
A FARBEETEAUNPEKNE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

6 Right-of-Use Assets

Details of right-of-use assets as at 1st January 2019 and 31st

December 2019 are as follow:

6 EHEEE

BE-T-NF-A-BR-F-AF
toASt-BREREAERENT

As at As at
31st December 1st January
2019 2019
—E-hF —F-NF
+=—A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE
Properties " 29,909 7,694
Land leases THHE 1,604,136 1,697,296
Total right-of-use assets BIFEREEE 1,634,045 1,704,990

Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel
properties and buildings which are held for self-use primarily
represent land use rights of between 10 and 50 years located in

Mainland China.

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Group recognised
depreciation of right-of-use assets attributable to properties and
land leases of HK$26,386,000 and HK$50,201,000, respectively,
and finance costs on lease liabilities amounted to HK$13,475,000.

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$40,034,000.
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BH-_Z—hWEF+-_A=+—HILEE"
AEBERYDERTHEEELENE
& EE 5 5 526,386,000 7T &
50,201,000/ 7T - M & & & /) 8 & pk A
/513,475,000 7T °

“TE-NAFHENBRESAL AR
40,034,000 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE S R AR MY A )

7 Properties and Equipment 7 WMERKFRE
Furniture
Construction- Hotel and office
in-progress  properties Buildings  equipment Vehicles Total
HRHR R
EEIR EEWE BF BAZERE NBEIA k|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT FET FHET FHET FHET
Year ended BEZ-Z-N1F¥
31st December 2019 +=ZHA=+-—-H
HEE
Opening net book amount  EA % B 1 # (& 252,338 2,426,668 1,777,736 99,537 15,173 4,571,452
Additions i 23,098 75,380 1,281 65,441 558,599 723,799
Depreciation e (99,960) (38,529) (21,867) (36,100) (196,456)
Disposals & = = (1,331) (89) (1,420)
Exchange difference PE 5 =58 (62,208) (39,774) (6,048) (6,712)  (120,495)
Closing net book amount  Hi 42 BR T8 )5 (& 269,683 2,339,880 1,700,714 135,732 530,871 4,976,880
At 31st December 2019 RZ=-Z—hF
t=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 269,683 3,450,145 1,857,207 512,077 625,357 6,714,469
Less: Accumulated W RETIE
depreciation (1,110,265) (156,493) (376,345) (94,486) (1,737,589)
Net book amount RmEFE 269,683 2,339,880 1,700,714 135,732 530,871 4,976,880
Year ended BE-Z2-\¥
31st December 2018 +=ZA=+-—H
LEE
Opening net book amount  Hf ) Bk /% (& 248,541 2,699,199 653,626 109,006 14,399 3,724,771
Additions i 15,552 25,455 77,855 41,677 5,132 165,671
Acquisition of a subsidiary Iz & — &I }f] B 2 7] - — 1,118,000 - — 1,118,000
Depreciation e - (110,122) (32,474) (37,102 (3,546) (183,244)
Disposals HE - - - (2,762) (116) (2,878)
Exchange difference N ERE (11,755) (187,864 (39,271) (11,282) (696)  (250,868)
Closing net book amount  HR#X BR T VF B 252,338 2,426,668 1,777,736 99,537 15,173 4,571,452
At 31st December 2018 R=T— /&
+=ZA=+-8H
Cost AR 252,338 3,481,183 1,921,478 505,997 74,676 6,235,672
Less: Accumulated W RETIE
depreciation —  (1,054,515) (143,742 (406,460) (59,503)  (1,664,220)
Net book amount RmEFE 252,338 2,426,668 1,777,736 99,537 15,173 4,571,452

Construction-in-progress mainly represents buildings and hotel
properties, which are intended to be held for the long-term.

ERTITRTIEETERMIFAZETR
BIEWE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

8 Investment Properties

8 REWE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Completed investment properties BEKEREHE 52,252,784 37,522,208
Investment properties under development BRERPIREME 4,708,745 9,334,627
56,961,529 46,856,835
Completed Properties under
properties development
(Level 3) (Level 3) Total
[E5-3% 7/ BRBPUWE
(%£34) (%£34) ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2019 RZE—hF—H—H 37,522,208 9,334,627 46,856,835
Additions (including capitalisation of #73% (B #E& KT &)
interest) 911,902 917,415 1,829,317
Transfer from properties under BR#HEE 2B RSP
development for sale LIES 87 1,246,768 1,246,768
Transfer from investment properties B %% & 1 18 & 1) 2 88
under development to completed ~ Z B & 18 & ¥ ¥
investment properties 5,419,926 (5,419,926)
Fair value gain on investment WEYENFE RS
properties 8,143,975 31,806 8,175,781
Exchange difference 5 Z8 (991,995) (155,177)  (1,147,172)
At 31st December 2019 R-_ZE— jLﬂE
+=-A= 52,252,784 4,708,745 56,961,529
At 1st January 2018 R-ZE—NF—HA—H 34,707,205 8,264,048 42,971,253
Additions (including capitalisation of #73% (B8 #E& KT &)
interest) 32,185 977,447 1,009,632
Transfer from completed properties ## & 7] i 1 & >~
for sale BEKYE 316,474 - 316,474
Fair value gain on investment KEME R T EWER
properties 4,166,074 507,271 4,673,345
Exchange difference & H Z5E (1,699,730) (414,139)  (2,113,869)
At 31st December 2018 RN-ZE—)\EF
—H E +— 37,522,208 9,334,627 46,856,835
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Valuation processes

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31st December
2019 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified
valuers, who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification
and have recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and
discuss with the valuers regarding the valuation processes and
results. The finance department also verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation report and assesses property valuation
movements when compared to prior year valuation report.

Valuation techniques

Fair values of completed investment properties are generally
derived using the income capitalisation method and direct
comparison approach. Income capitalisation method is based on
the capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are
derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing
market rents adopted in the valuation have reference to recent
lettings within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. Direct comparison approach is based on comparing the
properties to be valued directly with other comparable properties
which recently changed hands or leased. These premises are
generally located in the surrounding areas or in another market,
which is comparable to the properties.

Fair values of investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the land by reference to its
development potential by deducting development costs together
with developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of
the proposed development assuming the properties were
completed as at the date of valuation. The estimated capital value
of the proposed development is derived using the income
capitalisation method as mentioned above.

During the year, there were no changes to the valuation techniques.

HERRE

AEENREVENR_FT-NLFE+=A
S+t BRBIUAERMGEMBERT
BRARIMGE EEARFKEHERR
BEXER UHMHENREDENILE
MBI AT R -

AEBMP BRI B RE B AFR S
BYGEMETHNEE TREZFGHE
Bt ERAE R RETTw - MBI
NEBBLAEREZ M EEZH AR
B YR EFFHRERSELREFGEY
EHEZS -

B 7%
ERNBREMENRFE-RARAE
RMOERBEZRLEOEBH - WAERE
DERBERAEENERCLE KK
AFBRWARLBENTAERE  TE
AL XTIBBHEER S REEM S
MEFREENERKBPEMSH - £
EFXRANBRTHEERSIREZEY
ERHEMA LB ENTIRAABEBERE
E-BERHLEOZRENKBEZERMENE
EREMSRIEFHHBENALEEE
TTHE - WEM R B E AR EE % X
MERON S — @M -

BRTPREMENRDFE - RARSE
BH - EEREZEIBERUZE L
RENMBEETEHENTE  HA/K
RERAER(BRVEERFBERAEK)
MEFERERTHBRERR AN RER
BB LER - HERBEMNMBFTERN
EBEBEEMR LMW ABERETEAE -

fi 877 S A 4 PR H9E 4 i 2 o

EEAREEERRAE ZE-NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBHRRME@®

8 Investment Properties (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine

BEYEum

BEEAFEMANEEZERTBE

fair value @
Fair value
NYfE
31st December ~ 31st December Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description 2019 2018 technique inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
—E-NF —B-N\F TAERUBEATYE
R +TZA=+-B t+ZA=t+-H fER% TIBRRYE FTIBRUBEE WEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT
Office units (completed) 20,175,877 12,511,937 Income Prevailing market rents  RMB40-300/sg.m./month The higher the prevailing market
capitalisation (2018: RMB40-260/sq.m./ rents, the higher the fair
and direct month) value.
comparison
WAEEML BAER R  Riampise BRASTHRARBIOLE BRuOmBHeds ATE
(BER) HELE 007 (—F-NE:EH  HSe
BEHRARKWOTE
2607T)
Capitalisation rate 4.0%-7.0%. p.a. (2018: The higher the capitalisation
3.8%-6.0% p.a) rate, the lower the fair value.
BRI % BF40%70%(ZF-N  EBEXRLEHE DTES
F: GEI8%E6.0%) i)
Unit price RMB18,000/sg.m. The higher the unit price, the
(2018: N/A) higher the fair value.
BAIER FEARARK 18000  EfERHE ATEES-
(ZB-N\E:TER)
Shopping malls 32,076,907 25,010,271 Income Prevaling market rents - RMB45-715/sq.m./month The higher the prevailing market
(completed) capitalisation (2018: RMB90-640/sg.m./ rents, the higher the fair
and direct month) value.
comparison
B0E5 (B%ER) BAERER  Rigmsle BRABTARARKGTE ROmsEeds 2TE
BRUER MsrT(ZE-N\E:88 MR-
BEARARKOLE
6407T)
Capitalisation rate 5.0%-7.0%. p.a. The higher the capitalisation
(2018: 5.0%-6.0%. p.a.) rate, the lower the fair value.
BRI E BES0%70%(ZF-N\F: BRLLEME RTES
§E50%%6.0%) & -
Unit price RMB14,000-23,500/s0.m. The higher the unit price, the
(2018: N/A) higher the fair value.
B ER BEARARK140000E EUERES DATESS-
235007 (ZE—N\F:
TER)
Office units (under 4,019,751 8,003,880 Residual Prevailing market rents - RMB100-110/sg.m./month The higher the prevailing market
development) (2018: RMB100-110/sq.m./  rents, the higher the fair
month) value.
BRAEB Figk BimsEs BASTARAREIOT ROomslsds 2TE
(BEH) ENOL(ZE-\F:8  HE-
ABTHKAREI00T
Z1107)
Capitalisation rate 6.5% p.a. (2018:6.0%-6.5%  The higher the capitalisation
pa) rate, the lower the fair value.
B % BE65%(ZT-N\F BF BERLEME ATEY
6.0%%6.5%) (i
Estimated costs to RMB3,700-3,800/s9.m. (2018:  The higher the estimated costs
completion RMB4,100-4,200/sq.m.) to completion, the lower the
fair value.
M EIRA FTHKARESOLE RHTIKASS ATFE
3800 (ZT—N\& HE -
BIERRARE41007T
Z4,2007T)

222 Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Investment Properties (Continued) 8

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine

RE R R MY A )

BEWE @)

BEEAFEMANEEZERTBERE

fair value (Continued) 2 )
Fair value
DAVE
31st December ~ 31st December Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description 2019 2018 technique inputs Range of unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value
Z2-nF —B-N\F TIBRYBRATE
R TZA=+-B t+=A=t-H fER% TIRRYE FTIBERUBEE WER&
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Estimated developer's  0%-10% (2018: 0%-15%) The higher the estimated
profit and risk developer’s profit and risk
margins (depending margins, the lower the fair
on the progress of value.
development)
ERANHEFATEE 0%E10% EREHMEFATHERER
REBEHETE  (ZT-NF:0%215%)  XHs ATESE-
REEME)

Shopping malls 688,994 1,330,747 Residual Prevailing market rents  RMB80-140/sg.m./month The higher the prevailing market
(under (2018: RMB80-140/sg.m./ rents, the higher the fair
development) month) value.

Bows (ERY) Fek RiymsHe BRETHRARKSOTE RaOmsEeds 2TE

W (ZE2-\F:88 #H&-
BERRAREBOLE
1407%)

Capitalisation rate 7.0%. p.a. The higher the capitalisation

Properties Under Development for Sale

BRI %

Estimated costs to
completion

RE EIRA

Estimated developer's
profit and risk
margins (depending
on the progress of
development)

BREMMGHAEE
RERE(BEER
RERME)

(2018: 6.5%7.0%. p.a.)
FET0%(ZZ-N\E:§F
65%Z7.0%)

RMB3,700-3,800/sg.m.
(2018: RMB4,100-4,200/sg.m.)

FEHRARES 002
3800 (ZE—NE:
FERRAREAI100E
4,2007T)

0%-10%
(2018: 0%-15%)

0%Z10%
(ZZ—N\F: 0%E15%)

2019
—E-hF
HK$°000
FET

Expected to be completed and available for
sale within twelve months

Expected to be completed and available for
sale after more than twelve months

A E

BT RA S

BHART —EAARKRT R

BN EB T —EAR

5,333,567

51,713,492

57,047,059

REAREEERAA

rate, the lower the fair value.
ERfelhxge - ATE
HAE -

The higher the estimated costs
to completion, the lower the
fair value.

G IRAdR R TE
Wi -

The higher the estimated
developer's profit and risk
margins, the lower the fair
value.

FRENEHTIBERER
548 AFEHE-

9 HAHREEZERFUWE

2018

HK$’000

THET

8,674,892

32,663,103

41,237,995

ZE-NFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

10 Goodwill 10 &
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
At 1st January ®n—A—H 35,249 33,552
Additions g 57 3,013
Impairment BE ()] (26)
Exchange difference & H ZRE (770) (1,290)
At 31st December wn+—-_A=+—H 34,534 35,249
Cost BN 64,906 66,298
Less: Accumulated impairment o BEHEE (30,372) (31,049)
Net book amount BEmEFE 34,534 35,249
11 Investments in Associates 11 REEE QR ZRE

2019 2018
= i —FT-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FA& T
Share of net assets DIEFEE 364,855 147,668
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Share of (loss)/profit and total comprehensive 5 (b [E (E18), % F R 2T
(loss)/income for the year (B518) WA (4,562) 1,637

RZE—hAhFE+_A=+—BHZHER
AI(HIW & E™)FIBHNME46 - BN
EERBE AN ELRREZFS
ORI FE41(a)

Details of the associates, which are unlisted, as at 31st December
2019 are set out in Note 46. Details of capital commitment relating
to the Group’s interests in associates are set out in Note 41(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Investments in Joint Ventures

Share of net assets
Advance to joint ventures

DIEFEE

BRTAERF

RE S R AR MY A )

—E-hF
HK$’000
FET

4,952,576
106,991

5,059,567

2018

HK$'000
THET

6,784,509
729,553

7,514,062

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Company Limited (“GDDFCL”),
which in the opinion of the Directors, is a material joint venture of
the Group. The Group holds 65% of the issued share capital of
GDDFCL, which owns a piece of land for property development in
Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China.

TXHIINEERREAEEBEEZNA
BRBEME —RERBR QA (EM
F-REBBOVBEHBE - AEEF
BEME —REHEEITRAN6C% M
BN S8 — R AR B K B R A BN
BREEE BT MEREER A -

Summarised balance sheet EEEEREE
GDDFCL
BEMNEE — 8K
2019 2018
N —TN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets IEMBEE 2,065,363 342,557
Current assets mENEE 4,561,733 6,357,794
Total assets BELE 6,627,096 6,700,351
Liabilities =Rt
Current liabilities mEEaE (24,633) (16,237)
Total liabilities BEBE (24,633) (16,237)
Net assets BEE 6,602,463 6,684,114

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

12 Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued)

Summarised balance sheet (Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
the carrying amounts of its investments in the joint venture are as

follows:

12 REERTAIZ’RE @)

EEEBEXREE®W

2SN BERBERERNSE QA
MIREREECHERNT

GDDFCL
BEMNE—RBE

Year ended 31st December 2019
Net assets at 1st January 2019
Post-acquisition results

Exchange difference

BE_Z-NAF+-A=+t—-HLEE
RZF-NF-A-BZFEE
Wk ESE

PE SRR

Net assets at 31st December 2019

R-E—NF+-_A=+—HZFEE

Shared by the Group
Other costs/differences

AEEDH
H bk A, Z 8

Investments in a joint venture

R—BAERAZRE

Year ended 31st December 2018

BE-_FE-\F+-A=+t—-HLEE

Total
et
HK$’000
FET

6,684,114
65,162
(146,813)

6,602,463

65%
4,291,601
72,240

4,363,841

Net assets at 1st January 2018 RZE—NEFE—A—HZFEE 7,351,219
Post-acquisition results IR 4 66,327
Interest share D@ (356,421)
Exchange difference fEH =% (877,011)
Net assets at 31st December 2018 RZE-—NF+ZA=+—HZFEE 6,684,114

65%
Shared by the Group KEBE DL 4,344,674
Other costs/differences HMhp A =5 73,855
Investments in a joint venture R—HEERRZEE 4,418,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12 Investments in Joint Ventures (Continued) 12

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

RE S R AR MY A )

REERTZRE @)
ZHBZRPE

GDDFCL
M5B — R
2019 2018

—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FTHET

Profit before taxation B 75 B 4
Taxation B8

87,151 89,012
(21,988) (22,685)

Profit for the year and total comprehensive FEBMNAEFEE2ERRALE

income for the year

66,327

Share by the Group of profit for the year and £ B & {5 4 5 55§ &
total comprehensive income for the year FE2HEKBABE
Dividend received from a joint venture Pl —HagrakE

43,113
181,817

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture, adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the joint venture.

The Group’s share of result of the remaining immaterial joint
ventures for the year ended 31st December 2018 and 2019 is as
follows:

PREMRBREINNGERE 2T B R
RN YERAKBERZALRAN
A BRNERFELFE -

AKEBREZ _Z—N\Fh_Z—hF
+ A=+ BHLEFESHEMDATEKR
VEENBEENT

2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

Share of profit/(loss) for the year and total PEFERF (BB R
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FEAEWA(FEB) L5

(49,265)

Details of the joint ventures as at 31st December 2019 and 2018
are set out in Note 47.

R-_ZE—hAhEN_ZE—N\EF+_A=+
—BZEE R R FBERRK 4T

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBRERME @

13 Finance Lease Receivables 13 MEHEREKNKIE
The Group provides financial leasing services on certain motor AEBRPEREHE T REmMEHER
vehicles in the PRC. These leases are classified as finance leases Ko SEHEEYEARERE  mMaui
and have remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years with " FE2EAFETE FEAE6%E10%
interest rate ranging from 6% to 10% (2018: 7% to 12%) per (ZE—N\F 7% E12%) ~E
annum.

Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEEMHESE REEGHEHESRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
=B —T—\F EEEERaN —T— \F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET THET FHET

Finance lease receivables i & 10 & fE W 7 1B

comprise: B
In the second to fith year, H£ —FEXEHE
inclusive (BHEEEWSE) 409,965 203,888 344,656 159,828

409,965 203,888 344,656 159,828

Less: unearned finance A AR BRER B A U A

income (65,309) (44,060)
Total net finance lease B EAE R FRIE
receivables AR EE 344,656 159,828 344,656 159,828
The Group’s finance lease receivables are denominated in RMB. AEEBZREBESRWHRIBNARKE

&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ClEEEL )

14 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other 14 &2 ZRHMEEBR AL
Comprehensive Income

2018
—E—-h#E —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THER FAT
At 1st January R—HA—H 3,144,258 3,575,742
Additions g 774,245 —
Fair value loss recognised in other R E A2 mE U A R
comprehensive income N E K= (539,540) (273,347)
Exchange difference MEH ZRE (41,190) (158,137)
At 31st December W+—_BA=+—H 3,337,773 3,144,258
Listed securities: W&
— Equity securities, Hong Kong —BARBEHE BB 714,224 -
Unlisted securities: FEMES:
— Equity securities, Mainland China — IR AE o B oK B 2,623,549 3,144,258
3,337,773 3,144,258
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income RZE-—NAE+_A=+—BZEBA
as at 31st December 2019 mainly include 3.57% and 4.32% equity EEWASNR A FEEEREMHBF
interests in two financial institutions in Mainland China and 2.74% KBE 2 Bf S M 3.57% 2 4.32% 2 AR 7N #E
equity interests in a financial institution listed in Hong Kong. =R —EREB LMW BEEE274% 2

PSS o

15 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 15 R AFEZEBEZ YR HIE

or Loss BE

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair value AEBEBTINMBEERLATEERE

through profit or loss (FVPL): I AR

e debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at o TREIEEEXAINKRIIERF
either amortised cost or FVOCI, BEEBREMEEKAIKRGFECE

BRE

e equity investments that are held for trading, and e REBEEZRERE X

e equity investments for which the entity has not elected to e ERBUVAEERIALNFAEAUKZERE
recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI. Bt AHEMEEBA Z RERE -
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REBRERME @

15 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit 15 Z AT EHEBER5IE 2B &
or Loss (Continued) BE @)
2019 2018
—B-hEF —ZE N\
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER FAT
Listed securities: EWESH:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong, at quoted —RARFESE BF
market value R E 675,167 246,813
— Equity securities, Mainland China — BRARFTE S P KRE
at quoted market value LA mE 17,084 -
Unlisted securities: FErmESE:
— Equity securities, Mainland China —RARFSH - RBRREE 5,917 6,048
— Debt securities, Mainland China —EBESF PEKRE 50,235 521,072
— Debt securities, Hong Kong —EBERESF BE 40,000 37,010
788,403 810,943
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TER FATT
Non-current FERBNE D - 35,000
Current mEE D 788,403 775,943
788,403 810,943

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other gains, net, in the consolidated income

statement (Note 31).

The Group classified financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss if they were acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term, ie are held for trading. They were presented as current
assets if they are expected to be sold within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period; otherwise they were presented as non-
current assets. See note 2.12 for the Group’s other accounting

policies for financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16 Loan Receivables

RE S R AR MY A )

16 BEWER

Non-current EMENE D
Current B E

2019 2018

S sl —= \#
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T T
170,801 743,201
2,520,879 1,983,693
2,691,680 2,726,894

(i)

(V)

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$1,221
million (2018: HK$1,301 million) which bears interest at
13.2% to 14.4% per annum and is repayable on demand.
The loan is secured by various parcels of land and properties
in Huizhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$474
million (2018: HK$432 million), which represents a loan to a
subsidiary of the non-controlling interest of the Group. The
loan bears interest at 4.9% per annum, HK$312 million (2018:
HK$114 million) is repayable on demand and HK$162 million
(2018: HK$318 million) is repayable within 12 month.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$498
million (2018: HK$470 million), which is unsecured, bears
interest at 5.2% to 12% per annum and will mature in 1 to 3
years from the date of provision of the loans.

The balance represents a loan to a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary of the Group amount of approximately HK$279
million (2018: HK$285 million). The loan bears interest at 12%
per annum, repayable upon sale of properties by the
subsidiary, and is secured by various properties in Hebei
Province, Mainland China, and 10% equity interest in the
subsidiary.

All balances are dominated in Renminbi except for an amount of
HK$220 million, which is dominated in Hong Kong dollars (2018:
HK$220 million). Loan receivables are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the group,

U)

(i)

(iv)

EHRpEN1I2IaEBT( T —
NEFE 1301 BEEBBT)MKIE  5H
HIBRENRAB2EE14.4F:1 8
fEE KB E o B R IAL A B ARE
BREBMNZIE Lt R EEA -

EHRBEEYNAABEST(ZE—N
FA4REEE L) KB FBRAK
SEEFE B B AR
MER - EERBIRFENERLIQE R
B 32EE&AT(ZT—/\F 114
BEBL)EEREE mMie2HE
BILT(ZZE—N\F:318F&8HT) R
128 B REE -

EHRBENI8EEST(ZE—N
FAT0E BB T)NRE  B@X
B EETR  RFEFNER52BE12F
e UHERREERE BT —
EZFRH-

BHERAASE —HHEB AR E
zhHlERRHN29BERT(ZF
—N\F 28AEBBT)NER &
RBREME12EFE RWEBERA
HEMEREERE  TAURFEAKX
BESM At & Z MY E AR RK B A A
B 10% 4 o5 fF 4

Br#220B BB T(ZE—/\F : 22088

BIT) Z RIELAE T EIN

2R EHY

MARMEHE - BMERNRE S EERY
WErER THEE - R AR ERAKE A
ERER(ETER)EBARERER
RIENEE ARRERBMRARARX

and a failure to make contractual payments for a certain period of NES
past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A S IR R M R )

17 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land, 17 WELTHFBECSRE BEEIR
Prepayments for Construction Work and CHEANREREAMSNKE £
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current FEMREBEE
Assets

2019 2018
—B-hF i AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBTT
Non-current ERB
Prepayments for acquisition of land (Note (@) U BE + b ¥8 < 238 (f7 7% (a)) 118,758 121,411
Prepayments for construction work (Note (d) 2% T2 7 8 k18
(Bt & () 244,107 -
Current mE
Prepayments for acquisition of land (Note () U B8 + #t 78 1~ 2038 (K 52 (a)) 10,767,194 9,403,647
Other receivables (Note (b)) H b pE W s IE (B 5 (b)) 2,136,017 1,484,490
Deposits for acquisition of equity interest WHERANER ZIZS (M T
(Note (c)) ) 823,076 846,040
Guarantee deposits ERiEke 65,864 67,337
Prepayments for construction work BERTIRECENRIE 347,721 89,131
Land tender deposits THRE RS 2,355 312,622
Prepaid sales taxes TEfTHER 938,973 500,602
Construction, utilities and other deposits BR AR EREMES 1,987,088 1,375,783
Dividend and interest receivables % 2 R FE WA B 600,553 282,446
Others H it 1,158,804 412,449
Prepayments, deposits and other current FERNRIE Rek
assets Hin®EE 8,060,451 5,370,900
Notes: Kt -

() Prepayments for acquisition of land for owner-occupied properties are
classified as non-current, whereas the prepayments for acquisition of land for
development for sale are classified as current.

Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances made for the
acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin,
Mainland China. Formal land use right certificates have not yet been obtained
as at 31st December 2019.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,186 million
(2018:HK$4,280 million) for the land situated in Chaoyang District, Beijing,
Mainland China in connection with the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity
interest in Believe Best Investments Limited, which, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the Jing Run Project on the land (Note

42(f)).

The balance also includes an amount of approximately HK$3,797 milion
(2018:HK$3,882 million) for the land situated in Panyu District, Guangdong,
Mainland China in connection with the Group’s acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited, which possesses the right to
develop the land (see also Note 42(g)).
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READERBLHENFRSBEAERD
mAEREAHENKE L HRNERARS
BRRE -

Wi Lt 2 A RBBERN P R ARELR -
S EMNRRZWE L hEREMIEL 22
K- MR-ZZE—NAE+=-_A=+—8  HRBE
EX T AESE -

EHRBEMRPEKREL TG E 2D
41868 BB L(=ZF — \F:42808H 8 %
L) R EAEEREEEREGRA
Al Z80% =AM MZARBEBREEZEN
BARFAZRERBEIEL R 2 8 F (=
42(f)

ERRATERCRTEAREREBR
WA TITEBETL(ZFT—/\F:38827H
BREL) 2R NEAEERBERRKIRE
WEABRRABZ100%EEHE  MZ R E
BRRZ T2 MEE(RFE2HMEL2e)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17 Prepayments for Acquisition of Land,
Prepayments for Construction Work and
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Current
Assets (Continued)

18

Note: (Continued)

(b)

Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in land development
projects in Beijing and Huizhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China with
returns based on a pre-determined percentage of funds invested by the Group.
Other receivables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximate fair values.

This represents deposits made to independent third parties for the acquisition
of equity interests in entities whose principal activities are property holding and
development. The acquisitions are not yet completed as at 31st December
2019.

Prepayments for construction work relate to construction work to be performed
by a related company on a piece of land situated in Tongzhou District, Beijing,
Mainland China (Note 42(g)).

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable mainly arise from sales of properties, and
property management services. No credit terms were granted.

Accounts receivable relates to a number of independent customers,
and are denominated in RMB. The carrying value of accounts
receivable approximates their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (excluding those
impaired) is as follows:

17

18

RE S R AR MY A )

W T hFENRIE BEIR
ZESFERESRE L
REMAHEE @

&)

=

Hist - (%)

) HEERAEEAEESEREAREILRR
EREBMELDBRREAEEMRALLE
EEADLAE) 2T HRAEEE AR - K
i WK IB A AR GHE - FREE LA FEA
=,

© WIHERAKEEBEIZEBR/VERER
M) ZREMABLE=ZFIEHZRE - R
“E-NAFFTA=+—H KEHRTK -

(d) BRIBBNRESR —HBEBRIREES
BARELL RAMER —EiiR EETHER
T 72 (M sE42()) °

FE& W B K

EREREZXEDXHEERMEEER
BEL -BERTEMNEERK -

EUREREZZBYEPABLUAAR
BEtE - BRERZ REEEE A FER

4+

Eo

AEEMEBZEXNEERRS LA
At e BR R Z BREE

HWERKEFR(TEIERES) ZRED
e

0 to 3 months 0Z 3@ A
3 to 6 months 3Z61HA
6 to 9 months 6ZE91E A
9 to 12 months 9E 1218 A
Over 12 months Bid12M@ A

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&ET FAT
655,018 487,785
44,725 48,065
48,604 44,186
71,912 43,969
237,822 160,877
1,058,081 784,882
CHEAREEERAT —Z—hLEFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A S IR R M R )

18 FEW R @)

UWEFORERBZEFSHMT

18 Accounts Receivable (Continued)

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable

are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
At 1st January w—H—H 130,904 131,620
Provision recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ BE 7,960 12,623
Exchange difference fE R =% 3,896 (13,339)
At 31st December W+—_A=+—8H 142,760 130,904

AEBERBBEBMBRELREINR A FF
Z LT E - E R E 1) 5A HE R W R By
TR BT ERFHEBE-

The Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

19 EWNEE

AEBERABESMEHECNBHEK
KZBHEE-

19 Contract Assets

The Group has recognised contract assets in relation to costs to
obtain property sales contracts.

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER FHE T

Assets recognised from costs incurred to BISEHMES KA

obtain a contract BRZEE 982,860 473,606
Amortisation recognised as selling and FANERABBEER

marketing expenses during the year MGHEER 2% (250,400) (89,795)

Management expects the incremental costs, primarily sales
commission, as a result of obtaining the property sale contracts are
recoverable. The Group has capitalised the amounts and amortised
when the related revenue are recognised. During the year ended
31st December 2019, the Group recognised amortisation of
approximately HK$250,400,000 (2018: HK$89,795,000) and
capitalised commission fee of HK$519,606,000 (2018:
HK$469,213,000).

EEERHEAESYEHEANME
EZHERANRFTEHERS B A
WEe AEED 7E M BE UK A EERE
BHRBTUEACLRBEHE BHE-Z
—hE+-_A=Z+—BLEE &x&
2 FE 7 # 4 #49250,400,0005 ;T( —
T — )\ £ 89,795,000/ 7T ) & & & 1L
8 4519,606,000% ;t( = T — )\ &
469,213,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE S R AR MY A )

20 Pledged/Charged Bank Deposits and Cash

and Cash Equivalents

20

RITEFHERS
EHIRITER

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits

Less: pledged/charged bank deposits

B BRI RRD IR 1T E R

BEA ARRITERUARR

Cash and cash equivalents

ReEMRSFED

ERBEEEEY
2019 2018
—z-he Y
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
14,101,988 7,939,840
50 50
14,102,038 7,939,890
(1,466,913) (483,182)
12,635,125 7,456,708

As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s pledged/charged bank
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in
relation to the granting of banking facilities, restricted bank balance
due to pending litigations and the processing of mortgage facilities
granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s properties.

As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau,
certain property development companies of the Group are required
to place in designated bank accounts certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds of properties to finance the construction of the related
properties. Such restricted bank deposits represent normal
operating fund and are presented as part of cash and cash
equivalents. As at 31st December 2019, cash and cash equivalents
include pre-sale proceeds of HK$5,035,947,000 (2018:
HK$1,713,940,000) placed in designated bank accounts.

Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

R-Z-NAF+-_A=+—RH XEEZ
BEM HERITEREIERREERT
HETRT AERHRITEE ARKR
AR BITERLBTERERABR
AEBENEERRTREBEES -

BEFEBRLIERBRE  ~A5E8ETY
¥REQARAMEERTPLPOGEAYE
BEMESNIBHRE  (EHEREEYE
WES BRIRHGTERA—MEEER
t WEABRERBEESEYDZHH T
R-RZZE—NWEFE+=-_A=+—0 K&
RS EEBMERTERECRITFON
8 & Fr 18 F I8 5,035,947,000/8 7T (= & —
J\EE : 1,713,940,0005 7T) ©

BER MERTEIAERRERRSSE
(B T AT 5 = ¥ 5 (E -

RMB AR
Hong Kong dollar BT
US dollar ETT
Others Hfth

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
12,675,373 7,670,131
374,741 88,414
1,051,878 181,208

46 47

14,102,038 7,939,890
AEAREEARAR —T-NEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ll‘/\

21

22

& %R R MA@

Asset Classified as Held for Sale

On 30th November 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose its entire equity interests in a joint
venture (the “Investment”). Certain pre-sale conditions need to be
fulfilled by both before the completion of the disposal. As at 31st
December 2019, management was of the view that the Investment
is available for immediate sale in the present condition, subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales and it is highly
probable that the disposal will be completed within the next twelve
months. Accordingly, the Investment was reclassified as assets
classified as held for sale.

In accordance with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement,
the Group has received a deposit amounted to approximately
HK$111,635,000, which is included in accounts payable, accruals
and other payables (Note 23).

Lease Liabilities

The Group leases certain properties and land. Upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 (see Note 2.2), such leases are recognised as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities. As permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard, the standard is applied
retrospectively from 1st January 2019 and comparatives are not
restated. Details of lease liabilities as at 1st January 2019 and 31st
December 2019 are as follow:

21

22

TEABFLHEZEE

RZZ-N\F+—HA=+8 AEEEAT
VEEWRALEERGE 2R (%ZK
EDNE2MEE - REETK 28 ME
HAREETHEERT BE-_F—NF
T-A=1t—08 EEERRZKREATE

EAMGRMHTZAIHE  EXHENER K
RAOR BEARIREERR+ B AR
REE - Bt ZREBRENOB RS E
REELHEZEE-

BEEEHEZEDR AEEE KRLD
111,635,000/ 7T 2 & & * B 5 AEA R
TR~ FESTFRIE N H A FE A~ 7RO (B §E23) ©

HEESE

AEEHEETYER L - RAFTEY
BHREEF16R (DM FE22) % ZF
HERRSEREEERHEEREG - RE
EAR R EBBGROAR  ZEAB =
T-hE—-A—RBEYPER BXRE
AERE-R-_F-AF—H-BER-F
—hF+t-_A=+-BWEEAEFE
LN

Lease liabilities HEEE
Current V)
Non-current JE T B

As at As at

31st December 1st January
2019 2019
K== F RAsSayiE=
+=—A=+-—H —HA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

8,419 4,459

676,246 17,265

684,665 21,724
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RE R R MY A )

23 Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other 23 ENERM EiREREME

Payables N F1E

2019 2018

S —T N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Accounts payable (Note (a)) FESTBR 3K (M it (@) 14,019,440 9,060,317
Accruals and other payables (Note (b)) JESF 3R IE K H At B S FUB

(Kt b)) 8,951,408 4,882,186

22,970,848 13,942,503

Notes: Kt -

(@)  Ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to related @ ENERZERINM(BEENTREARR
companies of trading in nature) is as follows: REZUEEZRFOWT :

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 to 3 months 0Z3ME A 3,034,732 2,371,199

3 to 6 months 3Z6{EA 1,692,416 416,286

6 to 9 months 6Z9{E A 2,974,763 520,536

9 to 12 months 9ZE 121 A 835,278 388,946

Over 12 months HBid12ME A 5,482,251 5,363,350

14,019,440 9,060,317
As at 31st December 2019, accounts payable of approximately R-ZEBE—NE+-A=+—8 ENERXRFLH
HK$829,032,000 (2018: HK$454,670,000) were due to related companies in 829,032,000 7t (= Z — J\ £ : 454,670,000
respect of property construction (Note 42(b)). Accounts payable are AR ERERNMNE TEER T ZER (M
denominated in RMB. The carrying value of accounts payable approximates T420) c B R R AARBETE - B ER

their fair values. ZBRHEEEE N FEEE -

(b) Accruals and other payables include advances from potential investors in a (b) A RELREMENRBEEEEREER
subsidiary of approximately HK$1,632,104,000. In accordance with the — 8 Bt B A B HY B 3R 491,632,104,0005% 7T 18
relevant investment agreement, in case such investment is not completed BHBENERENZE  MZRENR6EARNKXT
within 6 months, the amount will become repayable within 1 year from the date K BIZZBEBENRZASHEIERNES I
of agreement and bears interest at 8% per annum. The transaction is not yet RBEMFENERI R - ZXFR_ZT—HLE+
completed as at 31st December 2019. A=+t AHERTR -

AEAREEERAR —T—NFEF® 237



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBHRRME@®

24 Contract Liabilities 24 SWEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

Contract liabilities EHEE 19,505,008 10,304,371
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities BE2—_Z—hE+=-_A=1+—HI#E
balance at 31st December 2018 is HK$4,603 million during the B R-_ZE—NE+_A=+—Hz=t A&
year ended 31st December 2019. HEEERNER WS R46038 BB T °
The following table shows the contract amount with an original TERHVNFEHHEERA —FHIUALBNE

expected duration of one year or more: A2 FE

2019 2018

—E-AF —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Expected to be recognised within one year ~ FE:H#§ R — F AR 10,181,773 6,248,931

Expected to be recognised after one year AR —FRER 9,323,235 4,055,440

19,505,008 10,304,371
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25 Borrowings 25 g &
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current ERE
Bank and financial institution borrowings RITRTBRERE 38,873,684 36,026,674

Commercial mortgage-backed securities IR IERE S (Wit @)
(Note (a))

7,986,349 5,629,858

Senior notes (Note (b)) B EE(MEb) 3,840,525 -
50,700,558 41,656,532
Current mEh

Bank and financial institution borrowings RITR U BEEEER 12,661,692 9,436,196
Corporate bonds RNAESH - 2,280,415
Asset-backed securities BEYEES - 1,686,913

Commercial mortgage-backed securities IR IERE S (Wit @)
(Note () 27,630 41,087

12,689,322 13,444,611

63,389,880 55,101,143

Notes: HiaE -

In June 2018, the Group issued commercial mortgage-backed securities with (a)
an aggregate nominal value of RMB5,600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,251,535,000) (the “Securities”). The Securities will mature in 2039 and
are repayable at their nominal value of RMB5,600,000,000. Subject to the
terms and conditions specified in the offering circular, the Group has the right
to redeem all of the Securities every three years (the “Redeemable Securities”)
from the date of issue, the investor are also entitled to sellback the Redeemable
Securities to the Group on the same date. As at 31st December 2019, the
Securities are secured by an investment property of approximately HK$11,215
million (31st December 2018: HK$7,180 million) and rental receivables of the
investment property.

In June 2019, the Group issued commercial mortgage-backed securities with
an aggregate nominal value of RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,232,691,000) (the “Securities”). The Securities will mature in 2037 and
are repayable at their nominal value of RMB2,000,000,000. Subject to the
terms and conditions specified in the offering circular, the Group has the right
to redeem all of the Securities every three years (the “Redeemable Securities”)
from the date of issue, the investor are also entitled to sell back the
Redeemable Securities to the Group on the same date. As at 31st December
2019, the Securities are secured by an investment property of approximately
HK$2,900 million and rental receivables of the investment property.

RZZE—NFERNA AEERTEEEAA
R #5,600,000,000 7T ( 18 5 7 #96,251,535,000
B ZAEERBEREF(EFFD  -EHH
RZTE=NFHH THEHEEEARY
5,600,000,0007C {8 2 - 1B ¥ 3 & i@ 51 BF 2 1§
ARG AEBEERRETRAHEFSE=
FEEMAEA((AERES])  MZREEN
ERERERBHRAAEEER I BEES -
R-ZZE—-hNE+_A=+—B BBHN—B8
BN 2EEET(ZE—NEFE+_A=+—
A:7180 BB T)MREMEREERAS
VEH 38

RZZE—NAERNA AEBERTEEEAA
R %2,000,000,000 7t ( 18 & 7 #72,232,691,000
BT)NBAERBERESF (ZEH]) - %F
FER_T=LFEH TREAEBEARYE
2,000,000,0007C & 32 - R IR 1T K E /Y
GRMGEH  AEEERERTZBEE=F
BOMAEZERAF((AIERFES]) REELER
EEAEREAFNE— A AEE - R=F
—NWFEFT-A=+—8 FFHNUKH29008F &
BTHREMERREDENERAE S EK
ﬁao

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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25 Borrowings (Continued) 25 &8 @)

Notes: (Continued) Hiat - ()

(b) In June 2019, the Group issued 7.5% senior notes with an aggregate nominal (o) RZE-—NENA AEBRXRTEEHES
value of US$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,893,925,000) (the 500,000,0003% 7T (1855 17 49 3,893,925,0007% 7T.)
“Notes”). The Notes will mature in June 2022 and are repayable at their nominal ZISEEEEE((EH]) EBBER-_ZT ==
value of US$500,000,000. The Group may redeem all or a portion of the Notes F75 A BIE - I #i% H 44T {E 500,000,000 7T
at the redemption prices specified in the offering circular after the drawdown BE -BEZXEFEXINBAZERRIEE K&
date, plus accrued and unpaid interests to the redemption date, subject to the TIREEFKYACELOE  SMEEEND
terms and conditions specified in the offering circular. B 2 stk F) S0 B 2 2Bk 285 =4 o

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: EEZHSHOMMT

Bank and financial Commercial-mortgage
institution borrowings Corporate Bond Asset-backed securities backed securities Senior notes Total
BORMBRBEE AREH BREXRES BEERRRES BERE @t

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Sl - \F EERE T\ Bl - T\ e~ T \F Bk~ T /\F Bkl T —/\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 I HK$'000 WRGIEHI] HK$'000 BRGIEH] HK$'000 IGTEH] HK$'000 TS0 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TERL TER TER TER TR TER TERL TER TERL

Within one year —£R PR IGEPE 9,436,196 2,280,415 1,686,913 27,630 41,087 — WPAERRPPE 13,444,611
Betweenoneandtwo  —HFE/F
years EEIRRPEN 13,368,850 - - 75,488 17,119 — BEXERXGEN 13,385,969
Betweentwoandfive ~ MEZRE
years ERTERIGN 19,460,974 - — BRI 5,612,739 EREZIEYS) — WARPERPN 25,073,713
Over five years BERLE EEENZEN 3,196,850 - - - - - — PENERZRE 3,196,850
CIRRERTGN 45,462,870 2,280,415 1,686,913 BERUREIEN 5,670,945 BREEIEVE) — [CRERELEEDN 55,101,143
The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies and BEUTHEEAELRIETIRER
with the following respective weighted average effective interest IMEFE LR B
rates:
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$’000 interest rate
FET B A= FAT B F %
RMB AR
— Bank and financial —RIT R EHEE
institution borrowings ==y 48,815,909 42,484,126 5.96%
— Corporate bonds — RREIEH - 2,280,415 5.30%
— Asset-backed —BEXHEHES
securities 1,686,913 6.28%
— Commercial mortgage-  — 7 2£ 1K 3
backed securities ERES 8,013,979 5,670,945 6.57%
HK dollar 7 TT
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 2,526,095 2,978,744 1.44%
US dollar e
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 193,372 — N/A
— Senior notes —BERER 3,840,525 — N/A
63,389,880 55,101,143
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25 Borrowings (Continued) 25 &8 @)
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as EEZEREERAFEENT :
follows:
Carrying amount Fair values
BRI B DFE

2019 2018 2019 2018
=2 T \F bl — T \F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TET

Bank and financial institution R 17 % Bf 7§ 1% (& &
borrowings 51,535,376 45,462,870 51,090,608 44,483,871
Corporate bonds NaElfEH - 2,280,415 = 2,285,853

Asset-backed securities EESIHEZES - 1,686,913 - 1,687,582
Commercial mortgage- PEEEAERES

backed securities 8,013,979 5,670,945 8,020,069 5,751,389
Senior notes EBELEERE 3,840,525 — 4,101,646 —

63,389,880 55,101,143 63,212,323 54,208,695

The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings, RELEH TR BHRELESE  A6/E

corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, commercial mortgage- S BEYHZAS BEEMERBESR

backed securities and senior notes are based on cash flows BAEZEBERNAFLEDIREMBENER19
discounted using the market interest rate of 1.9% to 10.6% per BEZ106EBE(ZZE— N\F: FFRI2EFE

annum as at the year end (2018: 3.2% to 11.8% per annum), MBE)(RFEEEE ) HEIHER S

depending on the currency of the borrowings. TEEEET o

As at 31st December 2019, the Group’s bank and financial R-ZE—hEFE+-_B=+—H KX&EFZ

institution borrowings were secured by: BITRHBEREZEE A TNIET S

AR -

(i) the Group’s land (prepaid operating lease payments for hotel 0] 7K &£ H #49543,032,0008 o (= & —
properties and self-use buildings) of approximately J\ £E : 328,460,000 7T ) = £ #h (B
HK$543,032,000 (2018: HK$328,460,000); EYMELBBREF ENKLEHRE

IA)

(i)  the Group’s hotel properties and self-use buildings of (i) N5 E493,025,065,000/8 L (=F —
approximately HK$3,025,065,000 (2018: HK$1,462,155,000); J\E 1 1,462,155,0007%8 T ) 2 )8 J& ¥

¥hERETF:

@iy the Group’s properties under development for (i) A% B 4918,574,978,0008 L (= &
sale of approximately HK$18,574,978,000 (2018: — J\£E : 16,948,836,0007% T ) 2 A
HK$16,948,836,000); HEEZERFYE

(iv)  the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately (v) 7% [E#6,658,397,0008 L (=& —
HK$6,658,397,000 (2018: HK$4,546,252,000); J\EF © 4,546,252,0007% 7T ) 2 7] 4 1)

BZBEEKME

(v the Group’s investment properties of approximately v) N5 B #447,089,281,000/8 ;L (==&

HK$47,089,281,000 (2018: HK$23,490,014,000); — J\4E : 23,490,014,0003% 7T ) ~ #&
B
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25 Borrowings (Continued)

26

242

(v)

(vii)

(viil)

()

the Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income of approximately HK$2,239,567,000
(2018: HK$2,978,952,000);

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss of Nil (2018: HK$224,006,000);

the Group’s bank deposits of HK$820,514,000 (2018:
HK$385,528,000); and

the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of
HK$1,266,869,000 (2018: HK$1,393,066,000).

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

25 B8 @)

26

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

()

7R &£ E 492,239,567,0005 T (=& —
J\EE : 2,978,952,000% 7T ) 2 15 A F
EERAEMEZEBAINRZGBEE
B

AREBzHERAFESBBIEZRYE
CHBEEARBT( T — N\ F:
224,006,000 7T) ;

7N £ E 45820,514,00058 T (= & —
J\ £ : 385,528,000/ 7T ) 2 R 17 1%
b7

AEBRK B QA 2 AR
1,266,869,000/8 ;L ( — T — )\ & :
1,393,066,0007 7T) °

i 3E P 18 %1

EEHBEERECHBARBEEAH
BBREERNARBERESE A A R H
WITRMNEMEERELEMESHER —
MIEHEER A EREE BT HE

R
2019 2018
—B-hEF —ZE—N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FH&T
Deferred tax assets: R IEE E
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BN+ @A BWE 2
after more than twelve months FEREFRIBE E 1,228,227 721,876
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered —BRt+=—@EARYE
within twelve months RIEFIAE = 81,032 62,271
1,309,259 784,147
Deferred tax liabilities: RIERIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised after —#ER+_@EABEER 2
more than twelve months FEEFIBAE (9,109,084) (8,007,141)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised within -~ — &R+ —{@ A A& IR 7
twelve months FEERIE A E (848,009) (316,365)
(9,957,093) (8,323,506)
(8,647,834) (7,539,359)
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26 Deferred Income Tax (Continued) 26 EIEFTEH @)
The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: BRERIBFEBAT -
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FH&T
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)
At 1st January Rn—A—H (7,539,359) (6,906,581)
Recognised in the consolidated income iR a W& R (M E36)
statement (Note 36) (1,467,074) (1,037,405)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B — R B QA = (10,391)
Released directly from other comprehensive  BE# kB £t 2@ U A
income (Note 30) (K17£30)
— Fair value loss on financial assets at fair — AT EBBEMEE
value through other comprehensive WASBR 2B EE 2
income NEEEE 139,392 68,337
— Assets revaluation reserve realised upon ~ — HEBEHE D BRI X
disposal of completed properties held BB EESNRE
for sale 40,341 33,081
Exchange difference fE X =% 178,866 313,600
At 31st December R+=-—A=+—8 (8,647,834) (7,539,359)
The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, BEEMBEAELNEEHREAEBE Z 5 (X
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within mEEHBMRETDERER AN Z &4 )
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: m
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE
Tax losses
HIEE 8
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHE T FA&T
At 1st January »—H—H 784,147 740,160
Recognised in the consolidated income RiFalam R ER
statement 548,243 106,192
Exchange difference PE W, =% (23,131) (62,205)
At 31st December R+=—B=+—H 1,309,259 784,147
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26 Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

26 ELEFTESH @

244

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEE S
Withholding
income tax on
undistributed Revaluation
profits surplus Total
KB KD
s
FEHNFREHR BB BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2018 A—ZE—-NE—A—H (76,324) (7,570,417) (7,646,741)
Recognised in the consolidated Riza SR ER
income statement 2,628 (1,146,225) (1,143,597)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — R K8 R =) — (10,391) (10,391)
Released directly from other HEERAHM
comprehensive income, net 2EBA - FEE — 101,418 101,418
Exchange difference MEH =% 3,451 372,354 375,805
At 31st December 2018 R_ZE—N\HF
+=—A=+—H (70,245) (8,253,261) (8,323,506)
Recognised in the consolidated RirE W RER
income statement (1,749) (2,013,568) (2,015,317)
Released directly from other HEEREHM
comprehensive income, net FEKA - FEE - 179,733 179,733
Exchange difference ME N Z 58 1,551 200,446 201,997
At 31st December 2019 RN-ZZE—H ¢
—A= (70,443) (9,886,650) (9,957,093)
The recognised deferred tax assets relate to tax losses amounting #95,237,036,000/ t( — & — )\ F:
to approximately HK$5,237,036,000 (2018: HK$3,136,590,000) 3,136,590,0003% 7T) 2 B ﬁﬁ ﬁ 78 7 18
which are expiring from 2020 through 2024. Br7ELEHRBEBEEER _E_SEF7—
T HFHAME®

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2019, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$410,185,000 (2018: HK$392,658,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$2,092,691,000 (2018:
HK$2,038,654,000).

As at 31st December 2019, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$4,276,546,000 (2018: HK$3,464,255,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China, as these earnings are expected to
be reinvested in Mainland China.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019

Zﬁkﬁlﬁﬁfkﬁlﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ—l

ZfRIEJEETEf’EﬁEEﬂ° Eé_ﬁ h¢+
—A=Et-"B AEBVTEBRREL
% 7B & E #410,185,000/8 7T ( = T —
J\ 4F 392,658,000 T ) 0 W K B B
8 #92,092,691,000/8 T (= & — )\ F:
2,038,654,00058 7T °

RZEBE—hAE+=_A=+—H K&
EHABETHPBRKRNENRB QA X
ELRAMNNENTRERECHRES
& 4,276,546,000%8 7T( = T — N\ F:
3,464,255,000%8 L) * REA B E A F 78
BERFEEARERAEERE -
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27 Current Tax Liabilities 27 XHBIEEE
Current tax liabilities mainly represent payable for Mainland China ANEAF BB E X B IEN BB AR E
corporate income tax and Mainland China land appreciation tax. FT 15 8 & FE A< A B K B - b 32 (B F o
28 Share Capital 28 A
Number of
ordinary
shares  Share capital
LB E & 7
‘000 HK$’000
T i FAT

At 1st January 2018, 31st December 2018 HZ_ZT—N\HF—HF—H -

and 31st December 2019 - N\FF+ZA=+—HE
—E-NEFE+-_A=+—H 2,225,560 222,556
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000 R TE I E IR 42 2% /3 3,000,000,0000% (=&
shares (2018: 3,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1 — J\4& : 3,000,000,000 3% ) &= f% E E0.178
per share (2018: HK$0.1 per share). T(ZE—N\F: BREEIBIIT) 2K
{/\ ®
All issued shares are fully paid. FIBEZITRMHEEMERR -
29 Non-Controlling Interests 29 FFEHIMELS
The total non-controlling interests as at 31st December 2019 is R-_E— A E+_A=+—H" k=
HK$2,434,725,000 (2018: HK$2,078,725,000), of which Bl M B = B 5B B2,434,725,000% TT
HK$1,877,342,000 (2018: HK$2,065,072,000) relates to Believe (=Z & — )\ F:2,078,725,000 JT )
Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best Group”). Believe Best H f11,877,342,000/8 Tt (= & — J\ F:
Group is 82.5% owned by the Group and is principally engaged in 2,065,072,0007 7T) E{ZE R E B R A A
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland (zEEE8 ) EB - -EEEEm A%
China. The non-controlling interests in respect of the remaining BE825% Rz F B P K FEAL REHEE
subsidiaries are not material individually. EUEMEZR FHRESBARMNIE
EHEERSEYTEKR
Set out below are the summarised financial information of Believe EEEENTBEERBESHIN T B
Best Group, which have included fair value adjustments resulted BEATEEZINESEEEBEME K 2
from the acquisition of Believe Best Group in prior years. NEEFHE
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29 Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) 29 FEFIMEER @
Summarised consolidated balance sheet HEEEEBREE
Believe Best Group
EEE
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T &L
Assets BE
Non-current assets IEREBEE 162,365 553,807
Current assets mEEE 25,831,166 24,367,948
Total assets BEE 25,993,531 24,921,755
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities EmBaE (9,495,847) (12,446,455)
Current liabilities BB & (5,913,004) (2,792,939)
Total liabilities BERE (15,408,851) (15,239,394)
Net assets BEE 10,584,680 9,682,361
Summarised consolidated income statement SEEBRAREBE
Believe Best Group
EHEEE
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&E T FHE T
Revenues g 35 1,992,785 914,893
Profit before taxation B 5% B 5 ) 594,283 285,848
Taxation 18 (250,706) (107,495)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive FERNEFEEZEBALRE
income for the year 343,577 178,353
Total comprehensive profit attributable to JEJZE I M 2 FE AL 2
non-controlling interests 2HEIWABE 35,671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29 Non-Controlling Interests (Continued) 29

Summarised consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities KEEH RS RE
Cash generated from operations REELEZHE

Mainland China corporate income tax paid B EAESERSR
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B A A B K B £ i (B B
Net cash generated from operating activities & EENEAL 2 I 4 558
Net cash generated from investing activities & & FEE4 2R £ %5
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMA IR FE

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January

Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents

RehBReFEMZELFE

R—A—BzHek
RehBReFEMZELEE

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December

Rt-—A=+—RZHER

RE R R MY A )

FEEH MRS @
GREREFERBE

Believe Best Group
BESE

2019

—E-hE

HK$’000
FET

572,416
(200,296)
(19,002)

353,118
517,446
(898,822)

(28,258)

74,919
(1,329)

REAREEERAA

2018

HK$’000
THET

768,552
(65,794)
(24,758)

678,000
11,922
(808,823)

(118,901)

199,576
(5,756)

74,919

ZE-NFFH
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30 Reserves 30 #F1E
Assets Currency
Share Statutory  revaluation translation Retained
premium reserve (i) reserve (i)  differences earnings Total
BEEEM ERER
BRGEE EERE & 8 (i) Z8 REEF @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TAT TAT THET TAT

For year ended HE-Z-NF
31st December 2019 +=ZA=+—*H
LHFE
Balance at st January W~ Z— L4
2019 —A—Bz#&&% 15,800,776 161,117 1,579,907 705,929 47,224,625 65,472,354
Profit for the year FERA - - - - 9,486,000 9,486,000
Currency translation EHBENZE
differences (1,485,679) (1,485,679)
Fair value loss on financial #% A (&% iB
assets at fair value Hth2HEKA
through other SRz IS A E
comprehensive income 2 A FEEE (539,540) (539,540
Realised upon disposal of H & 1EH EME
properties held for sale B &7 (87,079) - (87,079)
Dividends paid BRRE - (667,668) (667,668)
Deferred tax EERTE 179,733 - 179,733
Balance at RZT—NF
31st December 2019 +=-A=+—H
o % 15,800,776 161,117 1,133,021 (779,750) 56,042,957 72,358,121
For year ended BE-ZE-N\§
31st December 2018 +=A=+—8H
LHFEE
Balance at R-ZZE—N\E
1st January 2018 —A—HZz#&% 15,800,776 161,117 1,840,646 3,808,877 42,260,153 63,871,569
Changes in accounting ~ @t R & H)
policy — — (1,064) 2,740 79,229 80,905

Balance at 1st January R =Z— \F

2018, as restated —A—Hz&#H
(E5) 15,800,776 161,117 1,839,582 3,811,617 42,339,382 63,952,474
Profit for the year 4 35 - - - — 5775467 5775467
Currency translation EMERZE
differences - - —  (3,105,688) - (3,105,688)
Fair value loss on financial 1% A &5 i
assets at fair value Hi2EKA
through other SIBR 2 BT IS B
comprehensive income 7 A& E1E - - (273,347) - - (273,347)
Realised upon disposal of & 5 {E & ¥ %
properties held for sale B £ I5 - — (87,746) - — (87,746)
Dividends paid B RA - - - - (890,224) (890,224)
Deferred tax EIERIR — _ 101,418 _ _ 101,418
Balance at RZE—N\F
31st December 2018 +=-A=+—H
- 15,800,776 161,117 1,579,907 705,929 47,224,625 65,472,354
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30 Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate a
portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory
reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their respective
boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset prior year
losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise
expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business operations.
When the statutory reserves reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered
capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be
made.

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of financial assets at
FVOCI and the balance of fair value gain in respect of 69.5% interest in
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL”).

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, GZQREL became a
subsidiary of the Group. The fair value gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in
GZQREL previously held by the Group (as a joint venture) of approximately
HK$2,180,096,000, net of tax, has been credited to an asset revaluation
reserve directly in other comprehensive income.

Subsequent sales of the properties developed by GZQREL are regarded as
partial disposal of the business of GZQREL and accordingly the related portion
of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated income
statement. As at 31st December 2019, the asset revaluation reserve of
GZQREL amounted to approximately HK$645,456,000 (2018:
HK$692,194,000).

RE S R AR MY A )

30 fEfEum

Wit -

(0

(i)

BRP B KRR RATETE - AR AR h B KRR
BSR4 2 M B R B R B R BR B 1R s I (R
EHBEFEBRR TRE —BOEEEM
BROEBRES LETHEEEGHEE -
AERBAUREEAHBEFEBBRIMAFESR
THAR - MEXERESBAREZRRER -
EREMBEINRERARA MM B A A
& A0% 2 & BE - 1§ B HE— TEHE

-
e

BEEGREBRERATEEBEMZERA
SR MBAECEMER  REMNKIER
FiEBR AR ([BH])69.6%# w8 A FEK
wHRBEZEGHE -

R-EELEFTRUBENTEINEEZ
REERAR BHUNRAESEZHBAF -
AEEEMFERBBUER—HMAERR)E
69.5% 1 = < A T {8 Iz £92,180,096,0007% 7T
(BEHBHREERERMEZERAFARE
EfHEE -

FAHRBEERBHHEBIIDER AL EFEH
DEY BESHERBREZABEDS BB AL
AhBER - R-_ZE—NAFE+=-_A=+—80 &
H ) B B B ik 6 1 #49645,456,00078 7T (=& —
J\EE : 692,194,000 7T) °

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 Other Gains, Net

31 Hftlzs - B

Dividend income from
— Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Government grants
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Net foreign exchange gain
— net foreign exchange losses
— exchange losses relating to foreign
currency borrowings capitalised
Others

B EWAKE
—RAVFEZBEMLEE
WASNERZ BB E
—RAVEEBRRINEZ
MEEE
I 44 B
RERAFEEBERIIKZ
M EE WS
KERAFEERBRSIIERZ
MBEEZNEHRA
BAFEEBBRINEZTH
BEZRAVEER
PEE 3 Wi 25 % B
—EXERFR
—DEMMEWINEEE
TR B 1R
Ht
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2019
—2-NF
HK$’000
TR

155,413

428
44,951

88,642

5,806

(9,208)

(40,610)

25,442
14,465

285,329

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FTAET

143,025

6,159
65,410

8,017

(72,276)

(50,833)

62,224
209

161,935
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32 Expenses by Nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses
and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

32 RUEE 22X

AXBREEXNA HERTEHERE

B AR—RETHRER

Advertising and promotion costs
Amortisation of land costs
Auditor’s remuneration
Other professional fees
Cost of completed properties sold
Depreciation of properties and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that
— generate rental income
— did not generate rental income

Employees’ benefits costs (including Directors’ & B &K & (B2 IEESH &)

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
THT
BEERERERAX 236,812
- Hb AR AN 5H —
% BB & 11,758
HthEXEH 8,123
HEEERYE KA 6,536,776
WERZBITE 196,456
FREEEFRE 76,587
ITHEANGEMEELECER
KBRS
—E£RASWA 324,781
—TEEEAHASKA 8,497

emoluments) (Note 33) (K17£33) 1,580,931
Loss on disposals of properties and equipment 1 & ¥ % N &% & &8 1,420
Lease rental in respect of premises WEILHERS -

Short-term and low-value assets lease
expenses

Provision for impairment of accounts
receivable

HHNEBEEEHEMX

P& U5 BR BRI (B 1

20,084

7,960

33 Employees’ Benefits Costs

33 BERAAE

Salaries and allowances
Sales commission and bonus
Pension costs
— Defined contribution plans
— Provision for long service payment

2019

—E-NF

HK$’000

FTHET

e ROER 879,071

HEMS RIEA 479,737
RIKE AR

— EREMHNKEE 222,116

—RERG BB 7

1,580,931

REAREEERAA

DT ¢

2018

HK$000
TR

135,744
56,767
10,536

9,935
4,362,243
183,244

421,152
6,684

1,298,953

2,878
20,447

12,623

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHBT

748,141
369,231

181,581

1,298,953

ZE-NFFH
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33 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Continued)

(@) Pensions — Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly
contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group
contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

No forfeited contributions (2018: Nil) were utilised during the year.
There is no forfeited contributions leaving available at the year-end
to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totalling HK$19,477,000 (2018: HK$13,944,000)
were payable to the fund at the year-end.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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33 EEEA KA @

(@ BiE — EEEKH Y
siel

AEECEEESEELHSLE —EMR
—(UBNEEABTE 2 FREMKE - A
wHlMAEeE ([RESE]) - RIE
wEeE A5EE(EE)REEBRA
BIRAFMABS AR TS B ERZ
BEWAZS%AZAEETAHER B
FREESEMEZEAHERZ LR A
1,500 7L 2R ER ZHEBIE A FE %
Eo

BBPBEKREZRUNFERARE A&
BAERTEAEZEEEE—[EH
REPZERRFE - AEERESARE
WA(BE#H S R RIEAL) X18% % 5t
ERET . AREZEZFERA12%E
2% fEH 3R o BRAE L HE I AEREL
BEEMHEREARSNREE -BEXEY
ZERFAEBAAINEREBE Z2HER
(N

FALTEREBUOER(ZF-NF: F)
REF - B B OR USSR BRI R A 1t
158 P BARR A R SR A K -

& 19,477,000/ 7L (ZF — )\ & : 13,944,000
BT ERRFREMNTES -
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33 Employees’ Benefits Costs (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include one (2018: one) director, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments for the remaining four (2018: four) individuals are as

RE S R AR MY A )

33 EEEAI KA @

b) EEEEHFAL

AEEAKELERRFALEE %

“E-NFCREF KEZMECE
REXR25 2o kbR EfHH (=
F-N\F mB)ENALZHMEMT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F#&E T TH&T
Salaries and allowances 34 KEBL 11,118 8,295
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme & > ¥R k&5 &8 2 & 482 371
11,600 8,666
The emoluments fell within the following band: BT A T4ER -
Number of individuals
A
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FET
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /% 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T & 2,500,000% 7T 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T & 3,000,000 7% 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T 2 3,500,000 7% 7T —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% JT 2 4,000,000 7T —
CHERAREEERAT Z—ZEZ—NAEFEERH
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34 Benefits and Interests of Directors

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st

254

December 2019 is set out below:

B REEZM&HINMOT

As director (i)

As management (i)

EREZ() EEEEE (i)
Basic salaries,
allowances
and benefits-
Name of director BEEMS in-kind (iiij Employee benefits
EXREGS -
RMR
e  BWR ) EEREA @at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER FTER TER
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BEEEE
Mr. Bao Wenge #1308 S
Ms. Chu Kut Yung RERZ T
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAEEAE
(resigned on 10th January (R—B-ZF
2020) —A+HET
Mr. Xie Bao Xin WEELE
Mr. Xi Ronggui BRERE
Independent non-executive BV EHITES
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEERE
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron [ #8)% % &
Mr. Ching Yu Lung RMERE

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019
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34 Benefits and Interests of Directors (Continued) 34 EEF=ERERDS@E

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st Hz2—_ZE—"NF+=—_A=+—HIF
December 2018 is set out below: B SEE2HE&RINOT :

As director (i) As management (i)

EREE() ERE IR E (i)

Basic salaries,

allowances
and benefits-
Name of director BEEHSL Fees in-kind (i) Employee benefits Total
EXFe -
R R
wE B i) EE R ok
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TR THET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BEEEE - - 252 252
Mr. Bao Wenge B SAS S A — — 1,609 1,609
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KiEB L — — 2,327 2,327
Mr. Chu Mang Yee REMWREE
(resigned on 10th January (R - &~ 4
2020) — A+ B#HE) — — — —
Mr. Xie Bao Xin HEERE — — 1,635 1,635
Mr. Xi Ronggui FERERAE — — 1,906 1,906
— — 7,729 7,729
Independent non- BIYFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ Z 182 5t 4 320 — — 320
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron [ 285 5 4 320 — — 320
Mr. Ching Yu Lung BmELE 320 - - 320
960 — — 960

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of F R - K&K S A RE B £ 240,000 JT

HK$240,000 (2018: HK$240,000). —Z— )\ : 240,000/ 7C) °

Notes: Kzt -

[0] The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s [0) ZRBEBEBALTERAQATHRERE R
services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings. FEERBHENHENHE -

(ii) The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s (ii) EEREBEATIEHEETR AL HEKM
other services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BAREEHNEMRBRBHENSEMANES &
Company or its subsidiary undertakings and included salaries, allowances, FEe 2N PBETAREFHRKSEHE
discretionary bonuses and employer’s contribution to a pension scheme. ke

(iii) The amounts include salaries, discretionary bonus, housing allowances and (il ZREERETS BB EERENEE
employer’s contribution to a pension scheme. YRR S ST 2R 2R o

(iv) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an (iv) ER AEEHEMESINMES  UIEAR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of 3| A0 A S0 A AN £ E A 58 B 5 A BE B AT
office (2018: Nil). ENFAECE-NF: F)-
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35 Finance Income and Costs 35 BFE WA KB
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHExT FiE T
Finance income B s U A
Interest income from banks, advance to REWRITZFEWA - —FH
ajoint venture and loan receivables AEDRBZBFREWER 394,311 173,949
Finance costs B 75 B 2R
Interest expense and other borrowing costs: Kl & B 3z [z H #h & B 5k A -
— loans from banks and financial institutions ~ — $R 17 % Bf I§ 1 B 3% (3,630,521) (2,958,316)
— corporate bonds, commercial mortgage-  — A RI{E & - B K 1T
backed Securities, senior notes and BREF BEAEBER
asset-backed securities BEXRKES (695,549) (467,467)
Total borrowing costs incurred Fr s 4 2 BIE B AR (4,326,070) (3,425,783)
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the cost i : {E &3 & ¥ 2 A
of properties under development —E DB E AR KIA 3,323,631 2,849,906
(1,002,439) (575,877)
Cost on early redemption of corporate bonds 12 2 8 8] A 7] {& & 2 B Zx - (2,442)
(1,002,439) (578,319)
Net finance costs, net B 75 PR AN F B (608,128) (404,370)

The capitalisation rate used to determined the amount of EAXA{LEANBEHABANLEHERERN
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation approximate the effective 4© % AN ZEN AN EFHE XN ZT M = (M=%
interest rate of the Group’s borrowings (Note 25). 25) o
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36 Taxation

36 BIE

RE S R AR MY A )

2019 2018
—E-hF AN
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Current tax R ERTR IR
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) ERBFER (K@) 33,294 2,683
Mainland China corporate income tax B KEER MG
(Note (b)) (Kt &% (b)) 1,622,239 990,069
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K BE i (R
(Note (c)) (K73 () 1,988,978 1,141,566
3,644,511 2,134,318
Deferred tax IR IR
Mainland China corporate income tax B KEREMER
(Note (b)) (Kt &t (b)) 1,481,393 1,051,398
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K B R A
(Note (c)) (Hiax () (16,068) (11,365)
Mainland China withholding income tax AR K EETEOFT S FE
(Note (d)) (K7 &£ () 1,749 (2,628)
1,467,074 1,037,405
Taxation (Note (g)) I (M et e) 5,111,585 3,171,723

ARREHRCHEMARENRA BEE_F
ZShAFZAL-REBERAXBEHBELQA
DIREBEBEAEEEBRHEARTEGR
REBRIESHEERARIE2004) » HE
BRABREZRBELHEBAERAE
2004 RS B A NEMERAZ

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2035. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated
under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands,
and are not liable to any form of taxation in the British Virgin Islands.

REBRELBESHE -
Notes: Bisr -
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (@) EBNER

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31st December 2019 (2018:16.5%).

HE-_Z-NAFE+-_A=+—BULEFE FF
FEHEIRFE N EEERBEF 2 16.5%5 12
BE(CZT—/\F:165%) °

(b) Mainland China corporate income tax (b)

REKREREATER
Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are subject to BE_Z—hF+-_A=+—HBHLEEE R
FREKRERK S K& E 2 B A BB 1R25% 2
MEFMNPERECEMER(ZE—N\F:
25%) °

Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended
31st December 2019 (2018: 25%).
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36 Taxation (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including costs of land and
development and construction expenditures.

Mainland China withholding income tax

Dividend distribution made by Mainland China subsidiaries and joint ventures to
shareholders outside of Mainland China in respect of their profits earned after
1st January 2008 is subject to withholding income tax at tax rates of 5% or
10%, where applicable.

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the
group companies as follows:

36 IE @)

Hfat - (%)

©

H B AR L iR E R

FB KR iR E T LR E - BN E i
EMSFIRMEB AT HRR X (2 LA A
BREEERME) R ZE B E30%E60%H
1 o

B RBEEMAEH

TREAEMERR RS E R A M B KRNI
IHBRRARER-_ZENF-A—BERK
B2 0 R PR 2 IR B 93 Tk R $25% 3% 10% (10
B Z B RBNTRMAEH -

7N 5% [ B Bt A A H9% 08 4R Bl A 7] 0 E 8
BRABHREFECEREBZERENT ¢

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation [ 5 B o F) 14,761,975 8,994,322
Less: Share of loss/(profit) of associates B S A BB, G Rl 4,562 (1,637)
Less: Share of (profit)/loss of joint ventures B OMEAE AR CHEA) EE (119,113) 6,152
14,647,424 8,998,837
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable R & MR 2 % T E BB R B R
to profits in the respective regions HE o FmE 3,675,190 2,278,043
Income not subject to tax THRRBKA (114,425) (25,917)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT B S 22,550 31,428
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses BABAAERAREESR (39,935) (39,044)
Deferred tax asset not recognised RERELERIBEE 86,773 82,190
LLand appreciation tax deductible for calculation of AREATEMSHARZ
corporate income tax purposes T IR ER (493,227) (282,550)
Withholding tax on dividend income from PRC FENBARIREEARZ
subsidiaries and joint ventures R WA Z BN 1,749 (2,628)
3,138,675 2,041,522
Land appreciation tax + i I E R 1,972,910 1,130,201
Taxation I\ 5,111,585 3,171,723

The weighted average applicable tax rate was approximately 25% (2018: 25%). MEFHERHRELNB25% (ZF—/\F : 25%) °
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37 Earnings Per Share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

~ e B A 3R 3R M A )

37 BRER

2K

BREXABNIREARABRERE A
FE A58 M BR A F AE BT B I
FHEEH -

2018
—E-N\F
Profit attributable to equity holders of the RREIRBEFB AEAL A
Company (HK$'000) (F&mL) 9,486,000 5,775,467
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 17 % 3@ % 2 H1#E F 5 &
inissue ('000) (FR%) 2,225,560 2,225,560
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FREARZFN (BRBT) 4.26 2.60

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Since there was
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31st
December 2019 and 2018, diluted earnings per share is equal to
basic earnings per share.

38 Dividend

B

SAESREERNE CHEHTENE
B Z MEFOBEL AR UAREMA
EEEEN 2 EBRERHER - AN
BE_Z-NFR-_ZF-NF+ZA=
T—BLEFE WREABFEHN LR
B Ak BRETRNESGRERRF —
B o

Interim dividend paid of HK$ 0.10 & A A B AR
(2018: HK$0.20) per ordinary share
Proposed final dividend of HK$ 0.30

(2018: HK$0.20) per ordinary share

BE&REMK0.10
BIL(ZZFE—N\F 020 T)
¥R KRR B SRR E
BT (ZE—NF :0.20871)

Final dividend of HK$0.30 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 31st December 2019 (2018: HK$0.20 per share) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
financial statements as at 31st December 2019 have not reflected
this dividend payable.

38 RE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THET
222,556 445,112
#MA%0.30
667,668 445,112
890,224 890,224
EZgEEEMBE_T—NFT=A

=Eq4= Etﬁﬁﬁﬁlifi/fﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁgtﬁﬁ
0308 (=T — \F:02087T) *
ﬁ%ﬂ/\f#ﬂxﬁﬁﬁg):ﬁxﬁﬂiﬁﬁj:ﬁt
HE-RZE-—NFF+_A=+—"HNYTK
iﬁ%iﬂi&ﬂﬁwtﬁ@h‘ﬂx%ﬂ

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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39 Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 39 #Z 4B S HKE XK

(@) Cash generated from operations () REEEXEZ2HS
2019 2018
S g —= &
HK$’000 HK$000
TER FABT
Profit before taxation B A5 A1 ) 14,761,975 8,994,322
Adjustments for: FHE
— Finance income — BB s A (394,311) (173,949
— Finance costs — B & K AN 1,002,439 578,319
— Dividend income —REWA (155,841) (149,184)
— Share of (profit)/loss of joint ventures —DIEEERRCER), BB (119,113) 6,152
— Share of loss/(profit) of associates —DhEE AR ERCaF) 4,562 (1,637)
— Depreciation of properties and equipment  — ¥ % KR ITE 196,456 183,244
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FRAREENE 76,587 -
— Loss on disposals of properties and —HEMERREBER
equipment 1,420 2,878
— Amortisation of land costs — TR AN B 8 = 56,767
— Provision of impairment of accounts — FEURBR SR B B R
receivable 7,960 12,623
— Provision of impairment of goodwill —EHERERE 2 26
— Fair value gain on investment properties —BREMEATFEKZ (8,175,781) (4,673,345)
— Fair value loss on financial assets at fair —BAFTESBIEZRIEZ
value through profit or loss MBEEZATEEE 9,208 72,276
— Interest income from financial assets at —BAFEBBERINEZ
fair value through profit or loss I EE2FBIA (5,806) -
— Gain on disposal of financial assets at far — EEIR AT EEBER
value through profit or loss TR 2 B 5 B E W (88,642) (8,017)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —BEMBRAA (8,688) -
— Net gain on disposal of an associate and — R & — B L Q7 &
ajoint venture —MEeE QRIS FRE (5,779) -
— Net exchange loss/(gain), net —EREE (W) FE 15,168 (11,391)
Operating profits before working capital EEESEHALE R
changes 7,121,816 4,889,084
Changes in working capital (excluding the LEESEEH(TRIERE
effects of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries 1 £ K & A &) M [E i, = 48 &
and exchange differences on consolidation): 4 &8RE 2 & £) :
— Finance lease receivables —RERERKIIE (190,401) (159,828)
— Properties under development for sale — AR ECERERMER
and completed properties for sale AIEHEZEERYE (14,245,329) (2,200,424)
— Accounts receivable — FEWERER (301,524) (200,163)
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — IR BE L 2 FENFRIB (1,569,092) (155,331)
— Prepayments, deposits and other current  — JEfT3IE ~ & &
assets HimE & E (2,464,326) (1,236,832)
— Accounts payable, accruals and —ERERR - EERIER
other payables H i JE 5 3R 6,736,101 1,430,088
— Land cost payable — BB LA AR = (349)
— Contract liabilities —AHNEaE 9,530,024 4,915,835
Cash generated from operations REEF 7S 4,617,269 7,282,084
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39 Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(Continued)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary

In October 2018, the Group acquired a 100% equity interests
in The Center (49) Limited for a consideration of
HK$1,108,602,000, which is identical to net cash outflow

RE S R AR MY A )

39 ZEHERERMT @

(b) WiE— M E QT

RZZE—N\FE+ A NEEWEThe
Center (49) Limited & #S iz #E - (KB &
1,108,602,000% T - B U i & 4 &

arising an acquisition. FHREeMEES -
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBHELZEBHE
financing activities
Due to Due to
Interest  Dividend related Duetojoint  Duetoan non-controlling
Borrowings payable Payable companies ventures  associate interests Total
-
EfEE EAEE BEQAF G EZL
& REANE EARE 2FAWE  AAHKE RE 35 st
At 1st January 2019 RZZ-h%
-A-B 55,101,143 365,338 - 260,654 2,773,349 514,605 59,021,388
Cash flows Rene
— inflow from financing activities 50T NN 24,157,484 - - 111,181 192,966 870,211 25,331,842
— outflow from financing activities o -be 1 PAhl (14,704,799) (3,781,041)  (667,668) - - — (19,153,508)
Foreign exchange adjustment B R (1,163,948)  (469,641) - (5,587) (63,918) (11,248) (1,714,677)
Other non-cash movements HitERE2H - 4,326,071 667,668 - 108,844 753,299 5,855,882
At 31st December 2019 RZB-h%
+=ZA=+-H 63,389,880 440,727 366,248 3,011,241 2,126,867 69,340,927
At 1st January 2018 RZB-NE
-A-H 53,189,787 277,229 - 223907 3,208,176 6,603 539,409 57,445,111
Cash flows BengE
— inflow from financing activities —“REEZHZAEA 21,025,666 - - 91,277 - - — 21,116,943
— outflow from financing activities —-BEEH AL (16704574 (3,290,999  (923,449) - (294,068) - — (21,213,000)
Foreign exchange adjustment ER@% (2,409736)  (46,675) - (B4530) (140,759 (304) (24804 (2,676,808)
Other non-cash movements HiER 229 — 3425783 923,449 - - - — 4349232
At 31st December 2018 R-ZE-NF
+t=ZA=1+-8B 55,101,143 365,338 - 260,654 2,773,349 6,299 514,605 59,021,388

40 Contingent Liabilities

40 FAREE

(@) Financial guarantees not provided for in the financial (@) FREIEHRPIELBE 2 BEE
statements are as follows: R
2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHE T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage TREEAEEYEZETER
facilities granted to certain buyers of the REIRB\BERMARITIEL
Group’s properties 2 R 11,846,377 8,044,655
Guarantees given to a bank for bank R—HEAEERFRTEEMR
borrowings of a joint venture RITIEH 2 IR 1,252,886 1,494,367
13,099,263 9,539,022

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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nued)

40 Contingent Liabilities (Continued) 40 FARAEE @

(@  (Continued) (@)

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to
certain buyers of the Group’s properties represented the
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by
these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and
possession of the related properties. Such guarantees were
to be discharged upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which are generally be available within 1
year after the purchasers take possession of the relevant
properties; or (i) the full repayment of the mortgage loan by
the purchasers of properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty (see also Note 3.1(b)).

(o)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation (o)
arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses.
Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account

WBEAREMEZETERREHR
&%E XM ASRITHEL 2 ERRR
ETRORDZEBREZER
DEBARAKEENMEZE TER
RHZBRBER - REZBEROKE
% MZEERBERZEMK K

BEAAREEERRNETHARRT
Zﬁ%a@ﬁ%$ﬁ@ﬂ@#ﬂw
REIZ MAKEEERSHERBY
ROEEMBEARMERE & ()&
HEMERBER(—RRERHER
HEMER-—FAEL)  HEF
%%m%%a%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂuk
BREERE)  ZBERESHEER -

EEM, ﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ WF

ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%&%$ﬁﬁﬂ%#ﬂ
K &R (FE R 2 B M 3E3.1(0))

AEENETHEBARZ2EEAYT
EXRBBBRTELENFD - KFTMH
ARREREBOERE E& %%

legal advice received, the Directors are of the opinion that RE HE_ZE—N\EEX_ZF—A
adequate provisions have been made in the consolidated F+_A=+—HLFEH %ff Bt
financial statements for the years ended 31st December 2018 BHRRDIELE R EBE -
and 2019.
41 Commitments 41 EIE
(@) Capital commitments (a) BEAXAE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred RNEERRMAEELAZEARBEZOT :

are as follows:

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TET

Contracted but not provided for BRI #BREBE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests — W R A TIFE L
in certain land holding entities BB BRAER
— Property construction costs — WERENR
— Capital contribution to an associate ——HABEARZEE

916,545 1,265,970
1,531,591 1,821,030
239,211 254,158

2,687,347 3,341,158
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41 Commitments (Continued) 41 #EIE @)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BEHERE
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of REBRZHAEBEHEY X 2T A &+
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease KEHEREMAEKEHERE N
agreements. The balance as at 31st December 2018 included all —NF+_A=Z+—BHEHRBIERE
operating leases while upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 (see Note 2.2), B EE SR EER E16% (B K F2.2)
the balance as at 31st December 2019 included commitments for BHKREHE MR_E—AF+ZRA=
low-value leases and short term leases with a lease term of less T-BENERABEREEAERHEERD
than 12 months. The future aggregate minimum lease payments R+ AR EHBEERAE - BIEATR
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows: HEZEHE  RHEZ2REENES LR
LU
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Amounts payable FEAS 5RIE
— Within one year ——FR 13,588
— Within two to five years —WMEEZRFNR 5,448
— After five years — hF1%& 33,929
52,965
(c) Future minimum rental receivable () ARZEEWHES
The Group leased out certain properties under operating leases. NEFREKLESHEHHESE TWE - (KI5
The future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable A HEREHEZARSTEEKRIES
operating leases is as follows: mR
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHET FAT
— Within one year — — %R 1,998,347 1,836,669
— Within two to five years —MEERAFR 3,493,585 3,449,284
— After five years —hFE 1,139,728 1,239,840
6,631,660 6,525,793
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42 Related Party Transactions 42 BEALIRS
The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns RATBAKRZEREEES  ERNBEE_Z
approximately 55.22% of the Company’s shares during the year —hNWE+-_A=+—"BLEFERNEELD
ended 31st December 2019 (2018: 55.22%). The remaining shares 55.22% (=& — )\ £ : 55.22%) A 1 & ix
are widely held. e TROMNBEMALEZIES -
The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited, a BRIER AR ANKEE R LS T MK
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. VUHFEBXARRAG
(a) The following significant connected (@ TIHREBEEALETZE
transactions were carried out with related EREERS
parties:
Sales of goods and services (Note) HEERRRE (FiE)
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER FHET
Property management services to related RHTHEERRZ
companies )38 1R IR 7% 30,059
Building design services to related companies 124t T RAE A 7 2
BF R RS 30,325
Shop and office lease services to related RETHEEAAZ
companies R AERE RS 9,898
Office lease services to related companies RHTHEARZ
MAEHERSE 20,357
Hotel management services to related RHTHEERRZ
companies B 5 E 1R R 4,965 3,843
Commercial real estate management services 32t FEE QT 2
to related companies HEMEETERSE 131,795 48,301
Heating services to a related company RETF—HEBEEARZ
i R 7% 1,458 -
Property construction services to a related RET-—HBEAFZ
company MR ER 16,154 —
283,442 142,783
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RE S R AR MY A )

42 BEATRXRI @m)
(@ THAHEBEALTETZE

42 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(@) The following significant connected

transactions were carried out with related ERERS  (#)
parties: (Continued)
Purchase of goods and services (Note) BEERRRSE (T

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET FHET
Property construction services from a related —fEBE A RIRE 2
company MERERD 984,988 86,275
Electricity installation, low voltage system and BIE QA GIIEME 2 & H & -
intelligent building system installation and PBERSGNREEEFRLS
consultancy services on cost control for 8 DA R 3R AR T AR AR AN
construction work from related companies AR 11,472 26,513
Office lease services from related companies B8 &E A G112 2
WRAEHERS 9,488 7,554
Information technology related services from a — 5] B i A RI3E 2
related company = BB AR RS 13,409 49,712
Marketing services from related companies 838 A AR it~ 35 HE & IR 7% 682,375 234,050
1,701,732 404,104

Note:

Office lease services are provided to Zhujiang Life Insurance Company Limited (#x)T A
SRBRM AR AT) (“Zhujiang Life”), and Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development
Company Limited (it =ER/TE #hE AR A 7)) (‘Zhujiang Real Estate”).

Zhujiang Life is majority-controlled company, held indirectly, by the family members
and relatives of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder of the Company) (“Mr.
Chu”) and Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company) (“Ms.
Chu”) together, namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong (the sons of Mr. Chu
and the brothers of Ms. Chu), Mr. Zhu La Yi (a brother of Mr. Chu and an uncle of Ms.
Chu) and Mr. Xie Bing Zhao (the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu and an uncle of Ms. Chu).
Zhujiang Real Estate is majority-controlled company, held indirectly by Mr. Chu Wai
Hong (a son of Mr. Chu and a brother of Ms. Chu).

During the year ended 31st December 2019, the Group delivered residential properties
of approximately HK$389 million to Mr. Chu, Ms. Chu and their family members
relating to sales contracts entered into in previous years.

Apart from the above, all other transactions were carried out with Chu’s controlled
entities, comprising companies which are associates of either Mr. Chu Yat Hong or Mr.
Chu Wai Hong. They are sons of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder of the
company) and brothers of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company).

All the services mentioned above were charged in accordance with the terms of the
underlying agreements.

ot -

HAEHERBREB TR IASRBRBEOERA
AHIAZ) RAEFRKIEHERBEERA A (K
IREME]) -

KTIABRAREREE(RRBERBRIREE]D) R
RERLE (ARARERGERIRLLT) HANRE
EHEEB MA-—MELERKEMALEMBRRELEZ
FRAZLLTZHN)  RAKEECREEZI KR
REZAR)RHMELEECREEZHKRRREZ L
ZHLDBMESENESZBEFENRF - KTEH
ERREMEE(AREEZFRARLZRA)R
ERANGZBIERENAT -

BHE_ZT-NF+-_A=FT—LLFE AEEREH
BEFEIVNBEESNRAREE KRR RERK
KB RZISAIBOB BB THEENE

B EXXFratsh - PR A 32 5 # R ER G B B
T RAREHEBEEBR R —MAELEIRERLELE

HVBEE AR R B o MR R &K SR A (R R RHEE AR
RZFRABRELLE(RARREEGERF) 2R -

bt P A AR 75 T AR 9 A A 1o O (R SRR

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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42 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42 BEATRI @wm)
m)E&/ﬁﬁﬁAiZ%ﬁm

follows:

2019 2018
—z2-n5 [EEEEE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHxT FHE T
Due from a joint venture Bl —HE &R R ZRIE 48,845 45,112
Due from associates FE L Bt = R B FROR 58,964 201
Due from related companies (Note) FE U BE BN | 5 (B ) 8,318 7,149
Due to an associate FE — B A F 2 RIE 5,964 6,299
Due to related companies (Note) B EER R 2 RE (M) 366,248 260,654
Due to joint ventures BN EERR A 3,011,241 2,773,349

Note: Btat -

As at 31st December 2019, all outstanding balances with related companies,
associates and joint ventures were denominated in RMB, unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without predetermined repayment terms.

As at 31st December 2019, the Group also had accounts payable of approximately
HK$829,032,000 (2018: HK$454,670,000) due to certain related companies in respect
of property construction (Note 23). These related companies are owned by the son,
the brother and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder of
the Company) and brother and uncles of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company).

(¢) Amount due to non-controlling interests

The amount due to non-controlling interests represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the non-controlling
interests, which are denominated in RMB and non-interest bearing.
The amount is not repayable within the next twelve months.
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RZFE-—NF+=ZA=1+—HB  B@EQA -BHELQ
AIRALRRZ2MEBRHUARBE  EIER
R ERIWETETEZKE -

RZTE—hhFE+_A=+—B AEETAEMNET
FE R R Y ¥R FKIF4829,082,000 L (ZF— )\
F : 454,670,000 7T ) (M 5223) - ZZF @ E A R B K
TR E (RRARERRE) ZF « B2 KRR KA
BREZLT(ARREEFEER) 2R BRRME L
ﬁo

() EEIFEERMEREE 2R

J& 5 2F 72 1 14 42 28 2 R IR 18 FE AR ) M
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42 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d) Key management compensation:

RE S R AR MY A )

42 BEATRXRI @m)

d FEEEEHRM :

e MOoRRR

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs

2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$’000
THET THET
16,565 18,427

695 698

17,260 14,125

() Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, to the Group in relation to the
acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate
Limited*

In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu Zhujiang”)
from Hanjiang.

Panyu Zhujiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land in
Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China. Hanjiang agreed to
perform and complete all necessary demolition and preparation
work to obtain the land use right certificate at its own expense. In
relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr. Chu
Mang Yee has undertaken to the Group to guarantee the due and
punctual performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to
the land (subject to a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million). As
at 31st December 2019, Hanjiang was in the process of applying
the land use right certificates.

e ARAEBEEEIEREME
ERBBEERKIEHES
PR 2 B 0] A8 &R B 4F W oz A& e

R-F-—ZFF=F AEEZTKAE IR
BEBWIEHNEARQARA(HERKI)
ZEabtE

EERIHATBRIAEEREBEREN—
BRI EREE -BIREEEEETT
EEBPTAR B IR BR R T IELAETS

WERAES RERAEEKRBEESKRT
ME ' KAAKRLEDRAEERFZFRILA
HETERBLIHNER (e RENE
ARBIB00EETL) - R_TE—NLF+=
B=+—H @®IEEHIZLHFERER

78 o

REAREBERARA —S—NAFEEFEH
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() Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, to the Group in relation to
acquisition of Believe Best Investment Limited*

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the issued
share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best”)
from Mr. Chu Mang Yee. Believe Best has, through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (the project company), a piece of land for
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China
(known as the “Jing Run Project”).

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project (through
its 80% interest in Believe Best), Mr. Chu Mang Yee, has (i) fully
guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the project
company for the demolition and relocation of the extra public
greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the request of
the local government; and (i) undertaken to the Group to be
responsible for the excess amount, if any, being the difference in
the unit cost per square metre (including the demolition and
relocation fees for the extra public greenfield site and the land
transfer fees as compared with the original agreed valuation price
of Jing Run Project) for the gross floor area to be developed,
payable by the project company in respect of any increase in plot
ratio as the government may approve. The demolition and
relocation work on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related
costs of approximately RMB1,630 million had been incurred by the
Group up to 31st December 2019 (2018: RMB1,509 million). Such
additional costs may be compensated by an increase in plot ratio
for the Jing Run Project, although government approval for increase
in plot ratio is pending.

(g) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments Limited*

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a related company, to acquire
100% equity interests in Sun Excel Investments Limited (“Sun Excel”)
at a total consideration of RMB6,605,066,000. The consideration
would be satisfied by () cash of RMB2,313,787,000, and (i) the
issuance of 523,247,000 shares of the Company for
RMB4,291,279,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,387,332,000),
on the basis that the construction will be fully completed by Farrich at
its own cost.
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(g) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments Limited*

(h)

(Continued)

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its 100% interests in Beijing
Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Development Co. Limited
(formerly known as Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Technology
Investment and Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co A”)
and Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real Property
Development Co. Limited (formerly known as Beijing
Shengchuang Hengda Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co D”). Project Co A and
Project Co D hold the land use rights of a piece of land in
Tongzhou District, Beijing, Mainland China (the “Project”).

The acquisition of Sun Excel was completed in October 2013.
As at 31st December 2019, cash consideration of
RMB1,579,414,000 (31st December 2018: RMB1,324,204,000)
out of the total cash consideration of RMB2,313,787,000 were
paid, representing the amount of construction work completed
by Farrich.

Disposals of land use rights to Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company*

In May 2012, the Group entered into agreements to dispose
of its land use rights of two pieces of land in Panyu District,
Guangdong, Mainland China and Baodi District, Tianjin,
Mainland China to Mr. Chu Mang Yee, for considerations of
RMB29,258,305 and RMB2,500,000, respectively.

The transactions have not yet been completed as at 31st
December 2019. It is expected that the Group will recognise
gain on disposals, net of tax, of approximately RMB9,834,000
upon completion of the transactions.

Represented connected transactions with connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

(9 WBEHEREARLQF @

HEE-—NEERERLERESERE
WEMBEARAR(AEILRE S SRR
REREEEARRAR)([HBERAFAAD R
trREeEEEMEREER QA
BMIERBEAEEMEREEERRAA)
(5 B 2 AID]) #9100% # 5 © 30 B X AlA
NEBRAIDEAFBEAEILEMNEA
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WEBHEER - —ZF+TAZK -1
—EZ-AFE+_A=1+—8B #BELR
8 # A R #2,313,787,0007T 1 9 A R #&
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— B : AR #1,324,204,0007C) 3R &£ R B
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43 Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Since January 2020, the coronavirus epidemic (“COVID 19”) has
spread across China and other countries, and it has affected the
business and economic activities. It may have certain impacts on
the Group’s business operations, including slow-down of the
Group’s property sales and construction activities, and temporary
waivers of rentals in the Group’s property rental operations. The
Group will keep continuous attention on the situation, assess and
react actively to its impacts on the Group’s business operations.
Up to the date of this report, the assessment is still in progress and
the related financial impact on the Group could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage, and will be reflected in the Group’s 2020
interim and annual financial statements.

On 19th February 2020, Hopson Capital International Group Co Ltd
A H &R EBE AR AT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued 6.0% senior notes due 2021 in an aggregate
principal amount of US$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,893,925,000) which are guaranteed by the Company and
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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43 HEBRREE

BEZZ_ZF-AUKR FEBHRES
fii & [(COVID1I9) EEF B MEMBEIR &
B YHETHENEELRS - EARE
HEENEFEARE BREMEHE
MBRLEEHRE  URDEAEEBKT
EnmBEeme AREKEERIIE
oA SEEEXRBEENTEL(FL
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SENERMBEEE ELPERERR
EEEN_FT_TFERYPNFER Y B R
R e
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% & Kt B 2 A Hopson Capital International
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44 Company Statement of Financial Position

RE R R MY A )

44 R 7 B AR R R

2019
=i
HK$°000
TR

Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments, deposits and other current
assets
Financial assets at fair value through

BE
FRBEE
RIBRRZIRE

RBEE
BNRE REREMRD
BE
BAFEBEBBERIIKZ

20,513,971

2,463

14,591
231,585

248,639

20,762,610

222,556
16,683,507

16,906,063

3,840,525

3,840,525

16,022

3,856,547

profit and loss WgEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEED
Total assets WEE
Equity fE=
Share capital [N
Reserves (Note) k1 (Ha)
Total equity DB
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Borrowings BE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 5K IB & H b FE 1 5IE
Current tax liabilities REBBIBEEE
Borrowings BE
Total liabilities =R ER
Total equity and liabilities EzREEH8E

20,762,610

REAREEERAA

2018

HK$'000
THET

19,697,906

7,112

36,423
2,792

46,327

19,644,233

222,556
17,060,524

17,283,080

72,287
8,450
2,280,416

2,361,153

2,361,153

19,644,233

ZE-hAFFEH 2N
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44 Company Statement of Financial Position 44 70 T B AR R & (|
(Continued)
Note: Kt -
Reserve movement of the Company ARR 2 HEEE
Currency
Share translation Retained
premium differences earnings Total
R 175 & E¥EREZR REBF @t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
For the year ended BE-Z2-hA&+=-A=+—8
31st December 2019 IHFE
Balance at 1st January 2019 RZZE-NF—-A—Bz#&#% 15,800,776 364,768 894,980 17,060,524
Profit for the year FEEHF = — 735,520 735,520
Currency translation differences EREY 58 - (444,869) - (444,869)
Dividend paid BEMBE - - (667,668) (667,668)

Balance at 31st December 2019 R-_ZE—hAhFE+_A=+—HZ

g 15,800,776 (80,101) 962,832 16,683,507
For the year ended BE-—Z2-—-N\E+=-B=+—8H
31st December 2018 IEEE
Balance at 1st January 2018 RZZE-NF—A—Bz#&#H 15,800,776 1,210,127 975,675 17,986,578
Profit for the year FEEM - — 809,529 809,529
Currency translation differences EREY EEE — (845,359) — (845,359)
Dividend paid Bk E — - (890,224) (890,224)

Balance at 31st December 2018 R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—H2Z
R 15,800,776 364,768 894,980 17,060,524
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RE R R MY A )

45 Details of principal subsidiaries 45 FTEMBELARFE

UWTAR-_ZE—NF+_A=+—HZ
TEWNBRARRE:

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December
2019:

Place of incorporation

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
rEBEM
IR AR R R EEERER EBRTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
=E:3 =
Hopson Development International British Virgin Islands, limited US$2,000 100% — Investment holding in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
SEARBERBRAA EBRELEE BRELAA 2,0003% 7T REBREER
Sun Excel Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$2,600,001 100% — Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
BEREBRAF RERZES ERELQF 2,600,001 2% 7T REBIREER
Addup International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$1 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
KEBBEBRRAA BB AREERF 1787 REBREZER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 - 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
EEBXEBRAA EBELES ARELAA 23T REBREZER
Bazhou Shengkai Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 75% Property development in
Development Co., Ltd company Mainland China
BNTHIEHEREERAR  FREKE AREETLA A R # 20,000,000 7T RABEAEERDE
Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Real Mainland China, limited liability US$61,920,330 — 100% Property development in
Property Development Co. Limited company Mainland China
IREGEHEHEREERAR FEKE  FRAETAA 61,920,330 7T NP BEAEERDE
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$220,580,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
EREELEFTEHERERRLT FEKRE EREEAQF 220,580,000 7T R EREIRY ¥
Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Management Company Limited company in Mainland China
tRALEEERERARAA  HREKE BRETRA A R # 3,000,000 7T RPEBEREEBER
Beijing Hopson Lvzhou Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB1,793,370,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
tmatgNEERZEERAR FEKXE  FREETAA AR #1,793,370,0007T RABEAREERYE
Beijing Hopson Wangjing Real Estate ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB364,990,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
IREELREMERBBRLF PERE EREEAQF A R #364,990,000 7T R ERERREDE
Beijing Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$31,600,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
IREERERMEREBRLT PERE EREFTAF 31,600,000 7T R REERY
Beijing Hopson Yuijing Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$165,760,000 — 100% Property development in

Development Limited

ERAERNSFHEREERAT

company

PEARE EREEAR

165,760,000 7T

REAREEERAA

Mainland China
B RREERE Y
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45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 TEMNBARFRE@

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENS
REEB TRt REEERER ERTRBERA REBS L TEXBREBEHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Beijing Longyuan Shunjing Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
IRERIESFEHEMEERAR FEKRE FREFEAF A R # 20,000,000 7T NECIPNCEIEEYE S
Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real Mainland China, limited liability US$67,385,504 - 100% Property development in
Property Development Co. Limited company Mainland China
IRRREEFERBEERAA PEKRE FREEAF 67,385,504 % 7T MNP AR
Beijing Xinjingrun Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China, limited liability US$444,540,000 — 82.5% Property development in
company Mainland China
R RBEHEBRAA hEIKE - BEREMELQA 444,540,000 7T LN R 37 ES
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$200 — 82.5% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
EEREBRAA EBRELEE BREEAA 2003 7T REBREER
Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa, limited liability company US$6,500,000 - 100% Investment holding in
Hong Kong
EEEEBRAF EEGE AREEAR 6,500,000 7T REBIREZER
Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$32,747,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REREEAFHEEZRARAA TEAE BREFERA 32,747,000% 7T RABEAREERDE
Dalian Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
AREAEHEFRMEREERAT FEKE  FRAETAA A F #50,000,0007C R B REERDE
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EMREBRAR B BEREAFERA 10,0007 7T REBRERR
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$2 ordinary HK$3 — 100% Investment holding and

EHEXERAA

company

BE BREERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

RE R R MY A )

45 TEMBRARFRE @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENL
IR FEMR LR EEERER ERTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
B =
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$2 - 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
EREXEBRAA EBRELES AREEAA 2T REBREER
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$22,500,000 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
YDEBR QA BE AREMERA 22,500,000/ 7T REBIREER
Guangdong Esteem Property Services Mainland China, limited liability HK$5,000,000 — 100% Property management in
Limited company Mainland China
ERERVERBERDA RREIAKE - EREMERQAF 5,000,000 7T RPBEREEEYE
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability US$37,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Co. Ltd. company Mainland China
BERAEEFTRFEHEARRRR PEAKE - FREERQA 37,500,000 7T NP B REEREYE
Guangdong Hopson Hongjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,280,000 - 100% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
ERAEMREHERRRAA FEAE - BEREERQA A R 200,280,000 7T NP ARERRY %
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB44,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Co. Limited company Mainland China
BEREELERHERRRA R FEARE - ERETRA A R # 44,500,000 7T NP BE KRR %
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB41,500,000 — 91% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
ERAEPEEHERRAF PEKE - BREERQF A R # 41,500,0007C RPBEREEREDE
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB41,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BERAEMERMEARRRA FEAKE - ARECERAA A R # 41,500,000 7T RARBEREERY %
Guangdong Huajing New City Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB93,500,018 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BERESHNUEHEBERDA FEAKE - AREERA] AR 93,500,018 RAPBEKEZERE
Guangdong Huanan New City Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB464,750,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BREEMUEHERRRA PREIAKE - BRECERA] A R #464,750,0007C RABEREERERYE
Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB48,074,420 - 70% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BERERFEHEARRRR FEIKKE - AREMERAA AR #48,074,420 7T NP REERY %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBHRRME@®

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

45 TEMNBARFRE@

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENS
IR TRt REEERER ERTRBERA REBS L TEXBREBEHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,010,000 — 100% Investment holding in
Investment Co., Ltd. company Mainland China
BERHEFHEREBRAR. PEIRRE - FREERF AR #10,010,0007T T B R BE 3R B AR
Guangzhou Chuangda Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BMelZEREHRAR DA HEKE - BEREEQA A K #100,000,000 7T NECIPNGEEIERYE S
Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,000,000 - 100% Provision of construction
Company Limited company service in Mainland
China
ERAAIRELABARRAF FEKE - EREERA A R # 200,000,000 7T R E KRR EER
7%
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BEMNAERREHERRAF TEAE BREERA AR % 53,550,000 70 RABEAREERDE
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB42,500,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BMNEERTFREHERRRDA PEAKE - FRECRAF A R #42,500,000 7T NP B REERDE
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB221,619,440 - 95% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BEMAEERREHERRAR FEKRE - BREERQF AR #221,619,440 7T RABEAERREDE
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Real  Mainland China, limited liability RMB133,340,000 - 95% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
EMaEREERERRAR HEKE SRETRA A R #133,340,000 7T RARBEARERRYE
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Water ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Water supply in Mainland
Supply Limited company China
BMEEFRFKERAR PREIAKE - FREMERA A R #3,000,00070 R R B R B A K
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Business  Mainland China, limited liability RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse
Services Limited company and residential
services in Mainland
China
BMNaEESBABARRDF FREAKE - BREMERQAF A R #500,000 7T B A B R B A2 & P R
FER®
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMN&EREBERERRRAR PREIAKE - FREERA AR #131,420,0197C NP B REERYE
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB82,040,000 — 99.5% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMNEERSFEHERRRA FEIAKE - FREMEAF A R 82,040,000 7T RABREERYE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

RE R R MY A )

45 TEMBRARFRE @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENL
RE BB FEMR LR EEERER ERTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
B F:3
Guangzhou Hopson Yuijing Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB47,250,000 — 70% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMNE&ERMRFEHERRRR REIAKE - FREERF A R ¥47,250,000 7T NECIPNGE =LY E S
Guangzhou Huayue Longting Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Restaurant Limited company in Mainland China
BEMESEEBRER DA FEAE - EREERA A R #3,000,0007T HEAREERER
Guangzhou Jiannan Property Mainland China, limited liability US$12,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
EMNEmEERRARAA FEAE - EREERA 12,000,000 7T R RERRY
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,170,243 — 95% Property development in
Construction and Development company Mainland China
Company Limited
BMNTRIMERFEERAA REAE - BEREERA AR#2,170,2437C RPBEAEERDE
Guangzhou Wanxiangying Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB1,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
EMTEREMEZRBROA PEKE - BREEQF A R #1,000,0007T NP B REERYE
Guangzhou Xinchangjiang Mainland China, limited liability RMB60,000,000 - 95.5% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
BEMNHFRIZRFAERRAF FEARE - BEREEAQF A K #60,000,0007C RHBEAREERE
Guangzhou Yihui Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB37,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
BMNmsEREmEREZESRAA REAE - BEREERA AR #37,000,0007C RPBEAEERDE
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB43,800,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
EMNERERMERERR DA PREIAKE - FRECERQA] A R 43,800,000 7T NP B REERERYE
Guangzhou Yisheng Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB52,500,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
BMNTERFEHEMEGRA A PEIKKE - AREERA A R #52,500,000 7T NP RERRY %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

45 FEK B~ FFF (E)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENS
IR TRt REEERER ERTRBERA REBS L TEXBREBEHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development in
Estate Limited company Mainland China
BN IEHEERR DR PEIRRE - FREERF A R % 535,500,000 7T NP B RRERR Y
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability US$36,400,259 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BMNEELHEHERRRAA FERE - EREERA 36,400,259% 7T MNP AR
Guilin Feng Huang Wen Tou Properties Mainland China, limited liability RMB119,260,600 — 42.8% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
EREEXEEEARAA FEARE - AREERQA AR %119,260,600 7T RPBEAEERDE
Hangzhou Xincheng Yuehong Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Property Development company Mainland China
Company Limited
HUIN A 72 5 3 2 B B PRI - FREMERQF A R 100,000,000 7T NP B REERDE
ARARA
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding in
company HK$10,000 non-voting Hong Kong
deferred shares (Note)
EHEEEBRAA BB -AREERF 2B T EBK — 100% RMEBREZER
10,0007 7T
EREREER
ERRAD (7 7F)
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Mainland China, limited liability US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
A (EMELARAT hEARE  AREEDA 4,830,000 7T R E AR RN E
Hopson Development (Consultants) British Virgin Islands, limited us$2 — 100% Provision of consultancy
Limited liability company in Hong Kong
SEEIR (B ARAR EBELES AREEAF PES B IR SRR S
Hopson Development (Properties) Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding in
Limited company Hong Kong
AEAIB(EX)ARRDA EE BRECFAA 10,000/% 7T REBREER
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
AEPEEHERRRDAF REREZES EREEQF 1E7T REBIREZER
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB45,760,035 — 92.2% Property development in
Co., Ltd. company Mainland China
BERPEEXEFRAA PEAKE - FREMCRQAF A R #45,760,0357T NP B REERYE
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 - 60% Property development in
City Development and Investment company Mainland China
Co. Ltd.
BMATEMEEHTERRE FEKE BRETAA A R %100,000,000 7T NP B REERERDE

BRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

RE R R MY A )

45 TEMBRARFRE @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENL
IR FEMR LR EEERER ERTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
B =
Huizhou Hopson Youtian Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB584,843,979 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
ENTAEERREXARRAA REIAKE - FREERF A R #£584,843,9797T NP B RRERRE Y
Huizhou Hopson Xieyuan Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB590,411,061 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BMTEEHBTEMERRLT  HEKRE - -EREEQA AR 590,411,061 7T RHBEAREERDE
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Company  Mainland China, limited liability RMB250,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMNTERIREHERRRAF RREIAKE - EREMERQAF A R 250,000,000 7T RPBEAEERDE
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Company ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB119,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
BMNTEHEERRAR HEAE BREERA A R #119,000,000 7T RABEKEREREDE
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 82.5% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
HEHBXREBRAA B BREERA 1,000,000 7T REBREZER
Jiangmen Hopson Xinjing Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
IFTEEERFEMERRAR FEAE BREFERA AR #100,000,0007C R BEAREERE
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EMEEBRAA BB -EREERQA 10,0007% 7T REBREZR
Kunshan Hopson Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB200,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
BUAEFEREARRAR PREIKKE - FREERA A ¥ 200,000,000 7T RABIREERYE
Langfang Hongchang Jiatai Property ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMB15,000,000 — 90% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
B TR S EREMER PEKKE - FRECERF A R #15,000,000 7T RABREERYE
BRAR
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate Mainland China, limited liability HK$25,000,000 - 55% Property development in
Development (Guangzhou) Ltd. company Mainland China
BMNEHIENERARRAA FEAKE - AREETAA 25,000,0007% 7T RABREERYE
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HKS$1 - 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EERERRAA B EREMEAR 17T REBIREZR
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited uss2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
FEEEXARRQA EBELER BREMLAA 2% T REBREZR
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Sports  Mainland China, limited liability US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
EREERBABBERR REIKKE - AREERA 10,000,000 7T, RARBEREERY

BRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REBHRRME@®

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

45 FEK B~ FFF (E)

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENS
REEB AR R EEERER ERTRBERA REBD L TEXBREBEHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB157,900,000 — 95% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
ERAEERWEHERRRDF PEIRRE - FREERF A R#157,900,000 7T NECIPNCEIEEYE S
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
BREERWEHERR AR FEKE - EREERA AR #10,000,0007C MNP RRERRY
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Company  Mainland China, limited liability RMB220,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
ERAERFEHBERRAF REAE - EREERA A R % 220,000,000 7T RABEREERNE
Outward Expanse Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
BRIREBRAA EBRLEE BREEAA 2% T REBREZER
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Company  Mainland China, limited liability RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
EBRIBMERRAA PEKE - BREERQA A R 100,000,000 7 RABEREEREDE
Plaza Royale Water Palace Convention Mainland China, limited liability RMB72,000,000 - 70% Hotel operation in
Hotel Tianjin Co. Limited company Mainland China
REBFRBRRBEARRR A FEAE - AREERA A R #72,000,0007T T R B K e A B R
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
AREXBRAA EBRLHES  BREEAA 2% TT REBIREZR
Prestige Dragon Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
ERERBERAA BB - BEREERF 10,0007% 7T REBREZR
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EREBIE AR AR BB AREERA 17T REBREZER
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,050,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Management Company Limited company Mainland China
FERERREEERBARDA FEAE - EREEAF A R # 3,050,000,000 7T NP ARERRY %
Shanghai Hechuang Linhai Property Mainland China, limited liability RMB900,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
LHEABRERHEREERAR FEKE  AREMTAA A R 900,000,000 7T R KEERE
Shanghai Hopson Jinting Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
LEEEREIFRMERBBRLAT PERE EREETAF A R #50,000,0007TC R BERERREYE
Shanghai Hopson Property Mainland China, limited liability US$59,900,000 - 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FEEERMEREBRAQA FEAKE - AREMERAA 59,900,000 7T RARBREERY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

RE R R MY A )

45 TEMBRARFRE @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
rEBEM
RE BB FEMR LR EEERER ERTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
B F:3
Shanghai Hopson Sanlin Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
FEEE=MEMEMBRRLR FEKRE EREEQF A R # 50,000,000 7T RBEAEERDE
Shanghai Longjia Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
FEREBEERARAA TEAE  BREERA A R #20,000,0007T RHBEAREERDE
Shanghai Longmeng Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$44,370,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
TEEEEMERERR QA FEAE - EREERA 44,370,000% 7T MNP ARERRY
Shanghai Sanxiang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability US$8,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FE=RFBEBRARLIDA PREIRKE - FREMCERQF 8,000,000 7T NP B REERDE
Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties  Mainland China, limited liability RMB800,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
LELEBEEXERAA REAE BREERA A R # 800,000,000 7T RHBEAREERDE
Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and Mainland China, limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Consultant Company Limited company Mainland China
FERKRKKREHAERDA TEAE BREERA A % 5,000,000 7T RPBEAREERYE
Shanghai Yutai Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FEERFEWEERBR AR PREAKE - ERECERQAF A R % 400,000,000 7T R B REERYE
Shanghai Zeyu Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 94% Property development in
company Mainland China
FEEFEEFRANA PREIAKE - FREERQA A R #50,000,000 7T RABREERERYE
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
FEEERHMERARRAR RE AR BREERA A R # 50,000,000 70 R BEAREERYE
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China, limited liability RMB956,865,000 — 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
WA EFRERER AR FEAE - EREETAF A R #956,865,000 7T RAEBERERERYE
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$1 — 100% Provision of consultancy
liability company in Hong Kong
SERBBRAA EBRELEER AREEAA 1E7T RNEBRHERER RS
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 - 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
B#HRERRAR BE BREETAR 18T REBREZR
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited uss2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
REEXERAA KBRS AREERA 2ETT REBIREZR
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45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 TEMNBARFRE@

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
AL EENS
REEB AR R EEERER ERTRBERA REBD L TEXBREBEHY
Directly Indirectly
HiE =
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 51% Property development in
Development Corporation company Mainland China
HPERREEERREARAR  HEKE BREETRA AR #10,000,0007C NECIPNCEIEEYE S
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
H#EREBRAQA EBELEES AREEAA 17T REBREER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Us$2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
MRBXBRRAA RERZES ERELQAF 2% T REBIREER
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB480,000,000 — 100% Property development in
company Mainland China
BMNImIRE X FR DA RREIAKE - FRECERQF A R ¥ 480,000,000 7T R B REERDE
Taicang Hopson Property Development Mainland China, limited liability RMB280,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
AREGERMERBERRLA REAE BREERA A R % 280,000,0007T RABERERREDE
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development Mainland China, limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
RETEBEEMEREARLT FERE EREEQF A R #30,000,0007C RPBEAEERDE
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development in
Development Company company Mainland China
RREEEBBEHMEREARLT FERE EREEQF A R ¥ 375,826,000 7T RAPBEARREZERY X
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, limited liability RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development in
Development Limited company Mainland China
REAEWIFBHEREERAR FEKE  BRETAA A R % 280,000,000 7T NP B REERYE
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China, limited liability RMB3,000,000 — 100% Architectural design in
Company Limited company Mainland China
RERENBZERFBRDA PEIKKE - AREERA A R #3,000,0007T NEC PN S =
Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China, limited liability RMB115,000,000 — 92.3% Property development in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REmMEREERBR QA FEAE - EREEAQAF A% 115,000,000 7T RARBERERRYE
Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Mainland China, limited liability RMB20,000,000 — 100% Hotel operation in
Development Company Limited company Mainland China
REFKIFRBRAEERAA PRIKKE - BREMERA A K% 20,000,0007C R B R B A B R
The Center (49) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1 - 100% Property investment in
liability company Hong Kong
EBELER BREMLAA 1%7T NEBREYH
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, limited uss2 — 100% Investment holding in
liability company Hong Kong
HREXERAA REBRLES ARETRF 2ETT REBIREZR

Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45 Details of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation

RE R R MY A )

45 TEMBRARFRE @

Issued and fully

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal activities and

Name of company and kind of legal entity paid capital to the Group place of operation
rEBEM
IR FEMR LR EEERER ERTRBERSE REBS L TEXBREBEHLY
Directly Indirectly
B =
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
LRIREBRARA BB AREERF 5,000,000 7T REBREER
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited Mainland China, limited liability RMB8,000,000 — 70% Property development in
company Mainland China
BT & B PR 2 A RE AR BREERA A R # 8,000,000 7T RHBEAREERDE
Wilcon investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$49,320,002 — 100% Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
EERZIREFR A BB -BAREERA 49,320,002 7T REBIREZER
Yao’an Batteries Power Supply Mainland China, limited liability RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property investment in
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. company Mainland China
BZEBHBRBMECRIDBERAR FEKXE  BRETAA A 50,000,000 7T NP B REREWE
Zhejiang Kehua Digital Plaza Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 95% Property development in
Limited company Mainland China
WL ELE S IS A R A A REAKE - FREERA A R #10,000,000 7T RPBREER Y
Zhongshan Hopson Haojing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 95% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
PILTAERSFEHERRRAR FEAE - BEREERQA A R #10,000,0007C AR ARERRY
Zhongshan Hopson Hongjing Real Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development in
Estate Company Limited company Mainland China
PILTAEZERFEHERRRAA FREAKE - EREMCTRAAF AR #10,000,0007C R B REEREYE
Zhongshan Hopson Xijing Real Estate  Mainland China, limited liability RMB11,215,800 — 84.7% Property development in
Company Limited company Mainland China
PILTAEEERFEHERRRAA PREIAKE - FREERQA AR#11,215,8007T NP B REERYE
Zhongxian International Company Mainland China, limited liability RMB2,250,000,000 — 100% Property development in

Limited company Mainland China
maEBEBRERARAR mE AR BREERA A R # 2,250,000,000 7T R BEAREERYE
Note: B et -

ERERETERNTEZRE  BRKIERE R
ERENIBEREZH 5K - % JE100,000,000,000,000 7%
TEDRTEBRFAEA MERBEEZ —+AHIK
TEREZRBEERODHFEA -

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to any
dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of
the assets are distributable to holders of the non-voting deferred shares.
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REBHRRME@®

46 Details of principal associates 46 FTEHENTFHE
Particulars of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %
=g BERITROFE a8 A% 3L 4t B TEXK FrisEE %
2018
—Z-N\F
Beijing BHL Logistics Limited ~ Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 25
US$20,000,000
IERRE=YREEARAF  FMARA20,000,0005 7T B KB MEER
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural Registered capital of Mainland China Operation of school 40
Development Company RMB5,000,000
Limited
BREEHELERAR TMBREAARE B K BMER
NG 5,000,0007T
Tianjing Jingjin Financial and Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 30
Property Investment RMB1,000,000,000
Company Limited
AREFRRETREZFREAR ZMBRAARE B K MEER
NG 1,000,000,000 7T
MAHA China IP Limited Registered capital of British Virgin Island  Investment Holding N/A
USs$100
FMAEA100% T RERLES REER A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

47 Details of principal joint ventures

RE R R MY A )

47 FESE N TS

Particulars of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %
=F FEERTROFS = B 3L 3t 2% FTEEK FRisfER %
2019 2018
S EEN T \F
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 60.98 60.98
International Properties US$47,890,000 and property (Note(i)
Company Limited investment
TRRAXERREEER FMIRA47,890,000F T B ARk MEBRRIYE (Hata))
NG| ®E&
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Registered capital of Mainland China Property development 65 65
Company Limited RMB82,991,973 (Note(ii)
BME-—REBRAERAT FHRAARE =N MEER (Bt &£ (i)
82,991,973 7T

Notes: Hat -

(0] The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of Directors 0] AEBBEEAEARSTI4%EEGREE T
of the joint venture while ordinary resolutions of the joint venture require 75% of BB NAIZERRERBEECTENIRER -
the voting of the Board of Directors. The investment in joint ventures was REERARANBRERAFEEFTNEAGE
reclassified as assets classified as held for sale in current year. BE o

(i) The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of Directors (i) AEBEREENASTIANERTGRE
of the joint ventures while ordinary resolutions of the joint ventures require MEERNBI 2 ERARZ R EEEL60.7%ERE
66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors. 1o
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBER

Consolidated Balance Sheets HREEERBR
2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-fHE ZZE—RE —Z—+E Z—ZE-)N\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs THIE A 1,976,377 1,776,499 1,846,674 1,675,007
Prepayments for acquisition of land Ui 8 £ 1 78 {+ 708 126,980 118,927 127,264 121,411
Prepayments for construction work 3% Ti2 v B 2B 587,141 28,682 - -
Loan receivables W E - - 1,536,051 743,201
Properties and equipment VENE 3,958,050 3,486,335 3,724,771 4,571,452
Investment properties REWME 28,935,997 31,300,936 42,971,253 46,856,835
Goodwill EES 39,912 31,818 33,552 35,249
Investments in associates REERBZIRE 148,679 140,747 163,106 147,668
Investments in joint ventures REBRARIZIKRE 7,778,864 7,424,805 8,035,057 7,514,062
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENBEE 3,129,699 3,406,109 4,039,343 -
Financial assets at fair value through % A FEEBE M2 E - - - 3,144,258
other comprehensive income WAS R B EE
Financial assets at fair value through 3% A {8 1% B 18 2% 5| R - - - 35,000
profit or loss LUBEE
Finance lease receivables BEMERKFE - - - 159,828
Right-of-use assets FTREEE - - - -
Deferred tax assets BEERIEBEE 402,162 495,525 740,160 784,147
47,083,761 48,210,383 63,207,231 65,788,208
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land 4t 8 £ 3 78 1 508 9,658,469 9,058,323 10,079,270 9,403,647
Properties under development At HE ZERED
for sale LES 49,836,168 44,761,847 42,112,261 41,237,995
Completed properties for sale AEHEZDER
S 25,196,674 21,233,257 27,358,063 30,299,744
Financial assets at fair value through &2 A FEFH BE
profit or loss NEZHMBEE 13,101 83,584 174,852 775,943
Accounts receivable U ER 3R 425,296 542,974 630,653 784,882
Loan receivables EIRE R — — 299,075 1,983,693
Avallable-for-sale financial assets AHHENKEE - - 220,000 -
Prepayments, deposits and other T %18 - k& Rk
current assets HiwnBEE 2,497,694 2,749,500 3,879,004 5,370,900
Due from a joint venture i G S R /NE]
oA 32,031 34,738 42,230 45,112
Due from associates JE U B &\ ) FUB 210 197 211 201
Due from related companies JEURRE N T RIB 3,899 3,190 7,713 7,149
Contract assets ANEE — — — 473,606
Pledged/charged bank deposits B RCRTT
Bx 676,049 261,215 405,842 483,182
Cash and cash equivalents HERMEEEY 4,753,340 6,053,733 5,396,990 7,456,708
93,092,931 84,782,558 90,606,164 98,322,762
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBEHECEE - - - -
93,092,931 84,782,558 90,606,164 98,322,762

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019

2019
—B-0E
HK$'000
TER

118,758
244,107
170,801
4,976,880
56,961,529
34,534
364,855
5,059,567

3,337,773

344,656
1,634,045
1,309,259

74,556,764

10,767,194
57,047,059
31,260,655

788,403
1,058,081
2,520,879

8,060,451

48,845
58,964
8,318
982,860

1,466,913
12,635,125

126,703,747
2,843,132

129,546,879




Summary of Financial Information (Continued)

BRERMEE @

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Continued) SEEEREBER®@

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—2-5n% —F-AF —T-+F —T-)\5 ELEPE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T TEr TEr Ten RS

LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable, accrualsand ~ EFTERE - EERIE K
other payables H e 2R 10,531,984 8,882,107 11,860,932 13,942,503 | 2upfilits
Land cost payable JE A< £ 3 AR R 83,092 44,104 5,327 4,996 359,201
Borrowings EE 11,188,721 9,538,378 15,562,973 13,444,611 | (il
Deferred revenue EEWA 11,937,499 8,667,718 5,766,727 — —
Contract liabilities ANEaE - - — 10,304,371 ERER L]
Lease liabilities HEA® — — - — 8,419
Due to an associate JEf— B & R A 2
A 6,588 6,170 6,603 6,299 5,964
Due to related companies ERTBERR 2 RIE 596,329 476,471 223,907 260,654 366,248
Due to joint ventures ERAE AR ZHTE 3,473,505 3,253,214 3,208,176 2,773,349 3,011,241
Current tax liabilities REABIIEE & 3,863,892 3,834,562 5035298 5,017,599 | Gk
41,681,610 34,702,724 41,669,943 45,754,382 [ s arlekl!
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Land cost payable JE 3 AR AR 57,638 86,827 92,830 88,310 91,043
Borrowings BE 35,516,944 35,213,845 37,626,814 41,656,532 [ Elrdiit:
Lease liabilities HEAR — — - - 676,246
Due to non-controlling interests & JE 28 1| 1 4 25
Z A 538,205 504,071 539,409 514,605 | ol
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEG B 5,863,904 6,080,408 7,646,741 8,323,506 | kyfik:
41,976,691 41,885,151 45,905,794 50,582,953 [ il
Net assets EEFE 56,518,391 56,405,066 66,237,658 67,773,635 [ rfaihla L)
EQUITY i

Capital and reserves attributable A A FIRZ A A
to the Company’s equity holders i {5 B% 7K [z % &
Share capital % A 223,412 222,556 222,556 222,556 222,556
Reserves i 54,112,981 54,194,334 63,871,569 65,472,354 | @ikl

54,336,393 54,416,890 64,094,125 65,694,910 | rftli iy
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR S 2,181,098 1,988,176 2,143,533 2,078,725 | kil

Total equity T R 56,518,391 56,405,066 66,237,658 67,773,635 | rfshiklalip
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Summary of Financial Information (Continued)

R ERME @

Consolidated Income Statements mAEWEX

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-T%F —E-xE —E-+5 —T-5 BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEr  Far Far Tz RS

Revenues 1 %% 12,845,184 16,255,697 13,823,946 13,293,532 |Sl:hs0l0)a1:10)
Cost of sales $HE B AR (9,683,196) (11,776,266)  (8,738,475)  (6,765,596) [l kl))
Gross profit E 7 3,161,988 4,479,431 5085471 6,527,936 | ‘e)lerein Lt
Fair value gain on investment BREMERATERE
properties 1,334,369 2,604,091 5003235 4,673,345 | hildarscl
Other (losses)/gains, net Hi(EE), ek B8 (37,481) 84,110 207,580 161,935 285,329
Selling and marketing expenses HERTGERE R (494,310) (413,440) (328,673) [CICABON (736,887)
General and administrative expenses —fi& X% 17 B & (1,296,371) (1,218,331)  (1,349,594)  (1,581,856) |l kil :h14)
Finance income BE B U A 96,709 79,439 43,918 173,949 394,311
Finance costs B 75 P 2R (79,311)  (132,484) (5,242) XN (1,002,439)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates 43 {5 Bk & A 7
(B518),/ i F (484) 1,645 2,408 1,637 (4,562)
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures 9 1 & % 2 @l & #1,/
(B#HE) 154,196 143,844 86,701 (6,152) 119,113
Profit before taxation B B BT 3 2,839,305 5,628,305 8745804 8,994,322 |Slbrichlirds
Taxation B (1,257,267) (1,785,631)  (2,933,984)  (3,171,723) [[s 10 st:54))
Profit for the year FEm A 1,582,038 3,842,674 5,811,820 5,822,599 [ )0l
Attributable to: FEfh :
Equity holders of the Company RRRIRIERZE A 1,645,942 3,868,433 5,796,385 5,775,467 [ReRAEIHIN0
Non-controlling interests FE R HI 1 RE 25 (63,904) (25,759) 15,435 47,132 164,390
1,582,038 3,842,674 5,811,820 5,822,509 [ Clskloeiel)
Dividends % & 223,020 222,556 445112 890,224 890,224
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